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Lori A. Sllibintttt 
Commissionrr 

Katj1 S. Fox 
Director 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301 
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Exl 9544 

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov 

November 28, 2022 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 

21 

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, 
to enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Bi-State 
Primary Care Association, Inc. (VC#166695-8001 ), Bow, NH to facilitate certain providers to 
deliver integrated medication treatment for pregnant, postpartum and parenting women, by 
increasing the price limitation by $895,000 from $2,151,692 to $3,046,692 and by extending the 
completion date from September 29, 2022 to September 29, 2023, effective retroactive to 
September 29, 2022 upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds. 

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on November 6, 2019, item 
#10, amended on January 22, 2021, item #19, amended on September 15, 2021, item #16J, and 
most recently amended on June 29, 2022, item #23. 

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023 and are 
anticipated to be available for State Fiscal Year 2024, with the authority to adjust budget line 
items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the 
Budget Office, if needed and justified. 

05-95-92-920510-25590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS 
DEPT, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEAL TH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, 
~TR r-D .~T 

State 
Fiscal 
Year 

2020 

Class/ Job Current Increased Revised 
Account 

Class Title Number Budget (Decreased) 
Budget Amount 

102-500731 Contracts for 92052559 $600,000 $0 $600,000 
Prog Svc 

Subtotal $600,000 $0 $600,000 

The Department of Health and Human Seruices' Mission is to join communities and families 
in prouiding opportunities for citizens to achieue health and independence. 
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 
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05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS 
DEPT, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEAL TH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, 
SOR GRANT 

State 
Class/ Job Current 

Increased 
Fiscal Class Title (Decreased) Revised 

Year Account Number Budget 
Amount Budget 

2020 102-500731 
Contracts for 

92057040 
$156,945 $0 $156,945 

Prog Svc 

2021 102-500731 
Contracts for 

92057040 
$300,000 $0 $300,000 

Prog Svc 

2021 102-500731 
Contracts for 

92057046 $522,374 $0 $522,374 
Prog Svc 

2022 102-500731 
Contracts for 

92057046 
$174,124 $0 $174,124 

Prog Svc 

Grants for $348,249 $0 $348,249 
2022 074-500585 Pub Asst and 92057048 

Rel 

Grants for $50,000 $0 $50,000 
2022 074-500585 Pub Asst and 92057048 

Rel 

2023 074-500589 
Welfare 

92057058 
$0 $671,250 $671,250 

Assistance 

2024 074-500589 
Welfare 

92057058 
$0 $223,750 $223,750 

Assistance 

Subtotal $1,551,692 $895,000 $2,446,692 

Total $2,151,692 $895,000 $3,046,692 

EXPLANATION 

This request is Retroactive because the Department was notified by the Federal awarding 
agency on September 23, 2022 of the availability of funding beyond the current contract 
completion date of September 29, 2022. Due to the delayed notification from the Federal awarding 
agency, the Department was unable to finalize the amendments and funding details and present 
this request to the Governor and Council prior to the contracts expiring. 

This request is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the contract 
beyond the completion dates and there are no renewal options available. Due to the limited 
timeframe between the funding notification from the Federal awarding agency and the contract 
expiration date, the Department was not able to re-procure for these services. Any delays or gaps 
in service provision may result in reduced or loss of access to services and supports for individuals 
in need of these critical services. 

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue to facilitate the participation 
of Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs) to provide medications for substance use disorder 
(MSUD), and an array of necessary supports to pregnant, postpartum, and parenting people with 
opioid use disorder (OUD), along with their newborn and infant children. 
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and the Honorable Council 
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The Contractor shall continue the currently contracted role as a facilitating organization 
(FO) to support at least three (3) subcontracted FQHCs to increase their capacity to provide and 
to deliver comprehensive integrated MSU0 services and supports. The FO will provide project 
management, organizational support, and ensure compliance for themselves and all 
subcontracted sites with contract, State, and Federal regulations and standards. 

The subcontracted FQHCs will provide integrated MSUD, meaning that not only will 
pregnant, postpartum, and parenting people with OUD receive necessary MSUD, they will also 
receive additional targeted, integrated services such as: obstetrical/gynecological care; Neonatal 
Abstinence Syndrome care; childbirth and parenting education; employment support and 
assistance with applying for and obtaining benefits appropriate for pregnant, postpartum, and 
parenting people such as enrolling in Medicaid; food and housing services; transportation; and 
childcare. MSUD is the use of medications, in combination with counseling and behavioral 
therapies, when necessary. 

In addition to continuing to support providers in delivering comprehensive integrated 
MSU0 services and supports for the target population, the Contractor will collaborate with local 
and regional public health and provider networks, including the Doorways and recovery 
community organizations, to align and coordinate substance misuse treatment and recovery 
support services. 

Approximately 75 individuals will be served September 30, 2022 to September 29, 2023. 

The additional funding with this amendment shall go towards supporting additional staff 
for reporting, additional supplies, community coordination, and reestablishment of a previous 
subcontracted FOHC. 

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, pregnant, post-partum, and 
parenting people in New Hampshire with OUD and their inf ants and children may not receive the 
treatment necessary to achieve and maintain recovery and may also not receive important 
parenting-specific services and supports which could improve the mothers' health and wellbeing 
as well as that of their infants and children. 

Area served: Statewide 

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93. 788, FAIN #1 H79TI085759. 

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not 
be requested to support this program. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Lori A. Shibinette 
Commissioner 
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State of New Hampshire 
Department of Health and Human Services 

Amendment #4 

This Amendment to the Facilitating Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant, Postpartum 
and parenting Women contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and 
Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Bi-State Primary Care Association , Inc. ("the Contractor"). 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council 
on November 6, 2019 (Item #10) , as amended on January 22, 2021 , (Item #19), as amended on September 
15, 2021 (Item #16J), as amended on June 29, 2022 (Item #23) the Contractor agreed to perform certain 
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration 
of certain sums specified; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended 
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and 

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify 
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained 
in the Contract and set forth herein , the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: 

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read: 

September 29, 2023 

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation , to read: 

$3,046,692 

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsection 2.1 , Program 
Requirements, Paragraph 2.1.1, to read : 

2.1 .1 The Contractor shall enter into agreements with a minimum of three (3) Federally Qualified 
Health Centers (FQHCs) and/or hospitals, hereinafter referred to as Sites, to increase their 
capacity to provide and to deliver comprehensive, integrated Medication Assisted Treatment 
(iMAT) services and supports for pregnant, postpartum, and parenting people with opioid 
use disorders (OUD), and their newborn and infant children. The Contractor shall ensure: 

2.1.1.1 Preference is given to FQHCs and hospitals in Coos, Rockingham, Hillsborough, 
Merrimack, Strafford , and Cheshire counties, which are areas that are not 
currently serviced by an organization under contract with the Department to 
provide MAT for pregnant and parenting people. 

2.1.1.2 Agreements with prospective Sites are executed only after review and approval 
of the Department. 

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 9, by adding Subsection 9.14 to read: 

9.14 The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department and other SOR funded Contractors, 
as requested and directed by the Department, to improve Government Performance and 
Results Act (GPRA) collection . 

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, to read : 

1. This Agreement is funded by: 

1.1 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as awarded on 08/30/2018, 
by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental 
Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685, and as awarded on 
09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and 
Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326~~1J as 
awarded on 08/09/2021 , by the U.S. Department of Health and Human S~es, 

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials ___ _ 

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A04 Page 1 of 4 Date 11/30/2022 
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Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN 
H79TI083326; and as awarded on 09/23/2022, by the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration , CFDA 
#93.788, FAIN H79TI085759 

6. Modify Exhibit 8 , Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to read : 

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred with the 
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as specified 
in Exhibit 8-1 Budget through Exhibit 8-9 Amendment #4 Budget. 

7. Modify Exhibit 8 , Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5, 
Subsection 5.1. , Paragraph 5.1.3. , Subparagraph 5.1.3.1. , Part 5.1.3.1.4. to read: 

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water. 

8. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1 , Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5, 
Subsection 5.1., Paragraph 5.1.3., Subparagraph 5.1.3.1. , Part 5.1.3.1.7. to read: 

5.1.3.1.7. RESERVED 

9. Add Exhibit 8-8, Amendment #4, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference 
herein. 

10. Add Exhibit 8-9, Amendment #4, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference 
herein. 

Bi-State Primary Care Association , Inc. 

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A04 

A-S-1 .3 

Page 2 of4 

~ Contractor Initials {,/1,{, 
Date 11/30/2022 
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain 
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to September 30, 2022, upon 
Governor and Council approval. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below, 

State of New Hampshire 

11/30/2022 

Date 

11/30/2022 

Date 

Bi-State Primary Care Association , Inc. 

SS-202-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A04 

Department of Health and Human Services 

Name: KatJ a s. Fox 

Title: Di rector 

Bi-State Primary Care Association , Inc. 

c;;,;,~~~I 
Name: Georgi a Maheras 

Title: VP, Policy and Strategy 

A-S-1 .2 

Page 3 of 4 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 68998552-CCAE-4A68-BAD1-86FBD1 FC60A7 

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and 
execution. 

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

12/1/2022 

Date b
?ts?atst 1s11 tqQ ... 

Name~o yn Guan no 

Title: Attorney 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of 
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: _______ (date of meeting) 

Date 

Bi-State Primary Care Association , Inc. 

SS-202-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A04 

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

Name: 
Title: 

A-S-1 .2 

Page 4 of 4 
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BT-1.0 Exhibit B-8, Amendment #4, Budget SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACI L-01-A04 

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Complete one budget form for each budget period. 

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. 
Contractor Name: 

Facilitating Integrated Medication for Opioid Use Disorder, 

Budget Request for: Postpartum and Parenting Women 

Budget Period FY23 - (September 30, 2022 - June 30,2023) 

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 2.17% 

Program Cost• 
Program Cost • 

TOTAL Program 
Line Item Contractor Share/ 

Funded by DHHS 
Match 

Cost 

$55,868 $0 $55,868 
1. Salarv & WaQes 

2. Fringe Benefits $8,380 $0 $8 ,380 

3. Consultants $0 $0 $0 

4. Equipment $0 $0 $0 

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 $0 $0 
5./bl Suoolies - Lab $0 $0 $0 
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0 $0 
5./dl Suoolies - Medical $0 $0 $0 
5.(e) Supplies Office $934 $0 $934 

6. Travel $5,500 $0 $5,500 

7. Software $0 $0 $0 

8. (al Other - MarketinQ/Communications $0 $0 $0 
8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0 $0 $0 
8. (c) Other - Other (please specify) 

Other (please specify) $0 $0 $0 
Other (please specify) $0 $0 $0 
Other (please specify) $0 $0 $0 
Other (please specify) $0 $0 $0 

9. Subcontracts $586,000 $0 $586,000 

Total Direct Costs $656,682 $0 $656,682 

Total Indirect Costs $14,568 $0 $14 ,568 

TOTAL $671,250 $0 $671 ,250 

r::. 
Contractor lnitials_E __ _ 

Page 1 of 1 Date 11/ 30/ 2022 
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BT-1 .0 Exhibit B-9, Amendment #4, Budget SS-2020-BDAS--08-FACI l·01 ·A04 

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Complete one budget form for each budget period. 

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. 
Contractor Name: 

Facilitating Integrated Medication for Opioid Use Disorder, 

Budget Request for: Postpartum and Parenting Women 

Budget Period FY24 - (July 1, 2023 - September 29, 2023) 

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 4.70% 

Program Cost• 
Program Cost • 

TOTAL Program 
Line Item Contractor Share/ 

Funded by DHHS 
Match 

Cost 

$18,310 $0 $18,310 
1. Salary & Wages 

2. Fringe Benefits $2 ,747 $0 $2,747 

3. Consultants $0 $0 $0 

4. Equipment $0 $0 $0 

5./a\ Suoolies • Educational $0 $0 $0 
5.(bl Supplies • Lab $0 $0 $0 
5./c\ Suoolies - Pharmacv $0 $0 $0 
5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0 $0 $0 
5./e\ Suoolies Office $3 ,670 $0 $3,670 

6. Travel $5,500 $0 $5,500 

7. Software $0 $0 $0 

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $0 $0 $0 
8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0 $0 $0 
8. (cl Other - Other (please specifvl 

Other (please specify) $0 $0 $0 
Other (please specify) $0 $0 $0 
Other (please specify) $0 $0 $0 
Other (please specify) $0 $0 $0 

9. Subcontracts $183,000 $0 $183,000 

Total Direct Costs $213,227 $0 $213,227 

Total Indirect Costs $10,523 $0 $10 ,523 

TOTAL $223,750 $0 $223,750 

~ Contractor Initials ;;;/iA., 

Page 1 of 1 
11/30/2022 Date __ _ 
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State of New Hampshire 

Department of State 

CERTIFICATE 

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE 

ASSOCIATIO , I C. is a New Hampshire onprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on January 

31, 1986. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good 

standing as far as this office is concerned. 

Business ID: 867IO 

Certificate Number: 0005767875 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, 

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed 

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire, 

this 28th day of April A.O. 2022. 

David M. Scanlan 

Secretary of State 
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY 

I, Ken Gordon ____ , hereby certify that: 
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory) 

1. I am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of ___ Bi-State Primary Care Association ____ _ 
(Corporation/LLC Name) 

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at an electronic meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly 
called and held by electronic vote as allowed by Bi-State's Bylaws, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders 
were present and voting . This vote occurred on November 29, 2022. The vote authorizes the signature (contract 
signature date effective 11/29/2022) as described below. 

(Date) 

VOTED: That _ ___ Georgia J . Maheras, SVP Policy and Strategy ______ _ (may list more than 
one person) 

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory) 

is duly authorized on behalf of _ Bi-State Primary Care Association to enter into contracts or agreements with the 
State 

(Name of Corporation/ LLC) 

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all 
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which 
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote. 

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the 
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for 
thirty (30) days from the date of th is Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of 
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the 
position(s) ind icated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any 
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in co tracts with the State of New Hampshire, 
all such lim(tations are expressly stated herein. \ 

Dated:#-
1 

(; ~c , ---~-·-- ....,..,_' -='2..,._, ~ -)~ --- ---- -

of Elected Officer 
n Gordon 
, Coos County Family Health Services 

Rev. 03/24/20 
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~ BISTATE-01 PCANTLIN 
ACORD' 

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MMIDDIYYYY) 

~ 11/28/2022 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions ·of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER License# AGR8150 2~~I~CT 
Clark Insurance rlJ8,NJo, Ext): (603) 622-2855 I r .. M. No):(603) 622-2854 One Sundial Ave Suite 302N 
Manchester, NH 03103 ioMnAJ~.,., . info@clarkinsurance.com 

INSURER/SI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURER A: Citizens Ins Co of America 31534 
INSURED INSURER B: Allmerica Financial Alliance 10212 

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. INSURERC : 
525 Clinton St INSURERD : 
Bow, NH 03304 

INSURER E: 

INSURER F: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER· REVISION NUMBER· 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE fr?s°} SJJ~f; POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXP LIMITS I TR tUUfDO/YYYY\ IMM/DD/YYYY\ 
A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000 

- :J CLAIMS-MADE [K] OCCUR ~~~b~H9~~~!,;~ncR\ 500,000 OBVA340840 7/1/2022 7/1/2023 s -
MED EXP /Anv one oerson\ s 5,000 

-
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY s 1,000,000 

-
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000 1 POLICY □ ~r8r 0 LOC PRODUCTS -COMP/OP AGG s 2,000,000 

OTHER: s 
A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT 

t~~ a ... ,..~""nt\ s 1,000,000 

ANY AUTO OBVA340840 7/1/2022 7/1/2023 BODILY INJURY /Per oerson\ $ - OWNED - SCHEDULED 
- AUTOS ONLY ,__ AUTOS BODILY INJURY /Per accident\ S 
X ~~~SONLY X ~8M~'-mt.~ PROPERTY DAMAGE 

/Per accident\ s - ,__ 
s 

A UMBRELLA LIAB M OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000 
- OBVA340840 7/1/2022 7/1/2023 1,000,000 EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s 

DED I I RETENTION s s 
8 WORKERS COMPENSATION X \ ~ffnlTF I I ~~H-

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/ N WKVA340821 7/1/2022 7/1/2023 500,000 ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE □ E.L. EACH ACCIDENT s 
~ FICER/M~MBER EXCLUDED? N/ A 500,000 ( andatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE S 

~l;~~FtfrJ~ 'c;'fgPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT s 500,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101 , Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 

State of NH ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 
Department of Health and Human Services 
129 Pleasant Street 
Concord, NH 03301 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

I 
~(\."1~ 'R~ 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved . 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 
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525 Clinton Street 
Bow, NH 03304 
Voice: 603-228-2830 

Fax:603-228-2464 

Vision 

BI-STATE PRlMARY CARE AssOCIATION 

www.bistatcpca.org 

61 Elm Street 
Montpelier, vr 05602 

Voice: 802-229-0002 
Fax: 802-223-2336 

Healthy individuals, families , and communities with equitable and quality health care for all. 

Mission 
Advance access to comprehensive primary care services for all , with 
special emphasis on those most in need in Vermont and New Hampshire. 
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6) BerryDunn 

BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE AsSOCIATION 

SERVING VERMONT & NEW HAMPSHIRE 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

and 

REPORTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS AND THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

With Independent Auditor's Reports 
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6) BerryDunn 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bi-State Primary Care 
Association, Inc. and Subsidiary (collectively, the Association) , which comprise the consolidated 
balance sheets as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 , and the related consolidated statements of operations 
and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the 
consolidated financial statements. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects , the financial position of the Association as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 , and the results of their 
operations, changes in their net assets, and their cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Association and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fai r presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there 
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the 
Association's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the consolidated 
financial statements are available to be issued. 

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Vi rgi nia • Arizona 

berrydunn.com 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. generally 
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is 
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made 
by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks. Such procedures include examining , on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts 
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Association 's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion 
is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate , that raise substantial doubt about the Association's ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding , among other matters, 
the planned scope and tim ing of the audit, significant audit findings , and certain internal control related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
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Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to 
the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects , in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 
23, 2022 on our consideration of the Association's internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Association's internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the Association's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

Portland, Maine 
September 23, 2022 
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Bl-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and other receivables 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Investments 
Deferred compensation investments 
Property and equipment, net 

Total assets 

ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries and related liabilities 
Deferred revenue 

Total current liabilities 

Deferred compensation payable 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 
Without donor restrictions 

Total liabilities and net assets 

2022 

$ 1,675,159 
1,016,104 

46,989 

2,738,252 

1,356,319 
199,679 
487,985 

$ 4,782,235 

$ 433,264 
251,377 
367,689 

1,052,330 

199,679 

1,252,009 

3,530,226 

$ 4,782,235 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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2021 

$ 1,539,885 
827,352 

59 181 

2,426,418 

1,355,591 
221 ,960 
301,630 

$ 4,305,599 

$ 425,806 
207,439 
157,662 

790,907 

221,960 

1,012 ,867 

3,292,732 

$ 4,305,599 
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Bl-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets 

Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 

Operating revenue 
Grant revenue 
Dues income 
Paycheck Protection Program 
Other revenue 

Total operating revenue 

Expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Subrecipient grant pass-through 
Subcontractors for program services 
Professional services 
Occupancy 
Other 
Depreciation 

Total expenses 

Operating income 

Other revenue 
Interest income 

Total other revenue 

Excess of revenue over expenses and increase in net 
assets without donor restrictions 

Net assets without donor restrictions, beginning of year 

Net assets without donor restrictions , end of year 

2022 

$ 4,653,564 
444,836 

358,053 

5,456,453 

2,563,706 
526,634 

1,118,722 
392,466 

82,540 
95,522 

411,630 
30,735 

5,221,955 

234,498 

2,996 

2,996 

237,494 

3,292,732 

$ 3,530,226 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consol idated financial statements. 
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2021 

$ 3,670,330 
407,150 
476,000 
264,209 

4,817,689 

2,194,037 
470,811 
603,172 
434,190 

67,879 
80,124 

409,700 
25,331 

4,285,244 

532,445 

2,623 

2,623 

535,068 

2,757,664 

$ 3,292 ,732 
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Bl-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 

2022 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Change in net assets $ 237,494 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 

provided by operating activities 
Depreciation 30,735 
(Increase) decrease in the following assets: 

Grants and other receivables (188,752) 
Prepaid expenses 12,192 

Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 7,458 
Accrued salaries and related liabilities 43,938 
Deferred revenue 210,027 
Paycheck Protection Program refundable advance 

Net cash provided by operating activities 353,092 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of property and equipment (217,090) 
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,809,742 
Purchase of investments (1,810,470) 

Net cash used by investing activities (217,818) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 135,274 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,539,885 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1,675,159 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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2021 

$ 535,068 

25,331 

(190,189) 
(13,261) 

248,023 
4,603 

112,656 
(476,000) 

246,231 

(55,805) 
1,355,000 

(2,255,262) 

(956,067) 

(709,836) 

2,249,721 

$ 1,539,885 
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Organization 

Bl-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

Bi-State Primary Care Association , Inc. (BSPCA) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in New 
Hampshire. The Association 's mission is to advance access to comprehensive primary care services 
for all , with special emphasis on those most in need in Vermont and New Hampshire. 

Subsidiary 

Center for Primary Health Care Solutions, LLC (CPHCS) is a limited liability company formed pursuant 
to the New Hampshire Limited Liability Company Act. CPHCS's primary purpose is to provide 
healthcare industry services and other industry-related consulting services. BSPCA is the sole member 
of CPHCS. 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of BSPCA and its subsidiary, CPHCS 
(collectively, the Association). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been 
eliminated in consolidation. 

Basis of Presentation 

The consolidated financial statements of the Association have been prepared in accordance with 
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP), which requires the Association to 
report information in the consolidated financial statements according to the following net asset 
classifications: 

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the 
Association. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Association's management 
and the Board of Directors. 

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and 
grantors. There were no net assets with donor restrictions at June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabil ities at the date of the consolidated financial 
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estim~tes. 

- 7 -
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Bl-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

Income Taxes 

BSPCA is a public charity under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). As a public 
charity, the entity is exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned in accordance 
with its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state and federal income tax. 

CPHCS is a limited liability company; however, for federal tax purposes, it is considered to be a 
disregarded entity and , as such , CPHCS's income, expenses, losses, gains, deductions and 
credits are reported on BSPCA's information return. Management believes the services provided 
by CPHCS are consistent with BSPCA's tax-exempt purpose and its revenue does not constitute 
unrelated business income. 

Management has evaluated BSPCA's tax positions and concluded that there are no unrelated 
business income or uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the consolidated financial 
statements. 

COVID-19 and Related Funding 

In March 2020, the World Health Association declared the 2019 novel coronavirus disease 
(COVID-19) a global pandemic and the United States federal government declared COVID-19 a 
national emergency. The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted and could further impact the 
Association's operations and the operations of the Association's members as a result of 
quarantines, travel and logistics restrictions. 

During April 2020, the Association received a loan in the amount of $476,000 pursuant to the 
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP), a program implemented by the U.S. Small Business 
Administration (SBA) under the Coronavirus Aid , Relief, and Economic Security Act and the 
Paycheck Protection Program and Health Care Enhancement Act. The principal amount of the 
PPP is subject to forgiveness, to the extent that the proceeds are used to pay qualifying 
expenditures, including payroll costs , rent and utilities, incurred by the Association during a specific 
covered period. The Association was notified in February 2021 the loan was fully forgiven by the 
SBA and the lender. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits and money market accounts. 

The Association has cash deposits in a major financial institution which exceeds federal depository 
insurance limits. Because business needs frequently require funds in excess of the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured amount of $250,000, all funds in the Merrimack 
County Savings Bank checking account are subject to a nightly sweep, which consists of high-yield 
savings accounts in other FDIC insured institutions with no individual institution exceeding FDIC 
limits. 

- 8 -
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Revenue 

Bl-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

Revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amount that reflects the consideration the 
Association expects to receive in exchange for providing program services to New Hampshire and 
Vermont community health centers. These amounts generally do not include variable 
consideration since the amounts are determined ahead of the provision of services, programs, or 
memberships. Generally, the Association bills the community health centers directly. Revenue is 
recognized as performance obligations are satisfied. The Association expects the period of time 
between the provision of service and receipt of payment for the service to be one year or less. The 
Association provides program services for stated annual dues. The Association typically receives 
the payments quarterly for membership dues. The Association also provides event services for a 
stated registration fee. The Association also receives sponsorships for the events and programs. 
Pricing and terms of event services are established by the Association. Typically, payments are 
received in advance of the program or event. Any amounts received before the beginning of the 
contract period are recorded as deferred revenue. 

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the 
Association. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized for the general 
benefits provided. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to membership 
dues. The Association measures the period over which the performance obligation is satisfied from 
the start of the membership period until the end of the fiscal year and recognizes revenue on a 
straight-line basis over this period. Revenue for performance obligations related to event services, 
which are satisfied at a point in time, are based upon the stated contract price (registration fee or 
sponsorship) for the agreed upon performance obligation. 

Accounts receivable and deferred revenue related to revenue from contracts with customers was 
as follows at June 30: 

Accounts receivable 
Deferred revenue 

2022 2021 

$ 59,931 $ 
114,633 

29,568 
22,750 

U.S. GAAP requires disclosure of opening balances of contracts receivable and deferred revenue 
which amounted to $29,349 and $6,750, respectively , at July 1, 2020. 

Grants and Other Receivables 

Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from 
outstanding balances. All such amounts are considered collectible. 

A portion of the Association 's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable grants, which are 
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying 
expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Association has incurred 
expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts received prior to 
incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as deferred revenue. The Association has been 
awarded cost reimbursable grants of $9,710,054 that have not been recognized at June 30, 2022 , 
because qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred. 

- 9 -
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Bl-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

The Association receives a significant amount of grants from the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services (DHHS). As with all government funding , these grants are subject to reduction or 
termination in future years. For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, grants from DHHS 
(including both direct awards and awards passed through other Associations) represented 
approximately 80% and 83%, respectively, of grant revenue. 

Investments and Investment Income 

Investments in equity securities with readily-determinable fair values and all investments in debt 
securities are measured at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets. Investment income or 
loss (including gains and losses on investments, interest, and dividends) is included in the change 
in net assets without donor restrictions unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law. 

Investments are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate , credit, and overall market volatility. 
As such , it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments will occur in the near 
term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the consolidated 
balance sheets. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance, repairs 
and minor renewals are expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized. 
Provision for depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the 
related assets. The Association's capitalization policy is applicable for acquisitions greater than 
$5,000. 

Contributions 

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the 
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor 
restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit use of the donated assets. When a 
donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is 
accomplished , net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without donor 
restrictions and reported in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets 
as net assets released from restriction. Contributions whose restrictions are met in the same 
period as the support is received are recognized as net assets without donor restrictions. 

Subsequent Events 

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements, management has 
considered transactions or events occurring through September 23, 2022, the date that the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated 
subsequent events after that date for inclusion in the consolidated financial statements. 

- 10 -
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Bl-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

2. Availability and Liquidity of Financial Assets 

The Association regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other 
contractual commitments. The Association has various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including 
cash and cash equivalents, investments and a $350,000 line of credit (Note 5). 

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year were as follows at June 30: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Grants and other receivables 

Financial assets available to meet general 
expenditures within one year 

2022 2021 

$ 1,675,159 $ 1,539,885 
1,356,319 1,355,591 
1,016,104 827,352 

$ 4,047,582 $ 3,722,828 

The Association had average days cash and cash equivalents on hand of 91 and 118 at June 30, 
2022 and 2021 , respectively. The Association manages its cash available to meet general 
expenditures following three guiding principles: 

• Operating within a prudent range of financial soundness and stability ; 

• Maintaining an average days cash on hand of 90 to 180 days; and 

• Maintaining sufficient reserves to provide reasonable assurance that long-term 
commitments and obligations will continue to be met, ensuring the sustainability of the 
Association. 

3. Investments and Deferred Compensation Investments 

Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 820, Fair 
Value Measurement, defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 
to transfer a liability (an exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants, and also 
establishes a fair value hierarchy wh ich requ ires an entity to maximize the use of observable 
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The fair value 
hierarchy within ASC Topic 820 distingu ishes three levels of inputs that may be util ized when 
measuring fair value: 

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the 
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date. 

Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for 
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other 
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data. 

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the 
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. 

- 11 -
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4. 

Bl-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the 
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques 
used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 

The fair market value of the Association 's investments and deferred compensation plan 
investments are measured on a recurring basis. The following table sets forth the Association's 
assets by level within the fair value hierarchy at June 30: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Mutual funds 
Exchange traded funds 
U.S. treasury bills 

Total 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Mutual funds 
Exchange traded funds 
U.S. treasury bills 

Total 

2022 
Level1 Level2 Level3 

$ 4,641 $ $ 
33,573 

162,041 
1,355,743 

$ 200,255 $ 1,355,743 $=== 

2021 
Level 1 Level2 Level3 

$ 4,602 $ $ 
55,390 

162,816 
1 354 743 

$ 222 ,808 $ 1,354,743 $==== 

U.S. treasury bills are valued based on quoted market prices of similar assets. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30: 

2022 

Land $ 50,000 
Build ings and improvements 659,382 
Furniture and equipment 50,457 

Total cost 759,839 

Less accumulated depreciation 271,854 

Property and equipment, net $ 487,985 

- 12 -

Total 

$ 4,641 
33,573 

162,041 
1,355,743 

$ 1,555,998 

Total 

$ 4,602 
55,390 

162,816 
1 354 743 

$ 1 577 551 

2021 

$ 50,000 
479,579 

44 556 

574,135 

272 ,505 

$ 301 ,630 
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Bl-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

5. Line of Credit 

The Association has a $350,000 unsecured revolving line of credit with a local bank payable on 
demand. The interest rate on the line of credit is Prime plus 1 % with a 5% floor (5. 75% at June 30, 
2022). There was no outstanding balance on the line of credit at June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

6. Functional Expenses 

The Association provides various services to residents within its geographic location. As the 
Association is a service Association , expenses are allocated between program services and 
administrative support based on the percentage of program and administrative support wages, 
respectively , to total wages, with the exception of grant pass-through expenses and 
subcontractors for program services which are 100% program in nature. Expenses related to 
providing these services are as follows for the years ended June 30: 

2022: 

Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Subrecipient grant pass-through 
Subcontractors for program services 
Professional services 
Occupancy 
Other 
Depreciation 

Total 

2021: 

Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Subrecipient grant pass-through 
Subcontractors for program services 
Professional services 
Occupancy 
Other 
Depreciation 

Total 

$ 

Program 
Services 

General and 
Administrative 

1,796,065 $ 
368,946 

1,118,722 
392,466 

57,825 
66,920 

288,377 
21,532 

767,641 $ 
157,688 

24,715 
28,602 

123,253 
9,203 

Total 

2,563,706 
526,634 

1,118,722 
392,466 

82,540 
95,522 

411,630 
30,735 

$ 4,110,853 $ 1,111,102 $ 5,221,955 

$ 

Program 
Services 

General and 
Administrative 

1,526,564 $ 
320,098 
603,172 
434,190 

45,118 
53,257 

272,317 
16 837 

667,473 $ 
150,713 

22,761 
26,867 

137,383 
8 494 

Total 

2,194,037 
470,811 
603,172 
434,190 

67,879 
80,124 

409,700 
25 331 

$ 3,271 ,553 $ 1 013 691 $ 4,285,244 

- 13 -
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Bl-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

7. Retirement Plans 

The Association offers a defined contribution plan to eligible employees. The Association's 
contributions to the plan for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 amounted to $96,240 and 
$87,989, respectively. 

The Association has established a deferred compensation plan for eligible employees in 
accordance with Section 457(b) of the IRC. The fair value of the assets and related liabilities for 
employee contributions to the plan are reflected in the consolidated balance sheets as deferred 
compensation investments and deferred compensation payable, respectively. 

8. Related Party Transactions 

The Association 's Board of Directors is composed of senior officials of Associations who are 
members of the Association. The following is a schedule of services provided to and (by) these 
Associations. 

Dues income 
Other revenue 

National government relations capacity building 
Purchased services and event registrations 

Subcontractors for program services 
Subrecipient grant pass-through 

- 14 -

$ 167,520 $ 

120,000 
27,353 
(5,423) 

(559,941) 

180,760 

97,650 
(93,908) 

(272,971) 
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Bl-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Assistance 
Federal Grant/Pass-Through Listing 

GrantorlProgram Title Number 

U.S. Degartment of Health and Human Services: 
Direct: 

Technical and Non-Financial Assistance to 
Health Centers 93.129 

COVID-19 Technical and Non-Financial Assistance 
to Health Centers 93.129 

Total AL 93.129 

Rural Health Care Services Outreach, Rural 
Health Network Development and Small Health 
Care Provider Quality Improvement 93.912 

Passthroug_h: 
Health Center Program Cluster 

Community Health Access Network 
Affordable Care Act (ACA) Grants for New and 

Expanded Services Under the Health Genier 
Program 93.527 

Medicaid Cluster 
State of New Hamgshire Oegartment of Health and Human Services 

Medical Assistance Program 93.778 
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 

Total Medicaid Cluster and AL 93.778 

Harvard University 
Training in General , Pediatric, and Public Health 

Dentistry 93.059 

State of New Hamgshire Degartment of Health and Human Services 
Protection and Advocacy for Individuals with Mental 
Illness 93.138 

State of New Hamgshire Degartment of Health and Human Services 
COVID-19 Activities to Support State, Tribal , Local 
and Territorial (STL T) Health Department 
Response to Public Health or Healthcare Crises 

State of Vermont Degartment of Health 
Improving the Health of Americans through 

Prevention and Management of Diabetes and 
Heart Disease and Stroke 

Improving the Health of Americans through 
Prevention and Management of Diabetes and 
Heart Disease and Stroke 

Total AL 93.426 

93.391 

93.426 

93.426 

State of New Hamgshire Degartment of Health and Human Services 
Opioid STR 93.788 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 
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Pass-Through 
Contract 
Number 

nla 

102-5000731-47000144 
102-5000731-90075001 
102-5000731-90072009 

158303.5116168.0102 

102-5000731-90080500 

05-95-94-940010-2465 & 
05-95-95-950010-

19920000 

03420-09243 

03420-08851 

nla 

$ 

Total Amount Passed 
Federal Through to 

Ex12enditures Sub-reci1;1ients 

1,912,461 $ 

150,267 

2,062,728 

258,852 113,556 

481 ,030 

103,267 

38,359 

141 ,626 

25,096 2,048 

24,400 

169,679 169,679 

31,442 

22,195 

53,637 

402,306 344 ,246 
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Bl-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Concluded) 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Federal Grant/Pass-Through 
Granter/Program Title 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services: 
Passthrouqh: 

State of Vermont Department of Health 
Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for 

State, Territorial and Tribal Organizations 
Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for 

State, Territorial and Tribal Organizations 

Total AL 93.898 

Assistance 
Listing (AL) 

Number 

93.898 

93.898 

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to 

the States 93.994 

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

U.S. Department of the Treasury 
Passthrouqh: 

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
COVID-19 Coronavirus State And Local Fiscal 

Recovery Funds 21.027 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Passthrouqh: 

Vermont Technical College 
H-18 Job Training Grants 17.268 

Total Expenditure of Federal Awards , All Programs 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 
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Pass-Through 
Contract 
Number 

03420-08486 

03420-09063 

102-5000731-90004009 

05-95-94-940010-2465 & 
05-95-95-950010-

19920000 

n/a 

$ 

Total 
Federal 

Expenditures 

8,359 

15,893 

24,252 

6,182 

3,649,788 

572,119 

446 

4,222,353 

Amount Passed 
Through to 

Sub-recipients 

629,529 

489,193 

$ 1,118,722 
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Bl-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) are 
reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost 
principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) , 
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 

2. De Minimis Indirect Cost Rate 

Bi-State Primary Care Association , Inc. and Subsidiary (collectively, the Association) has not 
elected to use the 10% de minim is indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

3. Basis of Presentation 

The Schedule includes the federal grant activity of the Association. The information in this 
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Because 
the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Association, it is not 
intended to and does not present the financial position , changes in net assets, or cash flows of 
the Association. 

- 17 -
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6) BerryDunn 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR;S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Directors 
Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary 

We have audited , in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the consol idated financial statements of Bi-State Primary Care 
Association, Inc. and Subsidiary (collectively, the Association}, wh ich comprise the consolidated 
balance sheet as of June 30, 2022, and the related consolidated statements of operations and 
changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 23, 2022. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the 
Association's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements , but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Association's internal control. Accordingly , we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Association's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented , or detected and corrected , on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona 

berrydunn.com 
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Board of Directors 
Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Association's consolidated financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have 
a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and , accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Association's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Association's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly , this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Portland, Maine 
September 23, 2022 
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6) BerryDunn 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR THE MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Board of Directors 
Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary 

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program 

Opinion on the Major Federal Program 

We have audited Bi-State Primary Care Association , Inc. and Subsidiary's (collectively, the 
Association) compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in 
the Office of Management and Budget Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2022. The Association's major federal 
program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the Association complied , in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year 
ended June 30, 2022. 

Basis for Opinion on the Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards; 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform 
Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of 
our report. 

We are required to be independent of the Association and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for the 
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Association's 
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requ irements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules , and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the 
Association's federal programs. 

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona 

berrydunn.com 
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Board of Directors 
Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the Association 's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards and the 
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting 
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion , forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Association 's compliance with the requirements 
of the major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Government 
Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance, we : 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining , on a test basis, evidence regarding the Association 's compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the Association 's internal control over compliance relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association's internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly , no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding , among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions , to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

- 21 -
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Board of Directors 
Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify 
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Portland, Maine 
September 23, 2022 
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Bl-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Section 1. Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting : 
Material weakness(es) identified? □ Yes 0 No 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 

considered to be material weakness(es)? □ Yes 0 None reported 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? □ Yes 0 No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified : □ Yes 0 No 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 

considered to be material weakness(es)? □ Yes 0 None reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? □ Yes 0 No 

Identification of major programs: 

Assistance Listing Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

93.129 Technical and Non-Financial Assistance to Health Centers 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and 
Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

Section 2. Financial Statement Findings 

None 

Section 3. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None 
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525 Clinton Street 
Bow, NH 03304 
Voice: 603-228-2830 
Fax:603-228-2464 

BI-STATE PRIMARY C.W AssoclATlON 
61 Ehn Street 

Montpelier, vr 056o2 
Voice: 802-229-0002 

Fax: 802-223-2336 
SERVL'lG VERMONT & NEW liAMPsHIRE 

www.bistatepca.org 

BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION 
FY23 Board of Directors (July 2022-June 2023) 

Board Chair: 
Gregory White, CPA, CHFP 

Chief Executive Officer 
Lam re Health Care 

Board Vice Chair: 
Dan Bennett 

Chief Executive Officer 
Gifford Health Care 

Board Se-cretary: 
Kenneth Gordon 

Chief Executive Officer 
Coos Co · Services 

Gall Audair, MSM, BSN, RN 
Chief Executive Officer 
Little Rivers Health Care 

Kayla Davis 
Co-Executive Director 

Batten.kill Valle Health Center 

Board Immediate Past Chair: 
Martha Halnon, CPC, CAPPM, CMPE 

Chief Executive Officer 
Mountain Health Center 

Board Treasurer: 
Edward Shanshala, II, MSHSA, MSEd 

Executive Director/Chief Executive Officer 

Mkhat'l Costa 
Chief Executive Officer 

Northern Counties Health Care 

Robert MacLeod 
Chief Executive Officer 
Mid-State Health Center 
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION 
FY23 Board of Directors (July 2022 - June 2023) 
Page2 

Stuart May 
Chief Executive Officer 
Lamoille Health Partners 

FY23 Bi-State Board of Directors Committet' Chairs: 
• Executive Committee: Greg Wl1ite 
• Finance and Audit Committee: Ed Shanshala 
• National Government Relations Committee: Greg Wllite 
• NH Government Relations Committee: Robert MacLeod 
• Governance and Operations Committee: Ken Gordon 
■ Planning and Member Services Committee: (Chair TBD) 
• VT FQHC CEO Council: Michael Costa 
■ VT Government Relations Committee: Michael Costa 

Anna Thomas 
Public Health Director 

City of Manchester Health Department 
CEO, Health Care for the Homeless 
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James A. Zibailo 

OBJECTIVE: 

To use my skill set and experience to improve access to cost-effective, quality care for the people of New 
Hampshire. 

WORK EXPERIENCE: 

Bi-State Primary Care Association 

Director, New Hampsllire Commt1nity Health Systems 

2010-Present 
Bow,NH 

2016-Present 

Responsible for leading state and regional business initiatives to improve access to cost-effective, quality care 
for the people of New Hampshire. 

• Provided day-to-day management of an seven member Management Services Organization (MSO) focused 
on state and federal payment refom1 initiatives, including value-based payment 

• Negotiated and implemented value-based payment agreements with New Hampshire health plans 
• Developed and implemented strategies for integration of health care service delivery 
• Managed and worked with multiple consultants/contractors to provide financial technical assistance to Bi­

State members (including an annual financial analysis of the Federally Qualified Health Centers) 
• Fostered collaborative relationships with the State of New Hampshire, the health plans operating in New 

Hampshire, tlle FQHCs, and other partner DHHS organizations 

Community Development and Financial Services Coordi11ator 2010-2016 

Responsible for supporting statewide and community-based primaiy health care initiatives and for providing 
financial technical assistance to Bi-State members to: 1) Increase access to health care for the low income and 
uninsured; 2) Maintain and strengthen the financial sustainability of New Han1pshire's community health 
centers; and 3) hnprove the quality of care 

• Provided technical assistai1ce to community organizations to develop or enhance primary care delivery sites 
• Conducted educational sessions and provided guidance on HRSA requirements and policies 
• Completed the NH Statewide Strategic Plan to assess mm1et health care needs in the state 
• Facilitated discussions with the New Hampshire Medicaid office to develop an Alternative Payment 

Methodology for Medicaid reimbursement to health centers 
• Coordinated the review of managed care and commercial insurance contracts on behalf of Bi-State members 

to reduce use of health center resources and strengthen agreements 
• Supported the NH Director of Public Policy in efforts to sustain and increase health center funding 

The Beacon Group 2006-2009 
Portland, ME 

The Beacon Group is a strategy consulting firm focused on supporting a select group of Fortune 500 client~ as 
they build strategies and tactics to win in their marketplaces. 

Director of Operations 2008-2009 

I of2 
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James A. Zibailo 
Responsible for creating, sustaining, and improving the support infrastructure necessary for day-to-day 
operations of the firm including HR, IT, and Facilities 

• Worked with firm leadership to develop and execute hiring plan 
- Developed more formalized HR process for hiring 

• Developed and executed training program for new employees 
• Supervised all administrative staff 
• Managed all facilities related issues within firm 

Manager 2006-2008 

• Assisted in building Beacon's health care practice 
• Performed the role of Project Manager/team leader, managing all aspects of client engagements 
• Contributed to building long-term relationships and developing new business with existing clients 
• Served as a mentor to junior firm members 

Bi-State Primary Care Association 2004-2006 
Program Manager - Communi(v Development Concord, NH 
• Worked with Communities in early stages of community change 
• Assisted in the development of new health care delivery sites in medically underserved areas 
• Coordinated federal chronic health care quality improvement initiative in New Hampshire and Vermont 
• Reviewed grants for the US Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Primary Health Care 

The Beacon Group 2002-2003 
Consultant Portsmouth, NH 
• Performed research and analysis on multiple projects across various industries and business functions 
• Executed rigorous analyses of findings and assisted in the writing and presentation of project deliverables 

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 1998-2002 
Health Planning Analyst/Research Associate Concord, NH 
• Supported the Office's health policy and planning functions through directed research and analysis 

• Compiled and prepared raw data and statistical reports 

EDUCATION: 

University of Southern Maine, Muskie School of Public Service Portland, ME 
• Masters Degree - All but Capstone Project complete 
• Program: Public Policy and Management 

• Track of Study: Policy Analysis 

University of New Hampshire Durham, NH 
• BS Degree, 1999 
• Major: Health Management and Policy 
• Focus on Public Health and Health Policy 

ADDITIONAL SKILLS: 

• Communication skills, Computer skills, Critical thinking, Facilitation, Time management and Perfom1ing Arts 

REFERENCES: 

• Available upon request 

2 of2 
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KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL 

NH Department of Health and Human Services 

Vendor Name: Bi-State Primary Care Association 

SS-2020-BDAS-08-F ACI L-0t-A03 Facilitating Organization for Integrated 
Name of Program/Service: Medica tion Assisted Treatment for Pregnant and Post Partum Women 

BUDGET PERIOD: SFY23 (September 30, 2022-June 30, 2023) 

Annual Salary of Percentage of Total Salary 
Key Administrative Salary Paid by Amount Paid by 

Name & Title Key Administrative Personnel Personnel Contract Contract 

James Zibailo, Director, NH Community Health Systems $100,717 33.85% $34,089.00 

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) $34,089.00 
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KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL 

NH Department of Health and Human Services 

Vendor Name: Bi-State Primary Care Association 

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A03 Facilitating Organization for Integrated 
Name of Program/Service: Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant and Post Partum Women 

BUDGET PERIOD: SFY24 (July 1, 2023-September 29, 2023) 

Annual Salary of Percentage of Total Salary 
Key Administrative Salary Paid by Amount Paid by 

Name & Title Key Administrative Personnel Personnel Contract Contract 

James Zibailo , Director, NH Community Health Systems $103,738 10.77% $11,172.00 

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) $11,172.00 
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JUN08'2'2 AN 8:53 RCIJD 

Lori A. Sblblatltt 
Commiwoatr 

Klrja S. Fo1 
Dirtctor 

.1 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

119 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301 
603-271-9544 J-800-852.J345 Ext. 9544 

Fu: 603-27J~332 TDD Access: J-800-735-2964 -.dhbs.nll.gov 

June 2, 2022 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Authorize the Department ofHealth and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, 
to amend an existing contract with Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. (VC#166695-B001) 
Bow, NH, to facilitate certain providers to deliver integrated medication treatment for pregnant, 
postpartum and parenting women, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price 
limitation by $50,000 from $2,101,692 to $2,151,692 and extending the completion date from 
June 30, 2022 to September 29, 2022, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% 
Federal Funds. 

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on November 6, 2019, item 
#10, amended with Governor and Council appro·val on January 22, 2021, item #19, and most 
recently amended ~h Governor and Council approvcil on September 15, 2021, item #16J. 

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with the 
authority to adjust budge~ line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state 
fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified. 

0S.95-92-920510-25590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH ANO HUMAN SVCS 
DEPT, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, 
STR GRANT 

State 
Fiscal 
Year 

2020 

Class I Job Current 
Increased 

Revised 
Account Class Title Number Budget (Decreased) 

Budget Amount 

102-500731 · Contracts for' 92052559 $600,000 $0 $600,000 
Prog Svc 

Subtotal $600,000 $0 '600,000 

'I'M lkporlnunl o/ Health and. Human &rui~•• Miui.M iB to join communil~$ and fami/ie, 
in providing opporlllnities /or citiuns l-0 achieve health and independtnce. 
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sunoo u 
· and the Honorable Council 
Page 2of 3 

05-92-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS 
DEPT, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEAL TH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES 
SOR GRANT · ' 

State Class/ Job Current Increased 
Fiscal Class Title (Decreased) Revised 

Year Account Number Budget Amount Budget 

2020 102-500731 Contracts for 92057040 $156,945 $0 $156,945 
Prog Svc 

2021 102-500731 Contracts for ·92057040 $300,000 $0 $300,000 
Prog Svc 

2021 102-500731 Contracts for 9207046 $522,374 $0 $522,374 
Prog Svc 

2022 102-500731 Contracts for 92057046 
$174,124 $0 $174,124 

• Prog Svc 

Grants for $348,249 $0 $348;249 
2022 074-500585 Pub Asst and 92057048 

Rel 

2023 074-500589 Welfare 92057048 $0 $50,000 $50,000 
Assistance 

Subtotal $1,501,692 $50,000 $1,551,692 

Total $2,101,692 $60,000 $2,151,692 

EXPLANATION 

The purpose of this request is to continue facilitating the participation of certain Federally 
Qualified Hea.lth Centers (FQHCs) to provide medications for. substance use disorder (MSU0), 
formerly referr~ to as medication assisted treatment, and an array of necessary supports to 
pregnant, postpartum, and parenting women diagnosed with opioid use disorder (OU0), along 
with their newborn and infant children. 

The Contractor shall continue the currently contracted role as a facilitating organization 
(FO) to support at least two (2) subcontracted FQHCs to increase their capacity to provide and to 
deliver comprehensive integrated MSUD services and supports. The FO will provide project 
management, organizational support, and ensure compliance for themselves and all 
subcontracted sites with contract, State, and Federal regulations and standards. 

The subcontracted FQHCs will provide integrated MSUD, meaning that not only will 
pregnant, postpartum. and parenting women diagnosed with OUD receive necessary MSUD, they 
will also receive additional targeted, integrated services such as: obstetrical/gynecological care; 
Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome care; childblrth and parenting education; employment support 
and assistance with applying ·for and obtaining benefits appropriate for pregnant, postpartum, and 
parenting women. such as enrolling in Medicaid; food arid housing services; transportation; al')d 
childcare. MSUD is the use of medications, in combination with counseling and behavioral 
therapies, to provide a "whole-patient" approach to the treatment of OUD. 
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In addition to continuing to support providers in delivering comprehensive integrated 
MSUD services and supports for the target population, the Contractor will collaborate with local 
and regional public health and provider networks, including the Doorways and recovery 
community organizations, to align and coordinate substance misuse treatment and recovery 
support services. 

Approximately 70 individuals will be served from July 1, 2022 to September 29, 2022. 

The Department will continue to monitor contracted services by reviewing reports, surveys 
and other necessary data; critical and sentinel event reports; and performance measures 
indicating the effectiveness of the Contractor and the delivery of services under this agreement. 

As referenced In Exhibit C-1 of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the 
agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, 
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department 
is exercising its option to renew services for the remaining three (3) months of available renewal. 
In part, this decision is based on the fact that the · subcontracted FQHCs have been integral 
partners and suppo"rts for the Regional Doorway system and continuing funding these contracts 
will avoid creating critical service gaps. 

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, pregnant, post-partum, and 
parenting women in New Hampshire diagnosed with OUD and their infants and children may not 
receive the treatment necessary to overcome their addiction and may also not receive important 
parenting-specific services and supports which could improve the mothers' health and wellbeing 
as well as that of their infants and children. Not receiving these needed ~rvices could lead to 
serious health and social consequences, including overdose, incarceration, or death for the 
mother; involvement with DCYF, which may include termination of custody; and increased 
likelihood of being unsheltered and/or unemployed. 

Area served: Statewide 

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds. Assistance Listing #93. 788, FAIN# H79TI083326. 

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be 
requested to support this program. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~ f-hJ ~ 
Lori A Shibinette 
Commissioner 
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State of New Hampshire 
Department of Health and Human Services 

Amendment #3 

This Amendment to the Facilitating Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant, 
Postpartum and Parenting Women contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, 
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Bi-State Primary Care 
Association, Inc. ("the Contractor"). 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive 
Council on November 6, 2019 (Item #10), as amended on January 22., (Item #19), and on 
September 15, 2021 (Item #16J), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upo'n 
the terms·and conditions specified in the Contract as amended, and in consideration of certain . 
sums specified; and · 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, 
Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2, Renewal, Subsection 2.1, the Contract may 
be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive 
Council; and 

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, 
and modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions 
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows : 

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1. 7, Completion Date, to read: 

se·ptember 29, 2022 

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read : 

$2,151,692. 

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read :. 

Robert W. Moore, Director. 

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, _Subsection 2.1, Program 
Requirements, Paragraph 2.2.1, to read: 

2.1.1 The Contractor shall enter into agreements with a minimum of two (2) 
Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs) hereinafter referred to as Sites, 
to increase their capacity to provide and to deliver comprehensive, 
integrated Medication Assisted Treatment (iMAT) services and supports for 
pregnant, postpartum, and parenting women wi~h opioid use disorders 
(OUD), and their newborn and infant children. The Contractor shall ensure: 

2.1.1.1 Preference is given to FQHCs in Coos, Rockingham, Hillsborough, 
Merrimack; Strafford, and Cheshire counties, which are areas that 
are not currently served by an organization under contract with the 
Department to provide MAT for pregnant and postpartum women. 

. 2.1.1.2 Agreements with prospective Sites are executed only after review 
and approval of the Department. 

5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsection 2.2, 
Medication Assisted Treatment, Paragraph 2.2.2 by adding Subparagraphs 2.2.2.9 and 

Bi-State Primary Care Association , Inc. 

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A03 

A-S-1 .2 
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Contractor Initials J ~o.S 
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Date ___ _ 
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2.2.2.10, to read: 

2.2.2.9 Provides interim services that must include, but are.not limited to, Recovery 

2.2.2.10 

Support Services {RSS) as needed by the client. · 

Develops · collaborative relationships with Recovery Community 
Organizations and other RSS partners to provide additional services not 
available through the Site, including, but not limited to: 

2:2.2.10.1 Certified Recovery Supp!)rt Workers: 

2.2.2.10.2 Medically Assisted° Peer Recovery Support Groups or Peer 
Recovery Support Groups. 

2.2.2.10.3 Family Support Groups. 

2.2.2.10.4 Parent Education and Training. 

2.2.2.10.5 Referral to community-based programs to support recovery. 

6. Modify Exhibit~. Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsection 2.3, Integrated 
Services and Supports, Paragraph. 2.3.1, to read: 

2.3.1. The Contractor shall work with the Sites, as identified in Section 2.1.1, to enhance 
their capacity and to deliver integrated services and supports for prenatal and 
postpartum care, provide parenting support and education for parents, and 
recovery support services, utilizing evidence-based practices and curricula when 
available and appropriate, in coordination with the MAT services in Section 2.2, 
including, but not limited to: 

2.3.1.1. Obstetrical/gynecological (08/Gyn} services. 

2.3.1.2. Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome (NAS} services. 

2.3.1 .3. Family support services. 

2.3.1.4. Resource/Employment specialists. 

2.3.1.5. Case managemenUCare coordination. 

2.3.1.6. Childbirth education. 

2.3.1.7. Safe sleep education. 

2.3.1.8. Parenting and personaldevelopment education groups, programs, and 
activities, which integrate the parenting education curriculum with 
addiction treatment so that participants have the opportunity to learn 
about the impact of substance use on family functioning and healthy 
child development. This may include, but is not limited to the following 
programs: 

2.3.1.8.1. Mornings Out. 

2.3.1.8.2. Sober Parenting Journey. 

2.3.1.8.3. Health education, including practices for safe storage of 
medication and preventing diversion of mf:ldications. 

2.3.1.8.4. Supporting and mentoring leadership of group therapy for 
participating women. 

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. 

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A03 
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2.3.1.8.5. Educational sessions to all pregnancy groups that include, 
but are not limited to "The Period of Purple Crying," safe 
sleep practices and car seat safety and are integrated with 
newborn nursery and outpatient pediatric follow up. 

7. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsection 2.3, Integrated 
Services and Supports, Paragraph. 2.3.2, by adding Subparagraph 2.3.2.7, Part 2.3.2. 7.5, 
to read: 

2.3.2.7.5 Recovery Support Services. 

8. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsection 2.3, Integrated 
Services and Supports, Paragraph. 2.3.4, to read: 

. . 

2.3.4. The Contractor shall assist Sites in engaging and collaborating with local/regional 
referral networks and community partners to increase awareness of the program, 
align and coordinate services across networks, and enable the program to be 
utilized to its greatest capacity. These partners include, but are not limited to: 

2.3.4.1. Regional Public Health Networks. 

2.3.4.2. Integrated Delivery Networks. 

2.3.4.3. Family Resource Center(s). 

2.3.4.4. Recovery Community Organizations. 

2.3.4.5. Doorways. 

9. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to read : 

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred 
ih the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved 
line item, as specified in ·Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-7 Amendment #3 
Budget. 

10. Add Exhibit B-7, Amendment #3, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by 
reference herein. · 

Oo<:uSlgnt<I by: 

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. 
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain 
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below, 

6/3/2022 

Date 

6/3/2022 

Date 

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. 

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A03 

State of New Hampshire 
Department of Health and Human Services 

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. 

Title: VP, Policy and strategy 

A-S-1.2 

Page 4 of 5 
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The preceding Amendment, having been revi'ewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and 
execution. 

6/4/2022 

Date 

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Q
Oo<uSlgnod by: 

~:11'\, {J....,,,..;'<U> . 
~R9'Q¥~ Guarino 

Title: Attorney 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was ·approved by the Governor and Executive Council of 
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: _______ {date of meeting) 

Date 

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. 

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A03 

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

Name: 
Title: 

A-S-1.2 
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BT-1.0 Exibil 8-7 Amendment #3 Budget SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A03 

New Hampsh\re Department of Health and Human Services 

Line Item 

1. Salary & Wages 

2. FrinQe Benefits 

3. Consultanls 

4. Equipment 

5.Cal Suoolies • Educational 
5.(b) Supplies • Lab 
5.(c) Suoolies - Pharmacy 
5.(d) Supplies - Medical 
5.(el Supplies Office 

6. Travel 

7. Software 

8.- (al Other• Marlletina/Communications 
8. (bl Other • Education and Trainino 
8. (c) Other • Other (please soecify) 

Other (please specify) · 
Other (please specify) 
Other (please specify) 

9. Subcontracts (Lamprey & Amoskeag) 

Complete one budget form for each budget period. 

Contractor Name: Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. 

Budget Request for: Facilitating Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment Pregnant, 

Budget Period FY23 

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 10% deminimis . 

Program Cost -
Funded by DHHS 

$13,047 

$1 ,957 

$0 

$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

$450 

$0 

$0 

so 
$0 

$0 
so 
$0 

$30,000 

Total Di rect Costs $45 ,454 

Total Indirect Costs $4,546 

TOTAL $50 000 

Page 1 of 1 

Program Cost -
TOTAL Program 

Contractor Share/ 
Match 

Cost 

$0 $13,047 

$0 $1,957 

$0 $0 

so $0 

$0 $0 
$0 $0 
so $0 
$0 $0 
so $450 

$0 $0 

so $0 

$0 $0 
so so 

so $0 
so $0 
$0 $0 

$0 $30,000 

$0 S45,454 

$0 $4 ,546 

so $50,000 

OS 

Contractor Initial 
Dal 2 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6899B552-CCAE-4A68-BAD1-86FBD1 FC60A7 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6E96D43B-8443-45AB-9169-46BA4451249B 

· Lori A. St!lblntttr 
Com111lsslontr 

Kttja S. Fo:i 
Dlrtclor 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVlCES 

DIVISION FOR BEHA VJORAL HEALTH 

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301 
603-271-9544 l-800-8S2-J345 E1L 9544 

Fu: 603-271-43Jl TDD Access: l-800-735-296-4 www.dhbs.nh,&ov 

August 26, 2021 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Diyision for Behavioral Health, 
to amend an existing contract with Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. (VC#166695-B001), 
Bow, NH to facilitate certain providers to deliver integrated medication treatment for pregnant, 
postpartum and parenting women by exercising a renewal option by increasing the price limitation . 
by $348,249 from $1,753,443 to $2,101,692 and by extending the completion date from 
September 29, 2021 to June 30, 2022 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% 
Federal Funds. · 

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on November 6, 2019, item 
#10 and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on January 22, 2021, item 
#19. 

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2022, with the authority 
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years 
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified. 

o·s-95-92-920510-25590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS 
DEPT, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, 
STRGRANT . 

State Class I Job Current Increased Revised Fiscal Account Class Title Number· Budget (Decreased) Budget . Year Amount 

2020 102-500731 
Contracts for 92052559 $600,000 $0 $600,000 
Prog Svc 

Subtotal $600,000 $0 $600,000 

05-92-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH -~ND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS 
DEPT, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, 
SORG~NT 

State 
Fiscal 
Year· 

Class/ Job Current Increased Revised 
Account Class Title Number Budget (Decreased). Budget Amount 

TM Departm11n.t of Heolth·ond Human. Servi~s• Miision ia to join. communities and fomilits 
in. prouidin.JI opportunities for citiuM t.o ochi~ue Ma Ith ond independ~nu. 
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 
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2020 102-500731 Contracts for 
92057040 $156,945 $0 $156,945 

Prog Svc 

2021 102.:500731 Contracts for 92057040 $300,000 $0 $300,000 
Prog Svc . 

2021 102-500731 Contracts for 9207046 $522,374 $0 $522,374 
Prog Svc 

2022 102-500731 
Contracts for 

92057046 $174,124 $0 $174,124 
Prog Svc 

Grants for 
2022 074-500585 Pub Asst and 92057048 $0 $348,249 $348,249 

Rel 

Subtotal $1,153,443 $348,249 $1,501,692 

Total $1,753,443 $348,249 $2,101,692 

EXPLANATION 

The purpose of this request is to continue facilitating the participation of certain Federally 
Qualified Health Centers and hospitals to provide medication assisted treatment and an array of 
necessary supports to pregnant, postpartum, and parenting women diagnosed with opioid use · 
disorder. 

The Contractor will support a minimum of (3) Federally Qualified Health Centers and/or 
hospitals to increase their capacity to provide and to deliver comprehensive integrated Medication 
Assisted Treatment services and support for pregnant, postpartum, and parenting women with 
opioid use disorder, along with their newborn and infant children. 

Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment services are a critical component to address 
ttie opioid crisis in New Hampshire. The programs supported by this contract are evidence-based 
options that have expanded the_ State's capacity to provide treatment and recovery supports to 
women, as well as their infants and children affected .by their mother's use of opioids. · 

Approximately 500 individuals will be served from September 30, 2021 to June 30, 2022. · 

In addition to continuing support to · providers in delivering comprehensive integrated 
medication assisted treatment services and supports for the target population, the Contractor will 
collaborate with local and regional networks, including the Doorways, to align services. 

The Department will continue to monitor contracted services by reviewing reports, surv_eys 
and. other necessary data; critical and sentinel event reports; and performance measures 
indicating the effectiveness of the Contractor and the delivery of services under this agreement. 
The Contractor will: · 

• Ensure that 50% of women referred to the program who consent to treatment and 
qualify based on clinical evaluation wili enter opioid use disorder treatment as 
reported by the Sites; 

• Ensure 75% of women identified by American Society of Addiction Medicine 
criteria as in need of a higher level of care will be referred to treatment services in . 
order to increase referral of pregnant and postpartum women to Opioid Use 
Disorder treatment providers as reported by the Sites; and 
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• Attempt to lower positive urine drug screens for illicit substances for pregnant 
women served in this program by frve percent (5%) through State Fiscal Year 
2022, as reported by the Sites. 

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend 
the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, 
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department 
is exercising its option to renew services for nine (9) months of the one (1) available year 
remaining. 

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, pregnant, postpartum, and 
parenting women in New Hampshire diagnosed with opioid use disorder and their infants and 
children may not receive the services and supports necessary to overcome their addiction, which 
could negatively affect the mothers' health as well as the health of their infants and children. 

Area served: Statewide 

Source of Funds: Assistance Listing #93.788, FAIN# H79TI083326. 

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be 
requested to support this program. 

Respectfully, 

L~~~ 
Commissioner 
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State of New Hampshire 
Department of Health and Human Services 

Amendment #2 

This Amendment to the Facilitating Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant. Postpartum 
and Parenting Women contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health 
and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. ("the 
Contractor"). 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council 
on November 6, 2019, .(Item #10), as amended on January 22, 2021, {Item #19), the Contractor agreed to 
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and 
in consideration of certain sums specified; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1 , Revisions to 
Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the 
parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and · 

WHEREAS, the parties agree to ex1end the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify 
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained 
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: 

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1. 7, Completion Date, to read: 

June 30, 2022. 

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: 

$2,101,692. 

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsection 2.1, Program 
Requirements, Paragraph i2.1, to read : 

2.1.1. The Contractor shall enter into agreements with a minimum of three (3) Federally Qualified 
Health Centers (FQHCs) and/or hospitals, hereinafter referred to as Sites, to increase their 
capacity to provide and to deliver comprehensive integrated Medication · Assisted 
Treatment (iMAT) services and supports for pregnant, postpartum, and parenting women 
with opioid use disorders (OUD), and their newborn and infant children. The Contractor 
shall ensure: 

2.1.1.1. Preference is given to FQHCs and hospitals in Coos, Rockingham, Hillsborough, 
Merrimack, Strafford, and Cheshire counties , which are areas that are not 
currently served by an organ ization under contract with the Department to 
provide MAT for pregnant and postpartum women. · 

2.1.1.2. Agreements with prospective Sites are executed only after review and approval 
of the Department. 

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 9, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards, 
Subsection 9.2; to read: 

9.2. Reserved. 

5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 9, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards, 
Subsection 9.11 , to read: 

9.11. The Contractor shall ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to purchase, prescribe, or 
provide m·arijuana or treatment using marijuana. The Contractor shall ensure: 

9.11.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (OUD). 

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A02 

A-S-1 .0 

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. 
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OS 

Contractor Initial 

Date 
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9.11 .2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who, or organization that, provides 
or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or mental 
disorders. 

9.11.3. This marijuana restrfction applies to all subcontracts and memoranda of 
understanding {MOU) that receive SOR funding . 

6. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 9, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards, 
by adding Subsection 9.13., to read : 

9.13. The Contractor shall provide a Fentanyl test strip utilization plan to the Department for 
approval prior to implementation. The Contractor shall ensure the utilization plan includes: 

9.13.1 . Internal policies for the distribution of Fentanyl strips; 

9.13.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and 

9.13.3. Other key data, as requested by the Department. 

7. Modify Exhibit 8, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1 , to 
read : 

1. This Agreement is funded by: 

1.1. 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as awarded on 09/30/2020, 
by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse· and Mental 
Health Services Administration , CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685, and as awarded on 
08/09/202°1, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse 
and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326 . 

8. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to read: 

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the 
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as 
specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-6 Amendment #2 Budget. 

9. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1 , Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5, to 
read : 

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice and supporting backup documentation in a form 
satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth {15th) working day of the following month, which 
identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. 
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department in 
order to initiate payment. Invoices shall be net any other revenue received towards the 
services billed in fulfillment of this agreement. The Contractor shall ensure: 

5.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to: 

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract. 

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for wages 
reported under this contract. 

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries 
and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work 
performed. 

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates , which are available to the 
Department upon request. 

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported. 

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to: ~ s 

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A02 Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. Contractor Initial bjl\,t 
· 21 
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5.1.3.1.1. 

5.1 .3.1.2. 

5.1 .3.1.3. 

5.1.3.1.4." 

5.1.3.1 .5. 

5.1.3.1 .6. 

5.1 .3.1.7. 

5.1.3.1 .8. 

Amounts belonging to other programs. 

Amounts prior to effective date of contract. 

Construction or renovation expenses. 

Food or water for employees. 

Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or-provide 
marijuana or treatment using marijuana. 

Fines, fees, or penalties. 

Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally 
unallowable unless they are an integral part bf a 
conference grant or specifically stated as an allowable 
expense in the FOA. Grant funds may be used for light 
snacks, not to exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for . 
clients. 

Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients. 

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year. 

5.1.5. Cost center reports. 

5.1 .6. Profit and loss report. 

5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not need 
to be supplied with ·the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon 
request. 

5.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on 
third party revenue received . 

5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other 
financial information as requested by the Department. 

10. Add Exhibit B-6, Amendment #2, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference 
· herein. 

SS-2020-8DAS-08-FACIL-01-A02 

A-S-1 .0 

Bi-State Primary Care Association , Inc. 

Page 3 of 5 
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain 
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive 
Council approval. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below, 

State of New Hampshire 

8/24/2021 

Date 

8/24/2021 

Date 

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A02 

A-S-1.0 

Department of Health and Human Services 

l~10f::y: 
lii~~a.a Fox 

Title: oi'rector 

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. 

DocuSlgn1d by: 

&uf".-~J ~~s 
~~8f!'\')lt.gia J. Maheras 

Title: VP, Policy and Strategy 

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. 

Page 4 of 5 
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and 
execution. 

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

8/25/2021 

Date gd ne Pi nos 

Title: Attorney 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of 
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: _______ (date of meeting) 

Date 

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL-0 1-A02 

A-S-1 .0 

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

Name: 
Title: 

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. 

Page 5 of 5 
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STATE OP NEW HAMPSHIRE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

DJJ/JSJON FOR BEHA.YIORAL HEALTH 

119 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301 
60).171.95,N l~.J345 E1L '544 

F11: 60.J-171.ull TDD Accm: 1-I00-7M-J964 --.dblu.oh.lOY 

January 6, 2021 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Councll 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 
Auth·ortze the Departmem of Hea~ and Human Services, Oivtslon·for Behavtoral Health, 

to amend an existing Retroactive, Sole Source contract wi1h Bi-State Primary Care ,\Ssoeiatlon, 
Inc. (Vendor #166895-8001 ), Bow, NH to provide faciUtation for integrated medication treatment 
for pregnant, postp~um end parenting women organizations by increasing the price limitation by 
$253,443 from $1,500,000 to $1,753,443 and by extending the completion date from September 
30, 2020 to September 29, 2021 effectJve retroactive to September 30, 2020 upon Governor and 
Council approval. 100% Federal Funds. 

The original contraC1 was approved by Governor and Council on November 6, 2019, (Item 
#10) . 

Funds are available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are 
anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Years . 2022, upon the availability and continued 
appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items 
within the prfoe limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the B~t Office, 
If needed and justified. 

05--95-92-920510.2669 HEALTH AND HUMAN · SERVICES, BEHAVJORAL HEALTH DJV, 
BUREAU OF DRUG ANI) ALCOHOL, STR G~NT 

State 
Flscal 
Year 

2020 

Clasa/ Job Current Increased Revised 
Account 

Class TltJe 
Number Budget (Decreased) Budget Amount 

Contracts for 
102-500731 Program 92052559 $600,000 $0 $600,000 

Servioes 

Subtotal $600,000 $0 $600,000 

Th. ~porl.n1t.11I of Ht0Wi ~nd Hufll(Jn Strvicn' Miuuin ~ to join commu11i1it, ol\d fomUin 
in proiudin& opportumli.n for ciliun, to ochi.w hmlth ol\d wkpcnd.,,t1tt. 
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I-Iii ExcoOency, Governor Chrtatopher T. Sununu 
and !he Honcnb!a Cound1 · 

Pa;o2of3 

05-95-92-920510.7040 HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, BEHAVIORAL HEAL TH DIV, 
BUREAU OF DRUO ANO ALCOHOL, SOR GRANT 

State Clau / Job Current Increased Revised Fiscal 
Account 

Claas TitJe 
Number Budget (Decreased) Budget Year Amount 

Contracts for $600,000 $(443,055) $156,945 
2020 102-500731 Program 92057040 

Services 

Contracts for $300,000 $0 $300,000 
2021 102-500731 Program 92057040 

Servioes 

Contract& for $522,374 $522,374 
2021 102-500731 Program 92057046 

Services 

Contracts for $174,124 $174,124 
2022 102-500731 F>rogram 92057046 

Services 

Subtotal 900,000 $253,443 $1,153,443 

Total $1,600,000 $253,443 $1,753,443 

EXfl-ANATION 
This request Is Retroactive because sufficient funds in State Fiscal Year 2021 were not 

available in the operating budget considering the grant amount awarded, and due to delay by the 
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration In approving New Hampshire's 
requests for continued State Opioid Response Grant funding the efforts to add the state 
appropriations were deferred. This request is Sofa Source because the contract was originally 
approved as sole source and MOP 150 require& any subsequent amendments to be labeled as 
sole source. The Contrador was identified as the organization fOf this scope of work based on its 
role end well~stablished professional and technical assistance relationships with the State's 
Federally Qualified Health Centers end hospltals, which allows services to be established quickly 
and efficiently in the targeted geographic areas. 

The purpose of this request is to continue facilrt.atlng the participation of Federally Qualified 
Health Centers and hospitals to provide medication assisted treatment and an array of necessary 
supports to pregnant, p()Stpartum, and parenting women diagnosed with opioid use disorder. The 

·. Contractor shall continue to support at leas1 five (5) Federally Qualified Health Centers and/or 
hospttals to increase their capacity to provide and to deliver comprehensive integrated Medication 
Assls1ed Treatment services and supports for pregnant, postpartum, and parenting women with 
opioid use disorder, along with their newt>om and Infant children. · 

These services are needed due to the opioid crisis In New Hampshire. The programs 
supported. by this contract are evidence-based options that have expanded the State's capacity 
to ~e treatment end recov8f}' support to pregnant, post-partum, end parenting women with 
opioid use disorders, as well as their infants and c:tiildren affected by their mother's use of opiolds. 
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His Excellency. Governor Chrtatof)tler T. Sununu 
and the Honorabio Counc:I 

Page 3 of 3 

In addition to continuing the facilitation of the expansion of medication assisted treatment 
aeNlces and aupports for the target population, the Contractor will collaborate wtth local and 
regional networ1<&, including the Doorways to align services. · 

The Department will continue monitoring the effectiveness of the Contractor and the 
delivery of services under this agreement using the follc,w;ng perfonnance measures: 

• The Contractor shall ensure that 50% of women refeff'ed to the program who 
consent to treatment and quarrty based on dinical evaluation will enter opioid use 
disorder treatment as reported by the Sites. 

• The Contractor shall ensure 75% of women Identified by American Society of 
Addiction Medicine criteria as in need of a higher level of care will be referred to 
treatment &erviCfi In order to Increase referral of pregnant and postpartum women 
to Opioid Uae .Disorder treatment providers as reported by the Sites. 

• The Contractor shall attempt to lower positive urine drug screens for Illicit 
substances for pregnant women served In this program by five·percent (5%) through 
State Fiscal Year 2021, as reported by the Sites. 

~ referenced In Exhibit C-1 of the original con1raq, the parties have the opti9(l to extend 
the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, 
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department 
Is exercising its option to renew services for one (1) year of the two (2) years available. 

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request pregnant, post-partum, and 
parenting women in New Hampshire diagnosed with opioid use disorder and their Infants and 
children may not receive the support necessary to . overcome their addiction which could 
negatively Impact their health and the health of their infants and children. 

Area served: Statewide. 

Sour:ce of Funds: 100% Federal Funds. CFOA #93.788, FAIN TI081885. 

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds wtll not 
be requested to support this program. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~~#--
Lori A. Shlbinette 
Commissioner 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Facilitating Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant, 
Postpartum and Par~nting Women 

State of New Hampshire 
Department of Health and Human Services 

• 
Amendment #1 to the Facilitating Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant, 

Postpartum and Parenting Women Contract 

This 111 Amendment to the Facilitating Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for P,egnant, 
Postpartum and Parenting_Women contract (hereinafter referred to as "A~endment #1") is by and between 
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the ­
"State" ·or "Department") and Bi-State Primary Care Associ_ation. Inc., (hereinafter referred to as "the 
Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 525 Clinton Street, Bow, NH 03304. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council 
on November 6, 2019, (Item #10), the Contrador agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms 
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to 
Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement ofthe 
parties and approval from the Governor and ·Ex~cutive Council; and 

~EREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to 
support continued delivery of these services; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained 
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: 

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date. to read : 

September 29, 2021 . 

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Li_mitation, to read : 

$1,753,443. 
' , . 

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 5. Data Collection and Reporting, by adding 
Subsection 5.4. to r.ead : 

5.4. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to periodic surveys, 
and other data collection requests as ·deemed necessary_ by the Department and/or 
Substance Abuse and Mental .Health Services Administration (SAMHSA). 

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 8_ Perfo(mance Measures, by adding Subsection 
8.3. lo read: · 

8,3. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to enhance contract management, 
improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based.on successful outcomes. 

5. Modify Exhibit A Scope of Services, Section 9. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards, 
to read: 

9. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards 

9.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded initiatives. 
the Contractor shall ensure each Site : 

9.1.1 .. Establishes formal information sharing and referral agreements with all Doorways 
for substance use services that comply with all applicable confidentiality laws, 
including _42 CFR Part 2. 

9 .1.2. Completes cl ient referrals to applicable Doorways for substance use services 
within two (2) business days of a d ient's admission to the program. 1::. 

Bi-State Prima,y Care Association. Inc. Amendment #1 Contract0< Initials~ 

SS-2020-80AS-06-FACIL-01 -A01 \ Page 1 of 5 Dale 12/4/2020 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Facilitating Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant, 
Postpartum and Parenting Women 

I 

• 
9.2 The Contractor shall provide the Department with a budget narrative within thirty (30) 

. days of the contract effective date. 

9.3 The Contractor shall meet with the Department within sixty (60) days of the contract 
effective date to review contract implementation. 

9.4 The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans 
associated with SOR funded activities to ensure seNices are in place within thirty (30) 
days of the contract effective date. 

9.5 The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all uses of flexible needs funds 
and resptte shelter funds are in compliance with the Department and SAMHSA 
requirements. 

9.6 The Contractor and/or referred providers shall assist clients with enrolling in public or 
private health insurance, if the client is determined eligible for such coverage and will 
have staff trained in Presumptive Eligibility for _Medicaid. 

9. 7 The Contractor and/or referred providers shall accept clients on Medicaid Assisted 
Treatment ·(MAT) and facilitate access to MAT on-site or through- referral for all clients . 
supported with SOR grant funds , as clinically appropriate . 

9.8 The Contractor and/or referred providers shall coordinate with the NH Ryan While 
HlV/AIDs program for clients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS. 

9.9 The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all clients are regularly 
screened for tobacco use, treatment needs and referral to the Quitlirie as part of 
treatment planning. · · · 

9.10 The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to understand and comply with all 
appropriate Department, Stale of NH, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 
Administration SAMHSA, and other Federal terms, cond ilions,-and requirement. 

9.11 The Contractor shall attest the understanding that SOR grant funds may not be used, 
directly or indirectly, to purchase. prescribe, or provide marijuana or treatment using 
marijuana. The Contractor agrees that: 

9.11 .1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (OUD). 

9.11 .2. Grant funds also cannot be provided to any individual who or organization that 
provides or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or 
mental disorders. 

9.11 .3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memorandums of 
understanding (MOU) that receive SOR funding. 

9.11.4 . Attestations will be provided to the Contractor by the Depart~ent. 

9.11 .5. The Contractor shall complete and submit all attestations to the Department within 
thirty (30) days of contract approval. 

9.12 The Contraclor shall refer to Exhibit B for grant terms and conditions including, but not 
limited to: 

9.12.1. Invoicing ; 

9.12.2. Funding restrictions; and 

9.12.3. Billing . 

6. M_odify Exhibit B_' ~ethods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing in '.t_s e~ with 

Bi-State Primary .Care Associa tion, Inc. Amendm_enl #1 Contracior lrnllals ~ 
SS-2020-BDAS-06-FACIL-01 -A01 Page 2 of 5 Date 12/4/2020 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Facilitating Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant, 
Postpartum arid Parenting Women 

, 

• 
Exh161I 8 Amendment #1, Methods ·and Cond1t1ons Precedent to Payment, in· order to bring 
payment terms into compliance· with current Department of Administrative Services Manual of 
Procedures standards, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein, . 

. 7. Modify Exhibit B-1 , Budget by reducing the total budget amount (SFY 20) by $443,055, which is 
identified as unspent funding that is ·being carried forward with an additional $79,319 for a total of 
$522,374 to fund the activities in th is Agreement for SFY 21 (September 30 , 2020 through June 
30, 2021 ), as specified in Exhibit _8-4 Amendment #1 NCE. 

8. Add Exhibit 8-4 Amendment #1 NCE, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference 
herein. 

9. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1 NCE, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference 
herein. 

Bl-Stale Primary Care Association, Inc. 

SS-2020-BOAS-08-FACIL-01-A01 

Amendmen1 #1 

Page 3 ol 5 

,::. 
Contractor Initials~ 

Dale 12/4/202~ 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Facilitating Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant, 
Postpartum and Parenting Women • 
All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #3 
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective September 29, 2020, upon Governor 
and Executive Council approval. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below, 

State of New Hampshire 

12/4/2020 

Date 

12/4/2020 

Date 

Bl-Slate Primary Care Association. Inc. 

SS-202~BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A01 

Department of Health and Human Services 

Name: Fox 
Title : Di rector 

Bi-State Primary Care -Association, Inc. 

OhCJCF•CMS>Jj!.. 
Name: Georg1a Maheras 
Tit~ : VP, Policy and Strategy 

Amendment #1 

Page4 of5 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Facilitating Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant, 
Postpartum and Parenting Women • 
The preceding Amendment-, having been reviewed by this office, 1s approved as to form, substance, and 
execution. 

12/11/2020 

Date 

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

a~e:"&thff1 ne Pl nos 

Title: Attorney 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of 
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: _______ (date of meeting) 

Date 

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. 

SS-202~BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A01 

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

Name: 
nue: 

Amendment #1 

Page 5 ol 5 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Facilitating Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant, 
Postpartum and Parenting Women 

EXHIBIT 8 Amendment #1 

Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment 

1. This Agreement is funded by: 

• 
1.1. 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as awarded·on 09/30/2020, 

by the U.S. DHHS, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA 
#93.788, FAIN H79TI081685. 

2. For the purposes of this Agreement: 
. . 

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Contractor, in accordance with 2 
CFR 200.330. 

2.2. · The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR 

§200.87 . 

2.3. The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2 CFR §200.414. 

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the 
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item. as 

specified in Exhibit 8-1 through Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1 NCE. 

4. The Contractor shall seek payment for services, as follows: 

4·.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or other payor sources. 

4.2. Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare. 

4.3. · Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicaid enrolled individuals, as follows: 

4.3.1. Medicaid Care Management: If enrolled ·with a Managed Care o ·rganization 
(MCO), the Contractor shall be paid in accordance with its contract wi_th the 

MCO. 

4.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service : The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on the 

Fee for Service (FFS) schedule. 

4.4. · Fourth, the Contractor shall charge the client in accordance with the Sliding F~e Scale 

Program. 

4.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale rema.ins unpaid, 

charge the Department for the unpaid balance. 

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satis_factory to the State by the fifteenth (15th) 
working day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for 
a·uthorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is 

completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. Invoices shall 

Bi-S111111 Primary Care Association, Inc. 

SS-2020-BOAS-08-FACll•0 1-AO 1 

Exhibit B Amendment II I 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Facllltating Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant, 
Postpartum and Parenting Women 

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1 • 
be net any other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment of this agreement. 
The Contractor shall ensure: · 

5.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to: 

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract. 

5 .. 1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for 
wages reported under this contract. 

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries 
and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work 

pe('formed . 

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates . which are available to the 

Department upon request. · 

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported : 

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to: 

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs. 

5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract. 

5.1.3.1.3. Construction or. renovation expenses. 

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees . 

5.1.3.1.5. OirecUy or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide 
marijuana or treatment using marijuana . 

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties. 

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements. 01eals are generally 

unallowable unless they are an integral part of a conference 
-grant or specifically stated as an allowable expense in the 
FOA. Grant funds may be used for light snacks, not to 
exceed three dollars ($3 .00} per person for clients . 

5.1 .3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients . 

5~1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year . 

S.1 .5. Cost center reports . 

5.1.6. Profit and loss report . 

Bi-State Primary Care Associll!IOfl, Inc. 

SS-2020·8DAS-08-FAC IL-0 I •AO I 

Exhibit B Amendment #1 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Facilitating Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment tor Pregnant, 
Postpartum a~d Parenting Women 

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1 • 
5.1 . 7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed . Remittance Advices do not 

need to be supplied with the inv9ice, but should be retained to be available upon 
request. 

5.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on 
third party reven~e received. 

5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenl!e and other 
financial· information as requested by the Department. 

6. The Cqntrac~or is responsible for reviewing, understanding, and complying with further 
restrictions included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA). 

7. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to 
melissa.girard@dhhs,nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to: . 

SOR Financial Manager 
Department of Health ~nd Human Services 
105 Pleasant Street 
Concord, NH 03301 

8. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after twenty (20) business days of the 
last day of the -billing month may be subject to non-payment. 

9. The State shall 'make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of ·receipt of each 
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available. 

1 O. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty ( 40) days after th~ contract 
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date: 

11. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A-Amendment #3, Scope of Services, in 
compliance with funding requirements. 

12. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agr~ement may be withheld, in whole or in part 
in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A, Amendment #3, 
Scope of Services, including failure to submit required monthly and/or quartery reports. 

13. Notwitt)standing Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting 
amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years 
an~ budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written agreem~nt of both 
parties, without obtaining approval of the Go~ernor and Executive Council, if n~eded and 

justified. 

14. Audits 

Bi-State Primary C11ro Assoeietion , Inc;. 

SS-2020-8OAS-08-FACtl-01-A01 

Exhibit B Amendment 111 
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EXHIBIT B Amendment #1 

14.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if any of the 
following conditio·ns exist: 

14.1.1.Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal funds 
received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200. during the most recently 
completed fiscal year. 

14.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the requirements of 
NH RSA 7:28, 111-b, pertaining to charitable organizations receiving' support of 
$1,000,000 or more. 

14.1.3. Condition C - The Contrac~or is a public company and required by.Security and 
Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual finanGial audit. 

14.2. If Condition A exists. the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit performed by 
' 

an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department within 120 days 
after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the 
requirements of 2 C_FR Part 200. Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles. and Audit Requirements for Federal awards. 

14.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual financial 
audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close of the . 
Contractor's fiscal year. 

14.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equ~l to or greater than $250,000 from the 
oe·parlment during a single fiscal year, _regardless of the funding source, may be 
required, at a minimum, to submit annual financial audits performed by an 
independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination indicates the 
Contractor is high-risk. 

14.5 . . In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is 
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for 
any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments 
made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or whi~h have been 
disa·llowed because of such an exception. 

Bi-State Primary Ca_re Associetion, lrlC. 

SS-2020-BDAS-06-F AC IL-01-A0 1 
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Jeff")' A. Mryt,.. 
Co111adulaarr · 

lu•J• s. ros 
Dlr"lor 

STAT[ OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

DEPARTMENT or HEALTH AND HlJMAN SERVICES 

DIVISION FOR BEHA VJO/lAL HEALTH 

129 PLtASANT STREU, CONCORD, NH OJJOI 
60J.l71-944S t-aoo-a!l?-"4S Ell. ~5 

Fu: 60l-211~Jll TOO Accru: l-$00-7JS.l964 www.dhhuh.1ov 

October 22. 2019 

. . 
His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu 

and the Honorable Council 
Stale House . 
Concord. New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Authorize the Department of Health an(1 Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health. to enter . 
into a ·sole source. agreement with Bi-Stale Primary Care Association , Inc. (Vendor# #166695-B001), 
525 Clinton Street, Bow, NH 03304, to provide. facilitation for integrated medication ·assisted treatment 
for pregnant, postpartum and parenting women organizations in an amount not to exceed $1 ,500,000 
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. through September 30. 2020. 100% Federal 
Funds. · 

Funds lo support this request are available in the following account(s) for State Fiscal Years (SFY) 
2020 and 2021 ~pon·the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future _operating budget, 
with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal 
Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified. 

05-95-92-920510-2559 HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF .., 
DRUG AND ALCOHOL, STR GRANT 

· SFY ' Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount 

2020 102-500731 Contracts for P,og Svc 92052559 $600,000 

Subtotal $600,000 

05-95-92-920510-7040 HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVlvES, BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU 
OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, SOR GRANT 

Sta~o 
Fiscal Class/Account . Class Title Job Number Total Amount 
Year 

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $600,000 

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $300,000 

Subtotal $900,000 

Total $1,500,000 
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His EJ1Cellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorct>le Council · 
Page 2.013 

EXPbANATION 

This request is sole source due to the limited amount of time remaining to implement services 
utilizing the feaeral State Opioid Response funding within the grant tim~ limits. Bi•St_ate Primary Care 
Association (Contractor) was identified as the organization for this scope of wori< based on their roles 
and weD-estabtished professional and technical assistance relationships with the State's Federally 
Qualified Hea~h Centen; (FOHCs) and hospitals, which will allow services to be established quickly and 
efficiently in the targeted geographic areas .. 

The purpose of this request is to facilitate the participation of FOHCs and hospitals to provide 
medication assisted treatment (MAT) and an array of necessary supports lo pregnant, postpartum, and 
parenting wo~en diagnosed with opioid use disorder (OUD): The Contractor shall enter into agreements 
with at least five (5) FOHCs and/or hospitals to increase their capacity to provide and to deliver 
comprehensive integrated Medication Assisted Treatment (!MAT) services and supports for pregnant, 
postpartum. and parenting women with OUD, along with their newborn and infant children. 

These services are needed due to the urgent nature of the opioid crisis in New Hampshire. The 
programs supported by this contract are evidence-bas.ed options that will expand the State's capacity to 
provide treatment and recovery. support to pregnant, post-partum, and parenting women with opioid use 
disorde_rs, as well as their infants and children affected by their moth~r's use of opioids. . . 

The Contractor will facilitate the expansion of iMA T services and supports for this targeted 
population and collaborate with local and regional networks. including the Doorways to align ser.iices. 
The Contractor will provide support to FOHCs ttiat are int~rested in developing or enhancing existing 
capacity to deliver these critical services in their regions. 

The Department will monitor the effectiveness of the C~mtractor and the delivery of services under 
this agreement using the follov.:ing performance measures: 

• The Co.ntractor shall ensure that fifty percent (50%) of women referred to the program who 
consent to _treatment and qualify based on clinical evaluation will enter OUO treatment as 
reported by the Sites. 

• The Contractor shall ensure seventy-five percent (75%) of women identified by ASAM 
criteria as in need of a higher level of care win be referred to treatment services in order 
to increase referral of pregnant and postpartum women to QUO treatment providers, as 
reported by the Sites. · 

• . The Contractor shall attempt to lower positive urine drug screens for illicit substances for 
· pregnant women se·rved in this program by five percent (5%) from State Fiscal Year 2020 

to State Fiscal Year 2021, as reported by the Sites. 

As referenced in the Exhibit C· ~ of this contract, tl)e parties have the option to extend contract 
services for up to two (2) additional year(s), contingent upori satisfactory delivery of services, available 
funding, agreemeni of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council. 

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, pregnant, post-partum, 
and parenting women. in New Hampshire diagnosed with opioid us~ disorder and their infants and · 
children may not receive the support necessary to overcome their addiction ~hich could negatively impact 
their health and the health of their infants and children. 

Area serv·ed: Statewide. 

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from Department of Health & Human Svs. Substance 
Abuse & Mental Heal1h Svs Admin, Center for Substance Abuse Treatment. CFOA#93.7881 
FAIN#T1081685 and FAIN#TI080246. 

' 
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His &c.el!ency; G<wem01 Christopher T. Sununt.1 
and the Honorable Counol 
Page 3of 3 

In lhe event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be 
requested lo support this program. 

Respectfully submitted, 

rt:!M«:: 
Commissioner 

TM Dcporlm1nl of Hcolth olld llun,011 Suuicc,· Miuion i, ID join comn111nilics o,td /om ilia 
in prouidina opporlunili~ for ciliun• to Gth~llf Mahh and inrltpcndcntt. 
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' ' \, FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 518/15) 
Subjcc1: focili1Piio& 1mcirp1c~ Mcdjcption M3ist¢d Trca1mcn1 Coe ra:,0001, Ponpooum Rod Porcn1i0& women ,ss-2020.ept,s-oa-

~: This agrccmtnl and all or i" nn1;chmcnu shall become public up0n submission 10 Go-:crnor cind 
ExccutiYc:

0

(:(Juncil for opprovol. An)' informo1ion 1h11t is privo1r:, conliden1iol or propric1a,y mu.st 
be clearly idcn1ificd 10 the •&ency and oerecd 10 in wri1ina prior 10 si&nina the conu11c1. · 

ACREEMENT 
The S101c orNew Hamps~irc and lhc Con1r1c1or hereby m1111111lly a2rec.111 follows : 

C£N£R.4L PROVISIONS 

IOENTIFiC,HION 
I.I S101c A2ency Nome 1.2 S1~1c A&cncy ,'1.ddrcss 
NH Dcpartmcnl.ofHeallh and Humon Services 129 Pl~I SlrtCI 

Conc~rd. NH 03301-l&S? 

I.) . Conl~CIO( _Name 1.4 Contti1e10, ,'1.ddrns 
Bi-S1atc PrimUY, Care Association, Inc. SH <;tin1on Street 

Bow, NH 03304 

1.S Conln>CIOf r h_onc 1.6 Account Number . I. 7 Completion Da1e 1.8 Price Limiuuion 
Number 

(60)) 228-2830 OS-9S-92-920S I 0-2.sS9 and Sep1cmbcr 10, 2020 St,500,000 
O.S-9.S-92-020.S I 0-7040 

1.9 Contrueling orriar (or $1a1c Agency 1. 10 State Agency Telephone Number 
No1han O. White, Dircc10, 60)-271-96) I 

I.II Contractor Sign:iturc 1.12 Name ond 1"itlc orcon1nic1or Signo1ory 

~ .. fot'- ~~~ .. vP p,/t() "'"' .)fn~ 

1.1 l, JcJ.nowlc~1cmcn1: State of /\JH , County of L-{el?911/f~L 

On, I 1/ 1- I / ( 1 •, before 1hc under1igned officer, personally appeared the person idcn1ir.cd in block I. I 2, or s01isfoctorily 
proven to b: 1he~crson whose name is signed in block 1.11, and eci.no.wlcdged 1h11 slhc executed this document in 1he copoeily 

. · indicf.ied in· l>lock I. 12. 
·' _'I. I ~~ary Public or Juscice of the Peace-

·--:~ , 

•. !Sc.oil . 
1.1 J.2 Name llri_d T_ill~ of Notary or Justice of the Pncc 

~ a,,o '6JN fs'DAI - N~y 
1.14 S101c-Agc:,,Cy Signa1urc 1.15 Name and Title of Stott Agency Signo1ory 

JC.~~~ 1o/-z_ I It~ \ L-~,-. S"· 1-D~ \ u: r~c.-A--vr-Dote: 
1.16 Approve.! ~y the N.H. Oeportmcn1 or Administrution, Division of Personnel (,f applicablt)_ 

Oy: Dirccto;, On: 

1.17 A~o,0<y 0""'' (Fom, '''"'"" '"" Em,,ioo) (,foppU"bl•J 

By· CATHfl-ttvE (>1t.JOS _ On: ;o/Jt.1/1<, 
1. 18 · Approbf by the Governor or.cl Exccu1il'c Council (If applicoblt) 

By: 
I 

On : 

Page 1 of4 
I 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6899B552-CCAE-4A68-BAD1-86FBD1 FC60A7 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6E96D438-8«3-45AB-9169-468A44512498 

OocuSiQn Envelope 10: 4F562ESA-8568-4EE3-81A9-E91A8802C2CO 

2. £MPLOVM £NT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO 
BE P£RF'ORMED. The State or New Hampshire, ac1ing 
Lhrough the 11gcncy identified in bloc!.: I. I (''SLD1c"), cng3gcs 
cont111e1or idcntifi:ed in block l.l ("Controcior") to pcrfonn, 
and the Contr11c:tor shell perform, the work or s;ilc or goodJ, or 
both, identified 1111d more particularly described in the auached 
EXHIBIT,-. IYhich is incorporated herein by refercn« 
("Servicc.s"). 

J. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES. 
3.1 Not,;i,lut11ndin1 any provision or1his A&f(cment to 1hc 
conlriiry, ond subject 10 the approval or the Govern°' end 
Executive Council or 1he Suite or New Hampshire, i( 
applicoblc, this Agrtcmen1, end oll obligations of 1he ponies 

. hcrcundc:r, shall bcc:omc crrcc,ive on 1hc do_lc the Governor 
1111d E.'(ccu1ive Coµncil approve 1his Aarcemel\l Ill indic111ed in 
blocl: 1.18, unless no such 11pproval is rtquircd, in which case 
lhc A1rcemen1 sh:ill become cfrectivc: on the date the 
Agreement is sig11Cd by the State Agency e.s shown in block 
1.14 (''Effective Dote"). 
3.2 If 1he Con1111c1or commences 1he Services prio, 10 1he 
Elice1ive Dote, 111 Services performed by the Con1rac1or prior 
10 the ErTec1ive O.i1c shall be performed 01 the sole risk of the 
Cont111c1or, a.nd in the event that this Agreement docs no< 
become crrce1ive,'1he State sholl hnvc no liabilit)' 10 the 
Con1rac1or, including wi1hout limi111ion, a.ny obligation 10 pay 
the Contn1c1or for-Dlly costs incurred or Services pcrfolTTled. 
Contrnctor mus! complete oll Services by the Completion Date 
spC'Cificd in blocl: 1.7. 

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF A GREEM ENT. 
Notwithstnndin& a.ny provision of this Agreement to the 
contrary, all obligations of the Stoic hereunder, including, 
without limilation; the' continu:inc'c o( pnymenu hereunder, arc 
con1ingen1 upon 1he ovailobilily 1111d continued oppropriation 
of funds, and in no event shall the S1n1c be I iobh: for any 
poymcnu hereunder in excess of such available 0pproprin1cd 
funds. In tht event ofo reduction or tenninJtion of 
appropriated fonds , 1hc State sholl hove the right 10 withhold 
po):mcnt until such funds become ovailablc, if ever, and sholl 
hove the right 10 terminate this Agreement immedi:itely upon 
giving .the Con1rnc:1or notice of such termination. The Sllltt 
shnll not be required 10 transfer funds (rom any other occount 
to the Accoun1 id<:n1ificd in block 1.6 in !he event funds in 1ha1 
Account ore rcd~cd or unovoiloble. 

5. CONTRACT PRICE:/PRICF: LIMITATION/ 
PAYMENT. 
S. I The contruct price, method of pllymcn1, end 1crms of 
poyment ore identified and more poniculorly described in 
EXHIBIT B which is incorporntcd herein by reference. 
S.2 The poymcn1 by1hc Stoic oft_hc controe1 price sha11 be the 
onl)' and the eomP.letc rcimburstmcn1 10 the Cont~ctor for oll 
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Con1rac1or in the 
pcrform~ncc hereof, end sholl be the only ond the compl,1c 
compensation 10 1hc Con1111ctor for the Services. The S1cite 
shall hove no liabilit)' 10 the Contrnctor 0lhcr than the eontrnct 
price. 

S.3 The S1a1c reserves the right 10 offset from any omounls 
otherwise p:iyablc 10 tJic Con1rac1or under this Agreement 
those liquid1Ucd amoun!J rtquircd or pcnni11cd by N.H. RSA 
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or ony other provision oflaw. 
S.4 N01wilhstnndin1 any provision in 1hi.t-A1rcemcnt to the 
contrary, and notwithstonding unc.~pcctcd eircumscanccs, in 
no event shall the 101111 of all payments outhorizcd, or actually 
mode hereunder,' exceed the Price Limi101ion 1c1 fonh in block 
i.s. · 

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR 'NITH LAWS . 
AND RECULATIO,..,S/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 
OPPORTUNITY. 
6.1 In connection with the performance or the Services, the 
ConlMICIOr $hell comply with 1!11 SIOIUlCS, laws, rcgula1ions, 
ond orders of fcdc~I. s101c, county or municip31 outhoritics 
which impose any obligotion or duty upon the Contrnctor, 
incl\jdin&, but no1 limi1cd to, civil ri&hts ond equal opponunity 
laws. This may include the requirement 10 utilize auxiliary 
oids and scrviccs to en$ure that persons with communication 
diS11bili1ies, including vision, hearing ond speech, c:.11n 
communicate with, m:cive infonnotion from, o.nd convey 
infonnotion 10 the Con1111C1or. In addition, the Controtlor 
shall comply with ol! opplicoblc copyrigh1 lows. 
6.2 During the term of 1his Agreement, the Co111rac1or shall 
no1 discriminate o&oinst employees or oppliunts for 
employmen1 bcClluse of 111cc, color, rc1iaion, creed, n&c, sex, 
handicap, sexual oricn101ion, or notional origin 1111d will tcl:c 
offirmotivc 11c1ion 10 prevent such discriminction .. 
6.3 If this Agreemcn1 is runded in eny pon by monies orthc 
United S101cs, the Contractor shall comply with ell 1he 
provisions of Executive Order-No. I 1246("Equo1 
Emplo)'mcnt Opportunity"), lU supplemented by the 
rcaulotions or the United S1a1cs Deportment or Labor(~ I 
C.F.R. Part 60), end with any rulu, regulations ond guideline$ 
o.s 1he S1111e ofNc:w Hnmpshire or·1he Uni\Cd States is.sue to 
implement these regulations. The Con1roc1or further ogr«s 10 
pcnnit the Sllltc or United Su11u occess 10 Dlly or 1he 
Contr.1c1or's books, records end occounu for th( purpose or 
osccnaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders, 
end the coven~nu, terms and eonditi0I\$ of this.Agreement. 

7. PERSONNEL. 
7.1 The Controctor sholl 01 its own expense provide oll 
personnel nccesnry 10 perform the Services. The Con1nic1or 
wOJT11n1s thoi all personnel engaged in 1hc Scrvkes shell b( 

qunlilicd 10 perform 1hc Services, and shell be properly 
licensed and otherwise au1horited to do~ under all 11ppliceblc 
laws. 
7.2 Unless otherwise au thorized in \\Tiling, during the term of 
this Aerecmcn1, and for o period of siJC (6) months oner the 
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Con1rnc1or shall not hire, 
ond shall no1 pcnni1 any subcoht111c1or or other person, firm or 
corporntion with whom it is eng.iged in a combined tffon to 
perform 1hc Ser"ices lo hire, any pc"on who is o S101c 
employee or offitinl, who is matcriolly involved in lhc 
procurcmenl, odminis1rocion or pcrfomionce of this 
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Agreement. This provision shall survive: 1cnniru11ion or 1his 
A1rcrmen1. 
7.3 The Con111c1in1 Offietr"spccificd in block 1.9, or his or 
her successor, shall be "1c S1.111c's rcprcscnuuive. In 1he event 
or 11ny dispute concerning 1hc intcrpn:tution of 1his Aarccment, 
the Conu11C1i~a OniC(l'J decision shall be rsnal for the S~tc. 

8. £VENT or 0£FAULT/REM£D1(S. 
8. t Any one or more of the follo"in& ac1s or omissions of the 
Con1roc10, sholl tonMitule an C>'Cnl of default hereunder 
("Event of De fault"): . . 
8.1.1 foilure 10 perform 1he Services S11tlsf11e1orily or on 
schedule; 
8.1 .. 2 failure to submit any rcpon required lw:rcundcr; ond/o, 
8.1.3 failure to pcrrorm 111)' other covcnnnt, term or condilion 
oflhis Aarecmcnl·. 
8.2 Upon the occumnc.c or 111y Ewnt or Ocfouh, the S101c 
moy toke any one, or more, or all, of the followina actions: 
8.2.1 give the Controetor o wri11cn notice spccifyini: the £vcn1 
of Default and requiring i110 be remedied within, in the 
absence of o grcntcr or lesstr six:cific111ion of time, 1hiny (30) 
dayJ rrom the d111c of the notice; and if the Event ofOcfouh is 
not timely remedied, tcrmiMte this Aan:cment, efTective two 
(2) dD)'S one, aivir& the Contractor no1ice or termination; 
8.2.2 give the Corilr1lc10r II wrincn no1icc spccifyina the Event 
of De fault and 5Uspcndina all p11ymcn1l to be mode under this 
Agreement 11nd o,:dcring 1h111 the ponion of1he conlr11CI price 
which would otherwiJC accrue 10 the Coniroctor durin& the 
period from the d111c or such notice until such time cu the S1111c 
determines that the Con1ructor ·h11s cun:d the Evcn1 or0crau11 
sholl nc vet be p:iid 10 1he Conlruclor; 
8.2.3 sec olT oaoin'sl ony other obliaocions 1hc -S101c mny owe 10 
the Cont roe tor 11111, damaacs the Suuc su!Tcrs br rC4SOn or 11J1y 
Event of Oc(ouh; 111d/or 
8.2.◄ trcnt 1he Agiccmcnt a.s breached 111d pursue 11ny of its 
remedies Ill low or in equity, or both. 

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/ 
PRESERVATION. 
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "da1.11" sh3II mean all 
information and things developed or obtained during the 
performance of, o~ ncqu ircd or developed by rc·uon of, 1his 
Agn:cmcnt, includin&, btH not limited 10. oll studies, repons, 
files, formulae, surveys, maps, chans, ,ound rcconlings, video 
rccordin&,5, pictorial rcproduc1ions, dmwinas, anal)'SCS, 
arcphic rcprestnunions, computer progrums, computer 
printouts, notes, kuers, memoranda .. p11pcrs, and documcnu. 
all whether finished or unfinished . 
9.2 All dntn ond ony propcny which hos been received from 
the S101c or purcho.scd wilh funds provided for 1hat purpose 
under this Agrccl!')ent, shall be the propcny of the S101c, and 
shall be ,e1urncd to the Su11e upon dcmond or upon 
1ermin11ion or this Agreement for ony rccuon. 
9.l Confidentiality or d8Ul shall be govcmcd by N.H. RSA 
chapter 91-A or other e.~is1ing law. Disclosure of d111e 
requires prior wrincn approval or lhc S1otc. 

10. TERMINATION. In 1hc cvcn1 oro!' early 1crmin~ion or 
this Agreement for any reason other then the completion of the 
Sciviccs, 1hc Con1r1etor s~ll·delivcr 10 the Con1roc1in1 
Officer, not la1Cf 1han fiflccn (I~) days one, 1hc da1c or 
1crmino1ion, D report ("Tcrminction Report") dclcribing in 
dc10il all SC1Viccs pcrfonncd, 11nd the contract price earned, 10 
_and includina 1hc date of termination. The fonn, subject 
m1111er, conicnt, dtld number or copies of the Tmnin11ion 
Rcpon shall be identical to those of Dn)·-Finol Report 
described in 1hc etuichcd EXHIBIT A. 

I I. CONTRACTOR'S REL,HION TO THE STATE. In 
the performance of this A&rctmcn1 the Conincior is in 11II 
rc1pccu' en indcpcndcn1 con1rac10,, and is neither en 04cn1 n·o, 
on employee or the S1a1e. Neither 1hc Con1rac1or nor any or its 
officers, employees, ogcnu or members shall have oulhorily 10 
bind 1hc Si.,1e or receive ony bencfilS, \\'Qrkcr1' compensation 
0< other emoluments provided by 1hc S1c1e 10 iu employees. 

12. ASSIGNMENT/0£1..ECATION/SUBCONTRACTS. 
The Con1roc1or shall not iwign, or otherllisc tronsrcr any 
interest in this Agrccmcn1 ,.-i1hout 1hc prior wrillcn notice end 
consent of the S1a1c. None of the SCNiccs sh11II be 
subcon1ruc:1ed by the Con1ruc10, without the prior written 
notice ond consent of the Stale . 

I). INOEMNIFICA TION. The Contr0etor sh11II defend, 
indemnify ond hold h:>rmlcu the State, iLS offia:rt and 
employees, from and egcinSI any and all-losses surTcrcd by 1he 
SU11c, iu officers nnd cmplorccs, and any and oil claims, 
licbili_1ies or pcn11llics asscned against the State, iu oOiccrs 
and employees, by or on bchlll.f or ony person, on occount or, 
bued or mull ina from, orisina out of(or which may be 
claimed 10 Qtisc out ol) the octs o, omissions of1hc 
Contnictor. No1wi1hs1onding 111( fo~going, no1hing hcrtin 
cont11ined shall be deemed 10 col\Slitutc a waiver oflhc 
sovereign immunity of the S1111c, which immunity is hereby 
reserved 10 che State. This covenilnt in pnraeroph I J shall 
survive 1hc 1cnnina1ion or this Agrccmen1. 

1'4. INSURANCE. 
I ◄. I Th~ Con1r11c1or slulll, 111 its sole expense, obtain ond 
main1ain in force, 11.nd sholl requi~ uny subcon1nic1or or 
·iusigncc 10 obtain ond moin111in in force, 1he following 
insurnncc: 
14 . 1.t comp,chensivc 1cncr11l liability in.sur11na: against ell 
claims of bodily injury, death or propcr1y domcac, in 11moun1s 
of not tm thlln S 1,000,000pcr occurnnec and S2,000,000 
ogg~gntc ; and 
14. 1.'2 SJ)(ciol cause of loss covcnigc Conn covering oil 
propcny subject to subpnrograph 9.2 herein. in on omounl not 
less than 804/4 of1he whole rcploccrnent v:1luc or the propcny. 
14.2 The policies described in subp.1rugniph I ◄ . I herein shnll 
be on policy forms ond endorscmcnlS Dflpro,•cd for use in the 
S1a1e of New 1-tompshirc by the N.H. Ocpllt\mcnt of 
lnsurcnce, nnd issued by insurers licensed in 1hc S1otc of New 
Hnmpshirc. 
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1 '4.3 The Corw·ocior shall rumish to 1hc Con1rac1in1 Officer 
identified in blocl< 1.9, or his or her successor, o ccr1ific11tc(s) 
or insur0ncc for oil insuronce required under this Ag,ccmcnl. 
Controctor shall also fumish to the Con1111c1ina Orftccr 
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccnificDtc(s) or 
insuranc.c for all n:ncwnl(s) or insur11ncc required under 1his 
Agreement no later than 1hiny (JO) d1ys prior 10 the upi1111ion 
date or codl of the insurnncc policits. The ccnifiauc(s) of 
insul'llllce and any renewals lhcrcor shall be 11111chcd 111\d arc 
incorponued hcrtin by n:fcrcnce. Eachtenificatc{s) or 
insuruncc shall c~loin o cl~usc rcquirin& lhe insurer 10 
provide the Cor11r11c1in1 Officer identified in block 1.9. or his 
or her SUCCCSJOr, !10 IC.SS than lhiny (30) dll)'S prior 1vri11cn 
notice ofcan«ll111ion or modificiuion or1hc policy. 

IS. WORKER.Si COMPENSATION. 
I 5.1 By signing 1tiis egrccmenl, the Con1nic1or ovcu, 
cenifies ond 1~LJ 1h111 the Con1ru1or is in compliance 1fith 
or excmpl (rom, the n:quin:mcnu ofN.H . RSA chapter 281-A 
(" ll'orttrJ' Compensation WJ. 
I J.1 To 1he C.'<IC'nl the Con1raccor is subject 10 1hc 
rcquircmcnu of N.H. RSA ch11p1c, 181-A, Con1ruc1or sh11II 
mail)tain, ond rcquirc DII)' subconlnic:to'r or OJsian« 10 secure 
and m.iinlllin, p~yrnenl of Wori:m' Compcnsn1ion in 
connection with activities which 1he person proposes to 
undcruike pursu.0n1 10 this l\grecmenl. Con1111c10, sholl 
furnish the Contracting Officer idcntilicd in block 1.9, or his 
or her succosor, proof of Workers' Compcnsntion in the 
monner d~bcd,in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A 11nd ony 
applicable rcncwiil(s) thcn:of, which sholl be Ollllthtd end ore 
incorporo1ed herc,n by reference. The Su11c s~oll nol be 
responsible for payment ofnn:,- Workers' Compcn~tion 
premiums or for any other claim or bcncfi1 for Contnictor, or 
any sisbcon1rue1or-or cmplo)'ec ofContrac1or, which might 
111isc under 11pplicoblc S1.111c o( New Hampshire Worl.:ers' 
Compcnsotion lows in conncc1ion wilh the pcrform11nce ofche 
Services under this Agreement. 

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No roilurc by 1hc S1a1c to 
enforce 1111y provisions hereof ,ner any Event or Ocfauh shall 
be deemed II w11iv.cr of its.righ1s wi1h regard 10 1ha/ Even I or 
Default, or ony subscqucn1 l;vcn1 ofOcfauh. No e.'<prcss 
failure 10 enforce '11ny Event ofOefaull sholl be deemed o 
w11i~r of1hc righ1 0(1hc Stale 10 enforce each ond all of1hc 
provisions hereof upon on)' fun her or other Event of Ocfouh 
on the p:irt of1ht Con1111c1or. 

17. NOTICE. Any notice by II po.ny hereto 10 1hc 01h(r p0.11y 
ih~II be deemed 10 have been dul)' delivered or given at the 
lime of moilina by certified moil, post.age prepaid, in II United 
S1e1cs Post Office oddre»cd 10 the par,ics 01 the addrcms 
given in blocks 1.2 nnd 1.4, herein. 

18. AMENDMENT. This Agrcemen1 moy be amended, 
waived or disch111gcd only by M ins1rumcn1 in writing signed 
by 1hc panics hereto a.nd only oner 11pprovol of such 
11mcndmcn1, w11ivcr or disch111gc by chc Go>'emor and 
Exccu1ivc Counci) of the S1A1c of New t-lampshirc unless no 

such opprovol is rcqui~d under the circumslanccs purs1111n1 u,· 
Stoic law, Nie or policy. 

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT ANO TERMS. 
This A1rccmcn1 shall be conStl'\Jcd in accord11ncc with 1hc 
la\\'s of1he S1a1c of New Hompshirc, and is bindin& upon and 
inuru 10 1hc bencru of the panics and their rrspective 
successors and assigns. The'ivordina used in 1his Agr«mcn1 
is the word_in& chosen by the ponies 10 exprt$$ lhcir mutual 
intent, 1111d no l'\llc 0fcoruu:uc1ion shnll be applied a,11irut or 
in (11vor or CU\)' pllrly. 

20 . THIRD PARTIE:S. The panics hcrc10 do not intend 10 
benefi t ony third pan ics and this Agrccmcn1 shall not be 
conserved 10 ,onrcr 1ny such bc:n<:fit. 

21 . HEADINGS. The headings 1hroughou1 the Agreement 
are for rcfc,cr.ce purposes only, 0nd the words contained 
therein shall in no 1voy be held fo explain, modify;amplify or 
aid in 1hc in1crprc111i0n. corutniction or meaning of the 
provisions or this Aarccmcnt . 

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set 
fonh in the onachcd EXHIBIT Ca.re incorporated herein by 
,ererencc. 

23. SEVERA81 LITY. In lhc event any of the provisionJ of 
this A&rccn1cn1 arc held by a court or competent jurisdic1ion 10 
be contrary 10 any state or federal law, 1hc remaining 
provisions or this Avccmcn1 will remain in full force and 
err cc 1. 

24. [NTI RE AC REEM ENT. This Agreement, which mny 
be executed in a num bcr or eounterpans, each of which shall 
be deemed en oriain11I, conSlitutcs the en1irc Agreement and 
undc1s1anding between lhc panics, end supcmdcs oil prior 
Agreements and unclcrs111ndings rclctin& hereto. 
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New. Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Facilitating Integrated Medication ~slsted Treatment for Pregnant, 
Postp;1rtum and Parenting Wo~en 

Exhibit A 

Scope of Services 

1; Provision_s Applicable to All Services 

• 
1.1. The Contractor shall submit e detailed description of the language assistance 

services they will provide to persons-wilh limited English proficiency to ensure 
meaningful access to their program~ and/o·r services within ten (10) days of the 
contract effective date. 

1.2 .. The Contractor agrees ~at, to the extent future legislative action by the New 
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact 
on · the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify 
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to 
achieve compliance therewith . 

1.3_. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Departmenl has identified the 
Contractor as a Subrecipient. in accordance with 2 CFR 200.300. 

2. Scope of Work 
2.1_. Program Requirements 

2.1.1. The Contractor shall enter into agreeme0ts with at least five (5) 
Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs) and/or hospitals, 
hereinafter referred to as Sites. to increase their capacity to provide and 
to deliver comprehensive integrated Medication Assisted Treatment 
(iMAT) services and supports for pregnant, pos·tpartum. and parenting 
women with opioid use disorders (OUD). along with their newborn and 
infant children. 

2.1. 1 .1 . The Contractor shall give preference to FQHCs and hospitals in 
Coos, Rockingham, Hillsborough, Merrimack, Strafford, and 
Cheshire counties; areas that are not currently served by an 
organization under contr~ct with DHHS to provide MAT for 
pregnant and postpartum women. 

2.1.1.2. Prospective Siles are s_ubjecl to the review and approval of the 
Department. 

2 .1.2. The Contractor shall provide project management and program 
consultation to each Site. 

2.1.3. °The Contractor shall support each Site to ensure they have billing 
capabilities which include , but are not limited to: 

2.1.3.1. Enrolling with Medicaid and other third party payers. 

2: 1.3.2. Contracting with managed care organizations and insurance 
companies for MAT and delivery of prenatal care . 

Bi-Sune Primary Care A$Soc/all011. Inc. EJChibil A C~lra~or Initials B.__~ 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Facilitating Integrated Medication Assisted Treatmentfor Pregnant, 
Postpartum and Parenting Women 

Exhibit A • 
2.1.3.3. Having a proper understanding of the hierarchy of the billing 

~rocess. 

2.1.4. The Contractor shall ensure compliance with and adherence ot 
themselves and all Siles to the State Opioid Response Grant Standards 
as identified in Section 9. 

2.1 .5. The Contractor shall ensure compliance and support each site in 
· .complying with confidentiality requirements, which include, but are not 

limited.to: 

2.1.5.1 . Applicable federal and state ·laws. 

2.1.5.2. HIPAA ~rivacy Rule. 

2.1.5. 3. 42 C.F.R Part 2. 

2.1.6. The C.ontractor shall .participate in all evaluation activities associated 
with the funding opportunity, including national evaluations. 

2.1.7. The Contractor shall submit a work plan lo the Department for review 
and approval, which describes the process tor ensuring the completion 
of an aspects or the Scope of Services, as outlined in this Contract, 
within thirty (30) days from approval of the contract by the Governor and 
Executive Council. 

, 
2.1.8.. The Contractor, in collaboration with the Sites, shall create a 

sustainability plan to continue to provide iMAT services to the target 
population beyond the completion date of the contract, subject. to 
approval by the Department. · 

2.2. Medication Assisted Treatment 

2.2.1. The Contractor shall work with Sites, as identified in Section 2.1.1, to 
enhance their capacity to i_mplement ·and deliver MAT services a~d 
supports. The Contractor shall provide support which includes, but is not 
limited to: 

2.2 .1.1. Establishing teams to deliver MAT that involve current staff, the 
recruitment of new staff, and/or the development of formal 
relationships with external partners. · 

2.2.1-.'2 . Providing Sites with information on available trainings to support 
initiating or expanding the capacity to deliver MAT with a pp roved 
medications. 

2.2 .1.3. Providing assistance with identifying needed modifications to 
electronic health record (EHR) systems in order to collect and 
report data elements. as required in Section 5. 

2.2.2. The Contractor shat! ensure each Site : 
Bi-Sule Primary Care Association, Inc. 
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2.2.2.1. Collaborates with local and regional Doorways, to include. but 
not be limited to: 

2.2.2.1.1. Accepting dinical evaluation results for level of care 
placement from the Doorways upon referral of a client 
or upon intake in order to ensure that clients are not 
over-evaluated. 

2.2.2.1.2. Developing policies and procedures to ensure the 
Government Performance Reporting Act (GPRA) data 
is captured for each participant, as required . 

2.2.2.1.3. Assisting participants with identifying. applying for, and 
obtaining ancillary, non-clinical recovery support 
services that reduce barriers to a client's participation 
in treatment or recovery, which may inclu~e. but are 
not limited to services identified in Subparagraph · 
2.3.2.2, as appropriate. 

2.2 .2.1.4. Obtaining naloxone kits for distribution to program 
participants and family members .. 

2.2.2.2. Provides MAT services with fidelity to federal, state. and best 
practice recommendations as described in the "Guidance 

· Document on Best Practices· 
https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbh/bdas/documents/matguidancedo 
c.pdf 

2.2 .2.3. .Develops policies and practices related, but not limited, to: 

2.2.2.3.1 . Evaluation and medical examination to verify that 
patients meet criteria for opioid use disorders, are 
appropriate for MAT level of care. and det.ermine the 
appropriate medication. 

2.2.2.3.2 . Induction procedures. 

2.2.2.3.3. Integration of behavioral health counseling. 

2.i2.3.4 . Documentation of MAT services. 

2.2 .2.3.5. Urine drug testing . 

2.2.2.3.6. pischarge from MAT services. 

2.2 .2.3.7 . Billing procedures. 

2.2.2.3.8. Transition between levels of care as appropriate. 

Bi-Sllte Primary C0te AM<>Ciation, Inc. 
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Exhibit A 

2.2.2.3.9. Utilizing the State's Prescription Drug Monitoring 
Program (POMP) database in accordance with State 
requirements. 

2.2.2.4. Identifies at least one (1) waivered provider to prescribe 
buprenorphine. 

2.2.2.5. Provides ongoing supervision for buprenorphine prescribers, 
with access to consultation from experienced providers . 

2.2.2.6. 

2.2.2.7. 

2.2.2.8. 

Utilizes patient-centered educational . materials regarding 
overdose prevention, such as the Substance Abuse and Mental 
Health Services Administration's (SAMHSA's) Opioid Overdose 
Prevention Toolkil. 

Provides interim OUO treatment services, when the necessary 
treatment services are not available to the participant, within 
forty-eight (48) hours of referral. Interim services shall include, 
but are not limited to Recovery Support Services (RSS) as 
needed by the client. 

Develops collaborative relationships with external partners that 
offer services to pregnant women with OUO to provide additional 
services not available through the Site. including but not limited 
to: · 

2.2.2.8.1. MAT services with Methadone. 

2.2.2.8.2. lnten·slve levels of behavioral health counseling not 
available at their agency. 

2.2.2 .8.3. Ancillary, non-clinical recovery support services that 
reduce barriers to a client's participation in treatment or 
recovery, which may include, services identified in 
Subparagraph 2.3.2.2; and supports and services 
offered through the Doorways. 

2.3. Integrated Services and Supports 

2.3.1. The Contractor shall work with the Sites, as identified in Section 2.1.1. 
to enhance their capacity and to deliver integrated services and supports 
for prenatal and postpartum care, and provide parenting support and 
education tor parents, utilizing evidence-based practices and curricula 
when available and appropriate. in coordination with the MAT services 
in Secti9n 2.2; including, but not limited to: 

2.3.1.1. Obstetrical/gynecological (08/Gyn) services. 

2.3.1.2. Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome (NAS) services. 

Bi-State Primery Core Associoti-On, Inc. 
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2.3.1.3. Peer recovery coaches. 

2.3.1 .4. Resource/Employment specialists. 

2.3.1.5. Case managemenVCare coordination. 

2.3.1.6. Childbirth education. 

2.3.1.7. Safe sleep education. 

• 

2.3.1.8. Parenting and personal development education · groups, 
programs, and activities. which integrate the parenting education 
curriculum with addiction treatment so that participants have the 
opportunity to learn about the. impact of substance use on family 
functioning and healthy child development. This m·ay include. but 
is not limited to th~ following programs: · 

2.3.1.8.1. Mornings Out . 

2.3.1.8·. 2. Sober Parenting Journey. 

2.3.1.9. Health education, including practices for- safe storage of 
medication and preventing diversio~ of medications. 

2.3.1.10. Supporting and mentoring leadership of group therapy for 
participating women. 

2.3.1.11. Educational sessions to all p_regnancy groups that include. but 
are not limited to "The Period of Purple Crying." safe sleep 
practices and car seat safety and are integrated with newborn 
nursery and outpalient pediatric follow ·up. 

2:3.2. The Contractor shall ensure each Site: · 

2.3.2.1. Provides access to childcare -support to participants that allows 
women to participate in and receive care without distraction. 

2.3.2.2. Assists participants with identifying, applying for, and obtaining 
benefits, programs, supports, . and services appropriate for 
pregnant, postpartum, and parenting women. including but not 
limited to : 

2.3.2.2.1. Social supports including. but not limi_ted to access 
and/or referrals to food, housing, and childcare. 

2.3.2.2.2. Recovery centers, peer support ·. groups. and 
transitional housing. 

2.3.2:2.3 . . Behavioral health resources in the local community. 

2.3.2.2.4 . Transportation resources including, but not limited to: 

Bi-Slate-Primary Core Anocialion. loc. 
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2.3.2.2.4.1. Assisting pa_rticipants to enroll in Medicaid 
transportation services. 

2.3.2 .2.4.2. Developing a network of support to help 
with transportation needs. 

2.3.2.2.4.3. Identifying resources to help participants 
to attain a valid driver's license or an 
affordable car loan. 

2.3.2.3. Develops a Plan for Safe Care with birth attendants and the New 
Hampshire Division of Children, Youth, and Families (DCYF), 
per NH RSA 132: 10-e and RSA 132: 10:f, for each infant affected 
by prenatal drug or fetal alcohol exposure. 

2.3.2.3.1. Planning and communication regarding the Plan for 
Safe -Care will also involve other community ag~ncy 
supports including. but not ·limited to home visitation, 
NH Women, Infants and Children Nutrition Program, 
housing, and other services central to recovery and 
parenting. 

2.3.2.4. Assesses relapsing participants for referral to the appropriate 
level of care. 

2.3.2.5. Obtains · the necessary releases to ensure ongoing 
communication and care coordination with entities involved in 
the participants' care including child protective services, 
treatment providers, home visiting services, and pediatric 

· providers. · · 

2.3.2.6. Enables participant choice in services · by utilizing available 
resources, including the New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug 
Treatment Locator (http://www.nhtreatment.org) and the 
Doorways (https://www.thedoorway.nh.gov/), to identify specific 
s·ervices that are availabl~ by location, population, and payer. 

2.3.2.7. Has ongoing communication and care coordination with entities . 
involved in the participants' care including, but not limited to: 

2.3.2.7 .1. Child protective services. 

2.3.2.7.2. Treatment providers. 

2.3.2.7.3. Home visiting services. 

2.3.2. 7 .4. Pediatric providers. 
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2.3.3. The Contractor shall assist each Site in providing participants with 
access to a network of support such as Recovery Community 
Organizations and mutual support groups. 

2.3.4. _The Contractor shall assist Sites in engaging and collaborating with 
.local/regional referral networks and community partners to increase 
awareness ·of the program, align and coordinate services across 
networks, and enable the program to be utilized to its 9reatcst capacity. 
These partners include, but are not limited to: 

2.3.4 .1. Continuum of Care Facilitators within Regional Public Health 
Networks. 

2.3.4.2. Integrated D~livery Networks. 

2.3.4.3. Family Resource _Center(s). 

2.3.4 .4. Doorways. 

2.3.5. 'The Contractor shall collaborate with the Sites to develop and implement 
outreach activities, which may include marketing designed to engage 
pregnant women wilh an OUD in the community and promote this 
program throughout their service areas. The Contractor and Sites are 
not r~quired ~o market themselves publicly as SUD treatment centers. 

2.3.6. The Contractor shall ensure. meaningful input of consumers in program 
assessment, planning , implementation, and improvement. 

2.3.7. The Contractor shall ensure patient-centered, effective, integrated care 
and attention to overdose prevention is provided by each Site by 
employing educational materials which include, but are not limited· lo: 

2.3.7 .1 . Center for Disease Control (CDq opioid prescribing guidelines. 

2.3.7.2 . Substance Abuse and Menial Health Services Administration's 
. (SAMHSA) Opioid Overdos_e Prevention Toolkit. 

2.3.7 .3.· State-published Guidance Document on Best Practices: Key 
Components for Delivering Community B.ased Medication 
Assisted Treatment Services · tor Opioid Use Disorders in NH 
(ht1ps:/twww.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbcs/bdas/documents/matguidaf)Ce 
doc.pdt). 

2.3.8. The .Contractor shall collaborate with each Site to modify worl<flows and 
electronic records processes to ensure screening and requ ired data 
collection . 

2.4. The Contractor shall meet with the Department at a frequency and in a. format 
determined by the Department, to review work plan progress, Sile development. 
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and encountered or foreseeable issues to achieving perfor.maoce measures 
detailed in Section 8. 

3. Staffing 
, 

3.1 . The Contractor shall ensure each Site meets the minimum MAT team staffing 
requirements to provide the ·Scope of Services as follows: 

3., .1. Proviqes access to at least one (1) : 

3., .1.1. Waivered prescriber. 

3.1 .1.2. Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor or beh·avioral 
health provider with add iction trai0ing. 

3.1 J .3. Obstetrician or midwife. 

3.1.1.4. ca·re coordinator. 

3.1.1 .5. Non-clinical/administrative staff. 

3.1.1.6. Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) 

3.1.2. Sufficient staffing levels that are appropriate for the services provided 
and the numt?er of clients served. 

3.1 .3. All unlicensed staff, at each Site, providing treatment, education; and/or 
recovery support services are under the direct supervision of a licensed 
supervisor. 

3.1.4. No licensed supervisor, at each site, oversees more than twelve (12) 
unlicensed staff, unles·s the Department has approved an alternative 
supervision plan. 

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure that unlicensed staff providing clinical or recovery 
support services must hold a minimum of a CRSW.within one (1) year of hire or 

, from the e~ective date of this contract, whichever is 1a·ter. 

3.3. The Contractor shall notify the Department in writing within one (1) month of hire 
when a new administrator or coordinator or any staff person essential to carrying 
out this scope of services is hired to work in ihe program. The Contract shall 
provide a copy of the resume of the employee, which clearly indicates the staff 
member is employed by the Contractor, with the notification . 

. 3.4·_ The ·Contractpr shall notify the Department within writing .within fourteen ·(14) 
calendar days, when there is not sufficient staffing to perform all required 
services for more than one month; 

4. Training 
. 4.1. The Contractor shall: 

Bi•Slato Primary Care Association, Int. 
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4.1.1. Ensure lhe availability of initial and on-going training resources to all 
Sites including, but nol limited to buprenorphine waiver training for 
physician~. nurse practitioners, and physician assistants. 

4.1.2. Develop a training plan with each Site to train and engage appropriate 
staff. Plans shall be submitted to the Department for approval prior -to 
implementation. 

4.1.3. Ensure staff at all Sites receive confidentiality training pursuant to 
vendor policies and procedures in complian~ with NH State 
administrative rules and state and federal laws. This includes, but is not 
limited ·to safeguarding protected health information, SUD treatment 
information, and any individually identifiable patient information. 

4.1.4. Participate in and ensure Sites participate in training and technical 
assistance activities, as directed by the Department, to assi_st with the 
MAT planning. implementation. monitoring, and quality improvement, as 
well_ as services and suppor1s tor pregnant: postpartum and parenting 
women and their newborn and infant children, as appropriate. This 
includes train_ing activities -such as. but not li~ited to: 

4.1.4.1 . The Community of Practice for MAT, provided through the NH 
Center for Excellence. 

4.1 .4.2. Project-specific training~. 

4.1.4.3. Ad hoc communication with expert consultants on MAT clinical 
care topics such as Hepatitfs C Virus (HCV) and Human 
Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) prevention, diversion risk 
mitigation, and other relevant issues. 

4.1.5. Ensure staff at each Site are trained on relevant topics which may 
include. but are not limited to : 

4.1.5.1. Integrated care. 

4.1.5.2. Trauma-informed care and other evidence bas~d treatment 
strategies as indicated. 

4.1.5.3. MAT best practices. 

4.1.5.4. Care coordination. 

4.1.5.5. RSS delivery best practices, including CRSW courses for 
prospective Recovery Coaches. 

4.1 .5.6. Smoking Cessation. 

4.1.5. 7. Motivational Interviewing. 

Bi-Suite-Prim~ry Care A»odati011. Inc. 
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4.1.5.6 .. Evidence-Based Practices s.uch as Screening, Brief. 
ln.tervenlion, and Referral to Treatment. 

4.1.5.9. Buprenorphine waiver trainings, available locally and at websites 
including, but not _limited to: 

4.1.5.9.1 . The NH Medical Society: 
https://www.nhms.org/opioidcme 

4.1.5.9.2. The Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 
Administration (SAMHSA): 
https://www .sam hsa . gov/medication-assisted-
trea tmenUtfaining-resources/buprenorphine­
physician-training 

4.1.5.9.3. The American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM): 
https:/twww.asam.org/education 

·4.1.5.9.4. American Association of Nurse Practitioners: 
https:llaanp.inreachce.com/ 

4.1.6. Cognitive behavioral therapy, dialectical behavior therapy, motivational 
enhancement therapy, mindfulness. and relapse prevention. 

4.1.7. Collaborate .with the Doorways to provide training and logistics to all 
Sites for the distribution 'of naloxo0e kits . to. participants and _family 
members. · 

4.2. Ensure that personnel providing services at each Site are licensed, certified, 
and/or trained in the services being provided. 

4.3. Ensure each Site maintains policies and procedures and have required 
employee training, at least once per year. in the areas of ethical conduct. 
confidentiality, compliance. cyber security, and conflict of interest. 

5 . . oa;ta Collection and Reporting 

5.1. The Contractor shall assist and ensure each Site collects, reports and submits 
de-identified, aggregate patient data, including , but no! limited to: 

5.1.1. Demographics and measures for all program participants. as identified 
by the Department. · 

5.1.2. Number of people referred· to or from local and regional Doorways, 
broken out by Doorway and service . 

5.1.3. Federally required data points specific to this funding opportunity as 
identified by SAMHSA. 

5.1.4 . The nu·rnber of additional supports and services provided. by type of 

service and support. ~ . 
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5.2. ·The Contractor, in collaboration with th_e Department, will analyze and utilize 
data collected for promoting quality improvement efforts of this project. 

5.3. The Contractor shall report all data in section 5 to the Department in total for all 
Sites, as well as individually for each Site, in a format approved by the 
Department. 

. 6. Critical Incidents and Sentinel Events 
6.1 . The Contractor shall report, and shall ensure all Sites report: 

6.1.1. All critical incidents to the Department in writing as soon as possible and 
no more than 24 hours following the incident. The· Contractor agrees 
that: 

6.1.1 .1. "Critical incident· means any actual or alleged event or situation 
that creates a significant risk of substantial or seriOl!S harm to 
physical or mental health. safety, or well- being, including but not 
limited to: 

6.1.1.1.1. Abuse; 

6.1.1.1.2. Neglect; 

6.1.1 .1.3. Exploitation; 

6.1 .1.1.4. Rights violation; 

6.1 .1.1 ·.s. Miss\ng person; 

s:·1 .1.1.6. Medical emergency; 

6.1.1.1.7. Restraint;or 

6.1.1.1.8. Medical error. 

6.1.2. All contact wlth law enforcement to the Department in writing as soon as 
possible and no more than 24 hours following the incident;_ 

6.1.3. All media contacts to the Department in writing as soon as possible and 
no m·ore than 24 hours following the incident: · 

6.1.4. All sentinel" events , involving any individual receiving services un_der this 
contract, to the Department as follows: 

. 6.1.4.1. ·sentinel events· as defined by the NH DHHS Sentinel Event 
Reporting and Review policy is an unexpected occurrence 
involving death or serious physical or psy~hological injury, or 
the risk thereof. Serious injury specifically includes loss of limb 
or function 
(https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbc

0

s/documents/policy.pdf). All 
sentinel events hall be reported as follows: 

Bi-State Primury Care Association, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initial:,~ 
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6.1.4.1.1. Upon discovering the event, the Contractor shan 
provide immediate verbal notificatio~ of the event to the 
Department, which shall indude: 

6.1.4.1.1 .1. The reporting individual's name, phone 
number, and organization; 

6.1.4.1.1 .2. Name and date of birth of the individual(s) 
involved in the event; 

6.1 .4.1 .1.3. Location. date. and_ time of the even_t: 

6.1.4.1 .1.4. 'Description of the event. including what, 
when, where, how the event happened, 
and other relevant.information, as well as 
the identificatiori of any other individuals 
involved_; 

6.1.4.1.1.5. Whether the police were involved due to a 
crime or _suspected crime: and 

6.1 .4.1.1 .6. The identification of any media that 
reported the event. 

6.1.4.1.2. Within 72 hours of the sentinel event. the Contractor 
shall submit a completed ·sentinel Event Reporting 
Form· (February 2017). available at 
https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbcs/documentsJreporting­
torrn .docx to the Department; ·and 

6.1.4.1 .3. Additional information on the event that is discovered 
after filing the form in Section 6.1.4.1.2 above shall be 
reported to the Department,' in writing. as it becomes 
available or upon request of the Department. 

6.2, The Contractor shall report all Critical and Sentinel events as outlined in 
Subsection 6 .1, to other agencies as required by law. 

6.3. · The Contractor shall submit. and ensure all Sites submit. additional information 
regarding Critical and Sentinel events if required and as requested by the 
Department. 

7. Deliverables 
7.1. The Contractor shall provide copies of the executed agreements described in 

Section 2.1.1, to the Department within five (5) business d~ys of fully executing 
the documents. Each agreement and renewal is subject to Department review 
and approval. : 

8l-SU1te Primary Care A$Socialion, Inc. 
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7.2:. The Contractor shall provide a written work plan, which describes the process 
for ensuring the completion of all aspects of the Scope of Services (Section 2). 
Staffing '(Section 3), and Training (Section 4) as outlined in this Contract within 
thirty (30) days of Governor and Executive Council approval of the Contract. The 
work plan shall be subject to review and approval by the Department. 

7.3·. The Contractor shall provide monthly status reports based on work plan 
progress to l~clude, but not be limit~d to: 

7.3.1. Staff retained to support MAT at each Site; 

7.3:2. 

7:3.3. 

7.3.4. 

7.3.5. 

7.3.6. 

7.3.7. 

Number of prescribers waivered to prescribe buprenorphine at each 
Site: . 

Outreach -a~tivities co_nducted by lhe Contractor and by each· Site: 

Policies and practices established; 

Encountered and foreseeable issues, along with actual -or suggested 
resolutions: 

Changes made to the initial work plan: 

Training and ·technical assistance provided to or needed by each Site; 
and 

7.3.8. Other progress to date. 

7.4 .. The Contractor shall report on and submit a'II _data points in Section 5, as 
requested by the Department, monthly. and send the results in de-identified, 
aggregate form to the Department using a Department-approved format. 

7.5. The Coniractor must submit a final report to the Department within 45 days of 
condusion of the contract which shall include, but is not limited to: · 

7.5.1. A summary of information detailing progress made toward completion of 
all aspects of the Scope of Services, including challenge·s encountered 
and actions taken : 

7.5.2. Total of de-identified and aggregate data by Site and by program as a 
whole: 

7.5.3. Demographics of participants: 

7.5.4. Number of patients receiving MAT prior to program implementation 
compared to number of patients receiving MAT at ·end of Contract, 
including demographic {e .g., gender, age, race. ethnicity) and outcome 
data as appropriate: 

7.5.5. Training and technical assistance provided; and 

7.5.6. Oth~r progress to date. 
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7 .6, The Contractor shall submit the sustainability plan. described in Section 2. i .8, 
to the Department for review and approval, at least three.(3) months prior to the 
end of this contract. 

8. Performance Measures 
·a.1. The following aggregate performance indicators are to be achieved annually 

· and monitored monthly to. measure the effectiveness of the agreement: 

' 8., ., . The Contractor shall ensure that fifty percent (50%) of women referred 
to the program who consent to treatment and qualify based on clinical 
evaluation will enter QUD treatment as reported by the Sites. 

8.1.2. The Contractor shall ensure seventy-five percent (75%) of women 
identified by ASAM criteria as in need of a higher level of care wilt be 
referred-to treatmen~ services in order to increase referral of pregnant 
and postpartum women to QUO treatment provi_ders. as reported by the 
Sites. 

8.1 .3. The Contractor shall attempt to lower positive urine drug screens for illicit . 
substances for pregnant women served in this program by five percent 
(5%) from State· Fiscal Year 2020-to State Fis~al Year 2021, as reported 
by the Sites. · 

8.2. Annually, the Contractor shall deYetop and submit to the Department, a 
corrective action plan, in a format approved by the Department, for any 
perfQrmance measure that was not achieved. 

9. State Opioid Response_ (SOR) Grant Standards 

9.1. In. order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded 
initiatives. the Contractor shall ensure each Site: 

9.2. 

9.1.1 . Establishes formal information sharing and referral agreements with all 
Doorways tor substance use services that comply with all applicable 
confidentiality laws, inclu~ing 42 CFR Part 2. 

9.1.2. Completes client referrals to applicable Doorways for substance use 
services within two (2) business days of a client's admission to the 
program. 

9.1 .3. Only provides medical withdrawal management services to any 
individual supported by SOR Grant Funds if the withdrawal management 
service is accompanied by the use of injectable extended-release 
naltre,cone. a~ clinically appropri~te. 

The Contractor shall ensure that only FDA-approved l'¥1AT for OUD is u_tilized . 
FDA-approved MAT for QUO includes: 

9.2.1 . Methadone. 
Bi-Slote Primary Care As.malion. Inc. 
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9.2.2. Buprenorphine products, including: 

9.2:2. 1. Single-entity buprenorphine products. 

9.2.2.2. Buprenorphine/naloxone tablets. 

9.2.2.3. Buprenorphine/naloxone films. 

9.2.2.4. Buprenorphine/naloxone buccal preparations. 

9.2.2.5. Lon_g-acting· injectable buprenorphine products: 

9.2.2.6. Buprenorphine implants. 

9.2.2.7. lfijectable extended-release naltrexone. 

9.3'. The Contractor shall proyide the Department with timelines and implementation 
plans associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place 
within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date. . 

9.3.1. If the Contractor is unable to offer services within Jhe required timeframe, 
the Contra~tor shall submit an updated implementation plan to the 

· Department for approval to outline anticipated service start dates. 

9.3.2. The Departmer,I reserves the · right to terminate the contract and. 
liquidate unspent funds. if seCYices are not in place within ninety (90) 
days of the contract effective date. 

9.4 . The Contractor shall assist clients with enrolling in public or private healih 
insurance, if the client is determined eligible for such coverage. 

9.5. The Contractor shall accept clients for MAT and facilitate access to MAT on-site 
or thr9ugh referral for all clients supported with SOR Grant funds, as clinically 
appropriate. 

9.6. The Contractor shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White HIV/AIDs program for 
clients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS. 

I 

9. 7. The Contractor shall ensure that all clients are regularly screened for, tobacco 
use, treatment needs ~nd referral to the Quitline as part or treatment planning. 

Si-St.ate Primary Con: Auociation, Inc . . 

SS-2020.BOAS.OB-FACIL 
Rev.09196'18 

Exhibit A 

Poge 15 of 15 

Conlr11do1 Initial~ 

Oate~f/J°I 



DocuS ig n Envelope ID: 68998552-CCAE-4A68-BAD 1-86FBD1 F C60A 7 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6E96O43B-8443-45AB-916!H6~.«512498 

DocuSign Envelope ID: •FM2ESA-B563-4EE3-81A~E91A8802C2CO 

New Ha:mpshlre Department of Health and Human Services 
Facllltallng Integrated Medi.cation Assisted Treatment for Pregnant, 
Postpartum and Parenting Women 

Exhibit B 

Meth·od and Conditions Precedent to Payment 
I 

• 
1. The ~tate shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, 

Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, ~cope of Services. 

2. This ¼greement is funded with federal funds as follows: 100% Federal Funds from the 
US Oepartment of Heal~h and Human 'Services, Substance Abuse .and Mental. Health 
Administration, State · Targeted Response Grant, Catalog of Federal Domestic 
Assistance ·(CFOA #) 93.788, .FAIN TI080246 and the Stale Opioid Response Grant 
FAIN TI081685. . 

3. Failu_re to meet the s·cope of services may jeopardiie the funded Contractor's current' 
and/9r future funding. 

4. Payment for said services shall be made m<:>nthly as follows: . 

4.1. Paymenr shall be on a ·cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred 
i0 the fulfillrri'ent of this Agreement. and shall be in accordance with lhe approved 
li.ne items as specified in Exhibit B-1, Budget and Exhibit 9-2. Budget, and Exhibit 
B-3. Budget. 
' 

4.2. The Contractor shall sy~mil ·an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the 
twentieth (20lh) working day of each month, which identifies and requests 
r~imbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. 

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed . signed, dated and returned 
· to the Oepartment in order to initiate paymen·t. 

4.4._T:he State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of 
each invoice. subsequent to approval or lhe submitted invoice_ and if sufficient funds 
are available. 

5. The Contractor shall keep'detailed records of the_ir activities related to Oepartment­
fund¢d programs and services and ha_ve records available for Depa~ment review. c!S 
requested :· / 

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract 
compi'etion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date. 

Bi-St&le Primary Care .A.3sociotion. Inc. 

' 
SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL P100 1 or 2 

, Rev. 01/08/~0 
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New Hampshire Department of Heal~h and Human Services 
Facllltatlng Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant, 
Po~tpar.tum and Parenting Women 

Exhibit B • 
7. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigne~ ·an electronic signature anq emailed 

to B.DAS Finance al Laurje.Heath@dhhs.nh.gov and Melissa.Girard@dhhs.nh.gov or a 
hard copy may be mailed to: , 

BOAS Finance 
Department of Health and Human Services 
Division for Behavioral Health 
Bureau of Drug and Alcohol 
105 Ple·asant Street. Main Bldg., 1st Fl9or North 
Concord, NH 03301 

8. Payments may be wi~held pending receipt of required reports or documentation as 
identified in Exhibit A. SC9pe of Services and in this Exhibit 8. 

9. Notwithstanding anything to, the .contrary herein. the Contractor agrees that funding 
under this agreement. may be withheld, in whole or in part, iri the event of non­
compliance with any ·Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable to the services 
provided. or if the -said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement. 

'• 
10. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to 

adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items. amendments of related 
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between 
State Fiscal Years. may be made by written agree.men! of both parties and may be 
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and.Executive Council. 

Bi-SU1le Primary Care AMociatioo. Inc. 

SS-2020.BDAS-08-FACIL 
Ro-,. 01/0ali9 

E.,chlb/\ 8 
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Now H~ml)$hlre Oopartmont of Health and·Hum11n Services 
. ExhlbltC 

SPECIAL PBAYl§l0N§ • 
Contractor, Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees-that all funds received by the Contractor 
under lhe Contract ahall be used only 11s payrT')enl to the Contractor lor setVices provided to eligiblo 
individuals and, in lheJurtherance or the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and 
agrees as follows: 

1. Compllanco with Fodor-al and St.at• Law•: If 11,a Conllactor is permitted to determine tho eligibility 
of Individuals auch ollgibilily dolermlnation shall b4I made In aceordance with applicable fedaral and 
stale law,. regula~ons. orders . guid.elines . P<>licles and proc:edures. 

2. Tlmo and Manno, cit OotomilnaUon: Ellglblllty dotormlnaVon• aholl bo mado on forms provide<! by 
Iha Department for that purpose and shaU be mado and remade at such limo as era preacribod by 
lhe Department. · 

3. OocumontaUon: In.addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor 
·ahall maintain a data rde on eaeh recipient or services here\lnder, whieh file shali Include all 
information neceas_ary to support an eligibility determination and· aueh other inlormarion as the 
Department requests. The Contrad0< shall h.imish the Department with all forms and documentation 
regarding eligibility determinations lhat the Department may request or require. 

. . 
4. Fnlr Hearings: Tt'!e Contracl0< unde~tands that o!I opplicanls for services hereunder, as well as 

individuals declared ineligibl~ have a right 1.0 a fair hearing regarding that determination. The 
Contract0< hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants tor services shall be permitted to fill out 
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be Informed of his/her right to alalr 
h_earing in accordance with Department regulations. · 

5. -Gratultlos or Kitkbacka: The Contract0< agrees that it Is o breach or \his Conlri!ct lo acapt O< 

make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf or the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or 
the State in order to Influence the performance of the ScQpe of Wor11 detailed in Exhibit A of this 
Co~lract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement ii ii Is 
determined that payments. gratuities or offers ol employment or any kind were ottered or received by 
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor 01 Sub-Contractor. 

6. Rotroactlvo Paymont.D: No!Wllhstandlng anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or lnony 
other document, contract 0< understanding. ii is expressly understood and agreed by the parties 
hereto, that no payments will be m.ido hereunder to reimburse 'tho Conlractor ror costs Incurred for 
any pu_rpose or for any service, provided lo any Individual prior to lhe Effective Date or the Contract 
ond no payme~ls shall be mode ro, expenses lncvrred by the Contraetor for any setVices providll<I 
prl(!I' to tho date on which lhe lndiyidual applies '°' services or (ex~pt as olherwise provided by the 
federal regulations) prior to a determination thal the individual is eli_gible for such services . 

7. Cond1Uon11 of PurchDSo: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary.contained In the Contract, nolhln9 
herein contained shall be deemed 10 obligate or require tho Department to pvrchase services 
hereunder at o rate which reimburses the Contractor In excess of the Contractors cosls, al o rate 
whidi exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary lo anure the quality ol sueh ser.,lce, or at a 
rat~ which exceed, the rate charged by the Contractor lo ineligible individuals or olhet third party 
funders ror such oeNice. If at ony time during the tern:i ol this Contract or otter receipt or tho Final 
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determin«i lhal tho ~ontractor has used 
payments hereunder to reimburse llem~ or expense other than such costs. or has received payment 
In excess ol such costa or In excess of such rain charged by tho Contractor to Ineligible individuals 
·or other third party funders, the Oepartmenl r:nay elect to: 

7.1. 
7.2. 

Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, In which event new rates shall be establi$hed: 
Deduct from any lulure payment to the Conlraclor lhe .imount of any prior reimbursement in 

excess of cos1s: j 
EJcNbU C - Spedal Ptovulons ConlndOI Wlla ~ 
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New Hampehlro Doportmont of Hoalth and Human Sorvlc03 
Exhibit C . 

7.3.. Demand re~yment of !he excess payml!llt by the Cootractor in which event failure lo mah 
such repayment 11han con111itute an Event or Defau11 hereunder. When the Con1rac1or is 
permlrt~ to determine the etigibility of individuals for ur,,lces, the Contractor agrees to 
reimburse the Department tor all funds paid by the Departmenl to the Contractor tor ser,,lces 
provided to any indiyldual who is found by the Oepattmenl to be ineligible for such services at 
any time during the period or re1ention or records established herein . 

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE ANO CONFIDENTIALITY: 

8. Matntonanco of Roeorda: In addition to the eliglbUity records speciffed ebove, the Contractor 
covenants end agrees lo'inalntaln the following records during !he Contract Period: 

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, docvmenta ond other data evidencing and reflecting ell coats 
and other expenses incurred by the Conlracto, in the performance ol the Con1,act, and au 
income received or coDeded by the Contractor during lhe Contract Perio<f, said records to be 
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and pracllces which surrlelenUy and 
properly ,effect all such costs end expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department. and 
to indude. wllhou1 llmi1ation, ell ledgers. books. records, and original evidence of costs such as 
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers. requi5ilions for materials. Inventories. valuallons of 
ln-klnd contributions. labor time cards, 'payrolls, end other records requested or required by the 
Department. . 

8.2. Statistical Reeo<ds: Statislical, enrollment, attendance or visli r~rds ror each recipient or 
services during the Contract Perlo<f, which ·records shall Include all records of application and 
eliglbWty (including all ro,ms reQvired to delermine eligibility for each such recipient)', records 
regarding the proviaion or service, and all invoices submitted lo the Departmcn1 to obtain 
payment for such aervices. 

8.3.- Medical Records: Where appropriale and as prescribed by lhe Oepartmenl regulations. the 
Contractor shall retain mediGal reco~s on each patienVrecipient or services. 

9. Audit : Contractor shall submil an annual eudii to the Department wilhin 60 days after the close oflhe 
agency fiscal year. It is_.recommended that the report b.o prepared in accordance with the provision of 
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of Stales, Local Governments, and Non 
Profit Organlulions··and.the provisions ol Standards for Audit or Govemmental Organizations, 
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as 
ther per1ain to financial compliance.audils. . 

9.1. Audit and Review: During the tem, of this C0<1t1a·c1 and the period 10( retention hereunder, the 
Department, the United Slates Department or Health and Hum~n Services, and any ol lheir 
designaled representatives shall have,access to all reports and records maintained pursuantto 
the Contract !or purposes of audit. examination, excerpts .ind lranscripls. · 

9.2. Audit liabilities: In addition 10 and not in any way in limitation or obligations of the Contract 11 Is 
underatood and agreed by ·1he Contractor that the Contract0< shall be held liable for any state 
or federal audit exceptions and &hall return to the Department, all paymenl:. mado undor' tho 
Conuact lo which exception has been taken or which ha~e been disallowed beec1us11 of such an 
exception. 

10. Confldontiality of Rocord5: All inl0<ma1ion. reports. end records maintained hereunder or conected 
in connection with the perlonnance ol the services and the Contract shall be .confidential and shallnol 
be disclosed by tho Contractor. provided however, that pursuanl to slate laws and the regulations of _ 
the:Department ,ega,ding the use_ and disclosure or auch inlormalion. disclosure may be:made lo 
pub.lie officials requlring sueh information in connection with their official duties and lor purposes 
directly connected to the adminlslration or the services and the Contract; and provided lurther, that 
!he use o.r disclosure .by any party or any information concerning a recipient ro, any purpose not 
dir~ctly connected with the administration ol the Department or the Contractor's respoosibillties with 
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consenl _or lhe recipienl, his 

attorney or guardian. ~ 
E.rh!bil C - S9Kl1I Pr<Mslctll Conlrld0t l11~l1 
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Exhibit C • No~ilnstanding ariything·to the contrary contained herein the covenants and condilions contoined I~ 

the .Pafagraph shaU survive the termination.of the Contract for any reason whatsoever. 

11 . Roports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Cont1aci0< agrees to submit the following repons at tho lollowing 
times if requested by lhe Department. 
11 . 1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim rinancial reports containing a detailed de&cription of 

• all costs and non-allowable expenses incvrred by the Contractor to the dato of tho report and 
containing such other Information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Oepar1tnent to 
jualify tho .,ato of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form 
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Oepannient. 

11 .2. Final Report A final repor1 sha0 be &ubmitted within lhlrty (30) day& alter the end of the term 
ol !hi• Contract. :t"he Flnal Report anau bo In a rorm satisfactory to tho Oopartmen1 ond ah:ill 
contain a 1umm1ry stJtemont of progreu toward QO?I• and objectives stat&d in tho Proposal 
and other lnformalion required by the Oepartment 

12. ComploUon of Servh:os: Disallowance ol Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the 
maxim.um number of units provided for in lhe Conl/act and upon paymenl of the price limitation 
hereunder. lhe Contract end all the obligatiooa of lhc ·parties hereunder (except such obligations as. 
by the terms of Che Contract a1e to be performed after the end or Iha term of this Conlract and/or 
sut\llve the termination of the Contraci) shall terminate. provided however. that if. upon review oflhe 

· Fln*I E1tpendiluro Report lhe Department shaQ disaUow any expenses claimed by the Contractor u 
cosls hereunder lhe Department shall relaln the right. at its discretion. to deduct the amounl of such 
oxpenaes aa aro diaallowod or to recover such ,urns from the Contractor. 

13. Credits: All dOCYments. notices, prcsr. releases. research reports end other materials prepared 
during or resulting from the perlormance of the services of the Contract shall include the foUowing 
statement: 
13. 1. TM preparation of lhis (report. document etc.) was financed under a ContraC1 with the State 

ol New HnmpsJ:lire, Department ol Heallh and Human Services, with.funds provided in part 
by the Slate of New Hampshire end/or such other funding aources as we;e av.iilable or 
required, e.g .. the Uniled States Department of Heallh and Hum.in Soryices. 

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownorohlp: All materials (written. video. audio) produce<:t or 
purchased.under tho contract shall h~ve prior approval from OHHS before printing. p<oductlon. 
clistributlon 01 use. The OHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all 0<ig inal materials 
produced, induding, bvt not limited to. brochures . resource directories. protocols or guideflnes. 
posters. Of reports. Contractor shall nor reproduce any materials produced under the contractwilhout 
prior written approval from OHHS. 

1 ~- Oporatlon of Facmues: compllanco with Lowa end Rogulations: In the operation of any facilities 
for providing services. !he Contractor sh.ill comply with all laws. ordera and regulations ol federal, 
state. counly and ()'lunicipal aulhorilies and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers 
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contrnctor with respect to the 
operalion of the facility or the provision of the services et such lacilily. 1f any gover~menlal license or 
permit shaU bo required lor the operation ol the aaid facil ity or lhe performance of the said servlcu. 
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and 
conditions ol each such license or permit. In connec1ion with lhe lorego\ng· requirements. the 
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that. during the .term of this Contract the facililies sha0 
comply with all rules, orders, regulations. and requirements ol th!! State c;>tflce of the Fire Moi&halond 
tho ·1ocal fire proteciion agency. and shall be In conformance with local bul!dlng and zoning codes. by­
laws and.regulations . 

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Conttactor will provide an Equal Employment 
Oppo.1unity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office ol Justice Program11 (OCR). if i1 has 
received a single award of SS00.000 or more. II the recipient receives $25.000 01. more and has 50 or 
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. Exhibit C • more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form 10 the 

OC~. certifying that its EEOP is on tile. For recipients receiving le'ss than $25.000, or public grantees 
wit~ fewer than 50 employees. regardless of the amount of the ·awa;d, the recipient will provide an 
EE9P Certification Form lo the OCR certifying it Is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non­
Pl'Ofil organizations, Indian Tribes. and medical and educational institutions are exempt from Che 
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification fonn to the OCR lo claim the exemption. 
EEOP Certification Forms are available al: http://www.oJp.'11Sdoj/abouVocr/pdls/cert.pdf . . 

17. 'l.irriitod English Proflcloncy (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Accen lo 
Services tor persons with Limited English Proficiency. and resulting agency guidance. nationalorigin 
discrimination includes discrlmfnation on lhe basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure 
complianc~ wilh lhe Omnibus Crime ContrOI ond Sare Streets Act or 1968 and TIiie Vt or lhe Clvll 
Right• Acl or 1964, Conl,actor• muat tako reasonable atep1 to ensure that LEP persons have 
meaningful access to il:s programs: 

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower,Protectlons: The 
folki:,,Jing shall apply lo alf ~tracis that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48 
CFB 2.101 (currently, $150.000) 

· CCWTAACTOA EMPLOYEE WH1STLE8LOW!:R RIGHTS ANO REOUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF 
WHISTLEBLO'M:R RIGHTS (SE~ 2013) 

(a) This contract and employees working on lhis contract will be subject to the whislleblower rights 
and remedies in the pilot pi'ogram on Contractor employee whistleblower prolections e1tabllstled al 
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of lhe ·Nationa! Defense Authorization Act for Fis~I Year 2013 (Pub. L. 
112-239) and FAR 3.908. . 

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in wriling. in the predominant language of the workforce. 
of employee whislleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. • 712, as described In &ection 
3.908 of lhe Federal Acquisition Regulation . 

(c) The Contractor shall Insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c) . in all 
subf:Onlracts over the simplified acquisition threshold. 

19. Subcontractors : OHHS recognizes thal the Contractor may Clloos.e to use subcontractors with 
g,e~ter expertise 10 perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenlenc~. 
but the Contractor 11hall retain tho responsibility and accountability !or the funclion(s) . Prior tci 
subcontracting. the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated 
functlon(s). This is accomplished through a writ1en agreement that specifies activities and reporting 
responsibilities ol the subc¢ntractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sanctions If 
the subcontractor's performance is nol adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual 
conclitions as the Contractor and the Conl/actor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance 
with those conditions. 

When lhe Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following: 

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities; before delegating 
the function . 

19.2. Hove o written agreement with the subcontracior lhal &pecifies activities and reporting 
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will bo managed if the subcontractor's 
performance is nol adequate . . 

19.~. · MonitOf the subcontractors performance on an ongoing basis 

00'13111 
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19 .◄. Provide to OHHS an annual athedule ldentltylt\g _all subcontractors. delegaled functions and 
· : · responsibilities. and when the subconlractor's performance wal be reviewed 

19.5. OHHS ahall. at Its disCJelion. review and approve all subcontracts. 

Ir lhe Contracl0t Identities deficiencies or areas lor Improvement are ldenlifi11d, the Contraclor $hall 
take corrective action. . 

20. Cont1act Oofinltlon!I : 

20.1 .. COSTS: Shall moan those direct and indirect items ol exponto determined by the Department 
lo bo allowoble end rolmburaablo In accordanc'o with cost and accounting principles 11at11blish11d 
in accordance with at.ate and federal laws, rogulation1. ru1es and ordetS. 

20.2. OEPARTMENT: NH Department ol He.ilth and Human Services. 

20.3. PROPOSAL: II applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the ContractOt on a 
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description ol the services and/or 
goods lo be provided by the Conltactor in accord an~ with the terms and conditions or the 
Contract and setting forth the 10101 cost and sour~s of revenue for eseh ser.-ice to be provided 
under the Contract. · 

io.4. UNIT: For each service that lhe Contractor Is to provide to englble lndlvldua1s hereunder, shall 
mean thal period of time 01 lhat specified activity determined by the Department and specified 
in Elthibh B of the Contract. 

20.5. FEDERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and 
policies. etc. are referred to in the Conlract, the &aid reference shall be deemed lo mean 
all such laws, regulations. etc. as they may be amended or revised from lime to time. 

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this 
Contract will not aupplant any existing federal funds available for theae services. 

0Clft)lta • 
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1. R~vislon, to Form P-37, Goneral Provl~on& 

1.1, Section ◄. Cond1J1om1i Naturo of Agreement. is replaced as touows : 

◄ . CONPIIIQNAL NATURE Of AGREEMENT. 

Notwithst.indlng any provialon of this Agreement to the contTary. all obligations ol the Stale 
hereunder. including without limitation, the con1inuance or payments. In whole 0< in part. 
und~r this Agroomenl ore contingent upon continued appropriation or ovailabllily ol fun<11. 
includino ony aubaequoril changes to tho oppropriation,or availability of funds affected by 
any ,tale or federai loglslalive or executive ac1ion that reduces. eliminales, or otherwise 
modifies the appropriation or availability or lunding tor this Agreement and the Scope of 
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or In part. In no event ahall the 
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropri.:iled or availab·le funds. In · 
the event or a reduction. termination or modiflc.ation or app1opriated or available funds, the 
Stale shali have lhe right to withhold payment until such funds become available, ii ever. 
The Slate ahall have the right to reduce, rerminate or modify services under this Agreemenl 
immediately upon giving the Contractoi notice or such reducilon. termination or 
modification. The State ahafl nol be required to transfer t1.mds from .iny other source or 
account Into the Account(s) Identified· In block 1.6 · of the General Provisions. Account 
Number.or any other account in the event funds are redui::ed or unavailable. · 

1.2. Section 1 o. Termination. is &mended by adding the following ranguage: 

10.1 The St.:ile may terminate lhe Agreement at any lime tor any reason, ·al the sale discretion of 
lhe Slate. 30 'days after giving the Convactor written notice that the State is exercising its 
option lo terminate the Agreement. 

10.2 In the event of early termination. the Contractor shall. within 15 daya of notice. of early 
termination, develop and submit to the Slate a Transition Plan ror services under the 
Agreemenl. lncluding·but not limited to. Jdentifylng the present .ind future needs of. clients 
recolving seNices under the Agreement and esl.ibli~he·s a pr~ss lo meet those needs. 

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with lhe Stale and sh_au promptly provide detailed 
Information to support the Transition Plan Including. but nol limited lo, any information or 
data requested by·the St-lo related lo the terminaUon of the Agreement and Transition Plan 
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions ol lho Transition· Plan to lhe S1a1e 
as requested. 

10,4 In the event that services under the 
0

Agreeme'nt, including but not limited to client! receiving 
services under the Agreement are ·trnnsitioned lo having services delivered by another 
entity including contraded providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for 
uninterrupted delivery or services in the Transitio_n Plan. 

10.5 The Convector shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals 
about the transition . The Contractor shall include the proPosed communications In its 
Transition Plan submitted lo the Stale as described above. 

2. Ronownl 

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement far up ta two(~) additional years. 
cantingent upon satisfactory delivery of services. available funding, written agreement ol lhe 
p.irties .ind approval or the Govern<>< and Executive Council. 

~·· 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING PRUG•FREE WORKPLACE REQUfREMENTS • 
The Vendor Identified In Secllon 1.3 or the General Provisions agrees 10 comply with the provisions of 
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Worxptace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle O; ◄ 1 
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In s·ections 
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provi~ions execute the following C~rtification: 

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS 

US DEPARTMENT.OF HEAL TH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION· CONTRACTORS 
US 0EP,ARTMENT OF ~ORICULTURE - CONTRACTORS 

This certifical.ion is required by the regulations implementing See1ions 5151-5160 of Che Drug-Free 
Worilplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, TIiie V, Subtitle O; ◄ 1 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part n of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 

· .21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inrerence, sub-grantees and sul>­
contractors), prior to uward, that they will maintain a drug-free worilplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the 
regulation p<0vides thal a grantee (and by Inference, suli1irantees and sub-conlra~ors) that is a Stale 
may el~ct to make one certirleation to lhe O~partment in eac.h rederal fiscal year in lieu or certifteales for 
each grant during the recierel fiscal year covered by the certification. The eertillcatc set out below Is a 
malerial representation or fact upon IMlich reliance is placed ~en the agency awards the granl. False 
certific:.ilion or violalion of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments. auspenslon or 
termination or grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should 
send it to: 

Commissioner 
NH Oepa!1ment of Health and Human Services 
129 Pleasant Street, · · 

·concord, NH 03301-6505 

1. The grantee certifies lhal II will or will continue to provide a dl\lg-frce wor1<p1ace by: 
1.1 . Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture. distribution, 

dispensing, possession or use or a 'controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's 
wor1<place and 5pedtying the actions that will be taken against employee, for violation of such 
prohibition: 

1.2. EslabUshing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about 
1.2.1. The dangers or drug abuse in the worilplace; 
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of mainlaining a drug-free woncptace; 
1.2.3. · • Any available dl\Jg counsel ing, rehabilitation, and employee assislnncc programs; and 
1.2.4. The penallies that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations 

oa:uning In the wori(place; 
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee 10 be engaged in the performance of the gr\lnl be 

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); . 
1.4. Notifying lhe employee In Ihe statemenl requl.red by paragraph (a} thal, as a condition or 

employment under lhe granl, the employee ...,;n 
1.◄ .1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and 
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing or his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug 

statute occurring in the wor1<plac.e no late, lhan·frve calendar d:>yi; aher such 
conviction; .. 

1.5. Notifying the 11gency in v,,ritlng, ...,;Ihln ten calendar days nfter receiving nolice under 
subparagraph I .4.2 from an employee or otheiwise receiving actu:>I notice of such conviction. 
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. lncludlng position title, lo every grant 
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was wotkin9, unless the Federal agency 

El<Hblt D- Cel\illu1otl ~•rang 0ruo FC110 
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1.6.: 

1 .7., 

has designated a central point tor lhe retllipl ot such notices. Notice shall Include the 
identification number(s) of each effected grant; 
Taking one or the following actions, within 30 calendar day, of receiving notice under 
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who Is so convicted 
1.6.1. Taking appropriate pe/'SOMet adion against such an employee, up to an(j including 

termination. consistent with the requirements of the Rohabilitalion Act of 1973, as 
emended; or 

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to particlpale satisfactorily In a df\19 abuse assistance or 
rehDbnitDtiOI\ program approved for such purposes by a Federal, Stat&, or local heallh, 
law enforcemenl, or other appropriate agency; · · 

Making a good faith elfort 10 continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through 
Implementation or paragraphs 1. 1, 1.2, 1 .3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6 . 

2. The gran1ee may insert in lhe space provided below the sile(s) for lhe perlormance or wot1( done in 
COMCCtion with the specific grant. 

Plael, of Performance (str~I address, city, county, slate, lip code) (list each location) 

Check O If there are wor1(places on rne that are nol identified here. 

Dale :. 

Ve11dor Name: 

Extibll 0- Cali/'IClltlon reoa,dlng Drug Fre6 
WOlkpl1co Roqu!,-IU\ts 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING . • 
The Vendor identified in Sedion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees 10 comply with the provisions of 
Seciion -319 or Public Lew 101-121 .-Govemmenl wide Guidal'ICe for New Restriclions on Lobbying. and 
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, es identified In Sections 1.11 
and 1.12 or the General Provisions execute the following Certification: 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEAL TH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION· CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE· CONTRACTORS 

Programa (Indicate applicabl11 program cov11r11d): 
•Temporary Assisl11nca 10 Needy Families under Title IV-A 
•child Support Enforcement Program under TiUe IV•D 
•social Services Block Grant Program under Tille XX 
··Modica.id Program under TiUe XIX 
•Community Services B!ock Granl under Title VI 
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge a~ belief, that: 

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf ol lhe undersigned, io 
any perso·n for influencing or allempting lo influel'ICC an officer Of employee or any agency. a Member 
or Congress. an officer or employee of Congress. or an employee of a Member or Congress in 
connection with the awarding or any Federal contract. conlinualion, renewal, .amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contracl, granl, loan, or cooperative !IQreement (and by specific mention 
sub-grantee or sul>-C-Onlractor). 

2. 11 ariy funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid lo any ·person for 
innu'encing or allempling to lnnuence an officer or employee or any agency, a Membe·,: or Congress. 
an officer or employee or Congress. or an employee of a Member of Congress in conneclio0 wilh !his 
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreemenl (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sut:>­
conlractor). the undersigned shall complele end submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to 
Report Lobbying, in aceo<da~ with Its Instructions, allached and identified as Stan:<Ja·;d Exhibit E·I.) 

3. The.undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be Included in the award 
document tor sub-awards al all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, ah<! contracts under grants, 
roans. end cooperative agreements) and lhal ell sub-reciplenls 5hall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This ceryiricallon ls ·a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was made or entered into. Submission ol this certilication is a prerequisite for makif'g-or entering inlo this 
IransacIjon imposed by Section 1352, Tille 31 , U.S. Code. Any p11rson_ who fails to file the required 
cer1ilicalion shall be subjeci to a dvil penally of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 tor 
each such failure. · · 

Vendor Name: 

. ElChlbh E - Cclllriai1ion R111jarding lobbying 
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CERTIFICATION BEGA BPI NG DEB'ARMEHT I SUSPENSION 
AND OTHER RESPONSiBIUTY MATTERS 

• 
The Ve~dor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees I0-compfy wi\h the provisions of 
Executive Office or the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, 
Su,pension, and Other Responslb~ity Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's 
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 or the General Provisions execute lhe foDowing 
Cer@e.,ition: 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 
1. By ~igning end submitting this proposal (conlract), the prospective primary participant is providing the 

ccrtiric:etion act out below. · 

2. The·inabaity of a person to provide the certificalion required below.will not necessarily result in denial 
of participation in this c_overed transaction. If ne~uary, the prospective participant shall submil an 
explanation of why it cannot provide the· certification. The certiflc.ition or explanation win be 
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS) 
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure or the prospective primary 
participant to furnish a certirlc.ation or an explanallon shall disqualify such person lrom participation ln 
this :transaction. 

3. The'certilicetion In this clause is a malerial representation of fact upon which retianec-was placed 
when DHHS determined to enler into this transaction. If it is laler determined that the prospective 
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, In addilion to olher ·remedies 
available to the Federal Government,-OHHS may terminate_ this transaction for cause or default. 

◄ . The prospective primary participanl shall provide immediale written notice to.the OHHS agency to 
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted If al any time the prospective primary participant teams 
that

0

its certlftcatlon was erroneous 'Mlen submitted or has become erroneous by reason or changed 
circumstances. 

S. The\tenns ·covered transaction; "debarred," 'suspended,' "inetlgible,' •tower lier covered 
transaction," ·participant,' ·person,' "primary covered transaction," "prin'cipal; ·proposal,' and 
·voluntarily e:tduded," as used in this clause, have the meanings sci out In the Oelinilions and 
Cov,erage sections of the rules implementing Executive O<der 125◄9: 45 CFR Part 76. Sec the 
ottac.hed def,nlllons. 

I 

6. The.prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (conlracl) that, should the 
prOP,O!ed covered transaction be entered into, it sha.a nol knov.1ngly enter inlo any lower tier covered 
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or volunlarily eiccluded 
fro~ participation in this covered Cra~saction, unless authorized by OHHS. 

7. The:prospecwe primary participant further agrees by livbmittlng lhis proposal th:it it will Include the 
clau'.~e titled ·certification Regarding Oebarmenl, Suspension, lner:gibility and Volunlary Exclusion • 
Lo~r Tier Covered Transactions," provided by OHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered 
transactions and In all soOcilations for lower lier covered transaction,. 

a: A p~rticipanl in a covered tra,:,saction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a 
lo~r tier covered transaction thal ii is not debarred, suspended, ineliglble, or Involuntarily excluded 
from lhe covered lransaclion, unless it knows lhal the certincalion is erroneous. A participant may 
decide the method and frequency by which ii determines the eligibility of its principals. Each 
par1!Clpanl may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocuremenl List (of excluded parties). 

9. Nothing contained In 1he foregoing shall be cons!rued 10 requi,e establlshmenl of a system or records 
in order to render in good faith the certification re(lulred by this clause. The knowledge and 

Elhibl1 F - Certillcadon Regtrdlr,g Dcb1rmenl, Su,pe~ 
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person in the ordinaty course of business dealings. 

10. Except tor transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions. If a participant in a 
c.overed lransaclion knowingly enters lnlo a lower tier covered transaction IMlh a person who is 
suspended, deba"ed, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in 
addition lo other remedies available to the Federal govemment. OHHS may teiminale ltlis transaction '°' c.iuse or deraun. 

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS 
11 . Tho prospective primary participant certifies to !he best of Its kllO'Medge and belie I, that 11 ond Its 

principals: 
1 u. ore not preacntly debarred, ,us pended. proposed ror debarment. declared Ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by ·any Federal depaltment or agency: 
11.2. have Ml within.a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had 

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining. a_ttempting to obtain, or performing a p!Jblic (Federal. State or local} 
transaction or a contracl under. a public transaction; viQlation of Federal or State antilrvsl 
statutes or commission of embeulemenl, theft, forgery, bribery. falslfication or' deslrvction of 
records, m.iking false alatements, or receiving 6lolen property; 

·11 .3. are not presently indicted tor othcr'INise criminally or clvilly charged by a governmental entity 
(Federal. State or locaQ with commission of any ol the offenses enumerated In paragraph (l}(b) 
of lhis cer1ific.ation; and 

11 .◄ . have not 11,(thln a three-year period preceding this appli~lion/proposal h_ad one or more public 
transactions (Federal, Stale or loca~ terminated for cause or default. 

12. \'Jh'ere the prospective primary participant is unable lo cel1Ify lo any of the·slatements in this 
~rtif1cation, suc.h prospective par1icipant shall enach an explanation to this proposal (contract). 

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 
13. •By signing end submitting lhis lower lier propcsal (contract). the prospective lower lier participant, as 

defined in ◄ S CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of Its know1edge and beller that ii and its principals: 
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended. p<oposed for debarmenl, declared Ineligible, or 

I/Oluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. 
13 .2. v.tlere the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any or !he above. such 

prospective participant shall anach an explanation to this propcsal (contract). 

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this propcs~I {contract) that ii will 
include this cl~use entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility, and 
Vot.untary E,ccJuslon - Lower Tier Co\lered Transactions,' without modification In all lower tier covered 
transactions· ,md in all solicitations for lower lier CO\lered transactions. 

,01&1((:1 
Dale 

~1011) 

Vendor Name: 

E1"11!>h F -CtlUl\eallon R«11nllng OGb,tmol'II, SUSpetllloft 
And OLl'ocr Ra'l)OnSlbillty ~tie~ 
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAiNING TO • 
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH•BASEO ORGANIZATIONS AND 

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS 

The Vendor id~nti6ed in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions ag.rees by signalure of the Contfilctor's 
representative as id~ntilied in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of lhe General Provisions, to execute lhe following 
certi&.ation: 

VendOf !'/ill comply, and will require any r.ubgrilnteos ·or aubcontr.1t1ou to comply. with any applic.able 
federal nondiscrimination reqvirements, which may lndude: 

' . 
• tho O,:nni_bus Crime Corilrol and Safo Stroots AC1 of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 378~d) which prohibits' 
rocipients of federal funding under lhis slatvte from disctiminating. eilhor in employment practices Of In 

, the delivery of services o< benents, on the basis or r.ice, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act 
requires certai/\ recipienta to produce an Equal Employment Opportv~lty Plan: 

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act ol 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by 
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Sare Streets Act. Recipients or federal funding under this 
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in emptoyment practices or in the delivery or ser«es or 
benefits. on the basis o1 race. cc,lor, rellgion. national origin, and. sex. The Act Include, Equal 
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements: 

. the cr.:i1 Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal fJnancial 
ussi!ltanc.e tro,:n discriminating on lhe basis of ,ace, color. or naUonal origin in any program or activity); 

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Seciion 794), which prohibits recipienla or Federal flflancial 
aulstance from discriminating on the basis or disabiUty, In regard to employment and the delivery of 
services or benorits. in any program or activity; . 

- the Americans with Oisabilllies Act or 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections \2131·~). which prohibits 
dlsctimlnalion and ensures equal opportunity 101 pe~ons with disabililies in employme.nt. Stale and local 
govemr,:ienl services, public eocommodalions, commercial facilities, end transpo<lation; 

- lhe Educatiop Amendments o! 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 18~1 . 188_3, 1685-86), which prohibit, 
discrimination on the basis of sex In federally asslsled education programs; 

• the Age Oiscrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibils discriminiltion on the 
basis of age In prog,rams or activities receiving Federal financial assist.Ince. II does 1'.101 ir\dude 
employment disctimination: 

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Ju$tice Regulations - ·oJJOP Granl P1ograms); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42 
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity: Policies 
a"1d Pro~uras}; Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws tor faith-based aod community 
organization$); Executive Ordc, No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making 
Cflteria for pannerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations; 

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Trealment ro, Failh-Based 
Organizallons): and Whislleblower ·protections 41 U.S .C. §-4 712 and The National Defense Authorization · 
Act (NOAA) ror Fist.ii Year 2013 (Pub. L: 112-239. enacted Jaf'll..lary 2, 2013) the Pilot-Program to, 
Enhancement of Conlract Employee WhlsUeblower Protections, wnlch protects employees agolnst 
reprisal ror ~ertain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts. 

The certificate set out below ls a material representation of fact upon which reliam:e.is place~ when the 
ogency awards the grant. False ci!rtification or violation ol the certification ahall be grounds for 
suspension of payments. suspension or termination or grants, or government wide suspension or 
debarment. 
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In lhe event a Federal or State court 01 Federal or S1a1e administrative agency makes a finding ol 
discrimination after a due process hearing on the ground, of race. color, religion, national 0tigin. or sex 
.against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a a>py ol the finding lo the Office for Cl\lil Rights, to 
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department ol Health ar,d Human Services. and 
to the Department of Health and Human SeNices Olfice of the Ombudsman. 

The Vendor Identified.in Section 1.3 of the Ge'neral Provisions agrees by signature of the Contracto,'s 
roprosenlalive as identified in Socliona 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 
certification; · 

I. Sy signing ond submitting this p<oposal (eon1r:1C1) lho Vendor.09rcn lo comply with tho provisions 
Indicated abovo. 

Vendor Name: 

ID{~/t9 
Date · 

tl'.27114 
Ro,,, 1()'11/U 
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CERTjFIC.\TIQN REGARDING ENYJRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE • 
Public Law 103-227, Pan .C - Environmental Tobacc.o Smoke. also known as the Pro•Chlldren Act of 1994 
(Act). requires thal smoking nol be pennitted (n any ponion or any indoor facility owned or leased or 
contracted for by an entity end used routinely or regular1y for the provision or heallh, day care, education, 
or library services lo children vnder the ~ge of 18, ii the tervices are funded by Federal programs either 
direcily ·or through State 0< focal governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The 
law does not apply to children's servic.es provided ii) private residences, focilities funded solely by 
Medicare or Medicaid funds , and portions ol facitilies used lor inpalient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure 
to comp!'; 'Mlh the provisions of the law may resull In the Imposition of a c;lvil moneiary penalty of up to 
~1000 per day and/or t~e imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responaiblc entity. 

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees. by signature of the Contraclor's 
represent.alive as Identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 ol lhe General Provisions, lo execute the folloYw{ng 
certillcetion: 

1. By signing and 1ubmit1lng !his contract, the Vendor agrees 10 make reasona)>le effons 1.0 comply wflh 
an applicable provisions or Public Law 10J.227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 199◄. · . 

Vendor Name: 

Exhlbll H - Cerlil\udon R~Mllng 
Erwlronmcnul Toba"° Smoka 

P11ge I ol 1 
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HEAL TH INSURj\NCE PORTABILITY 
ACT BUSINESS ASSOCIATE 

AGREEMENT 
The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Gen'eral Provision~ of the Agreement agrees to 
·comply;with the Health Insurance Portabi!ily and Accounlability Act, Public Law 104-191 and 
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 
CFR P.arts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business . 
Associ~te• s~all mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents or the Vendor that receive, 
use or have-access to protected health lnfonnation under this Agreement and ·covered Entity" 
Sh!JII mean lhe Slate or New Han1pshire, Department of Health and Human Services. 

(1 • Definitions . 

a. 'Breach,' shall have_ the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 or Titre 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations. · 

b. 'Business Associate~ has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code 
of Federal Regulations. 

c. ·covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.1_ 03 of Tille 45, 
Code or Federal Regulations. 

d. "Designated Record Set• shall have lhe same meaning as the term "designated record sel" 
in 45 CFR Section 164.501. 

e. •pata Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggrega1ion• in 45 CFR 
Section 164.501 . 

f. ·"He'allh Care Operations· shall have the same meaning as the term "heallh care operations· 
In 4_5 CFR Section 164.501 . 

g. "H!TECH Acr means the Heal1h Information Technology. for E~~nomic and Clinical Health 
Act , TitleXIII. Subtitle 0, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery ·and ReinYestment Act or 
2009. 

h. "HIPM" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act or 1996, Public Law 
104:.191 and the:Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health 

·lnformaliM, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto. 

i. "Individual" shall have lhe same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103 
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 
CFR Section 164.501(9). 

j. • "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy or Individually ·1den1ifiable Health 
lnrormation at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPM by the United States 
Departme~t of Health and Human SeNlces. · . . 

k. "Protected Health Information· shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health 
information• in 45 CFR Section 160.103, l imiled lo the information created or received by 
Business Associate rrom or on behatr of Covered Entity. 

3/201 ◄ E.xNbll I 
Hc~llh lnsunlra PonablBiy ACI 
Bialncu o\s.&ocbla ""'ee~n1 

Pao, 1 or o 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 68998552-CCAE-4A68-BAD1-86FBD1 FC60A7 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6E96D43~3-45A8-9169-46BA4451249B 

DocuSign Envelope ID: ~F562E5A-B5M-<CEE~1A9-E~IAB~2C2CD 

Now H4mpshlre Doportmont of Hearth.and Human Services 

Exhibit I • 
I. "Reau ired by Law· shall have the same meaning .as the term ·required by law" in 45 CFR 

Section 164 .103. 
I 

m. ·secretary• shall mean the Secrelary or the Department of Health and Human Services or 
his/her designi:e. 

n.- ·se'curity Rule" shall mean lhe Security SIandards for the Protection or Eledronic Protected 
Heallh Information er 45 CFR Pert 164, Subpart C,_ and amendments .thereto. 

o. ·unsecured Protecied Heel1h lnformetlon· meens protected health in'lormatlon that Is not 
secured bye technology 1landard that renders protected health Information unusable, 
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthoriied individuals and is developed or endorsed by 
a standards developing organi:zation that is accredited by the American National Standards · 
Institute. 

I 

p. Ottier Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning 
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 16-4, as amended rrom time lo lime, end the 
HIT.ECH 
Ac1: 

(2) 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

31201 ◄ 

BU!1lness Associate Use and Disclosure of p;gtected Health Information, 

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, mainlain or transmit Protected Health 
·Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide lhe services outlined under 
'Exhibi! A or the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all 
Jts directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit 
1PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation or the Privacy and Security Rule. 

:ausiness Associate may use or disclose PHI: 
I. For the prop~r managemen1 and administration of the Business Associate; 
II. As required by la'n'., pursuant lo the terms ~el forth In paragraph d. below: or 
Ill. Fqr data aggregation purposes for lhe health care·operations or Covered 

Entity. 

·io the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI lo a 
:1hird party , Business Associate must obtain, prior to making. any such disclosure, (i) 
:reasonable assurances from ihe third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and 
iUsed or further ·disclosed only as required ·by law or for the purpose for which it was 
disclosed to lhe third party; encl (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business 
_Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification 
Rules of any breaches of the confidenliality of the PHI , to the extent ii has obtained 
tl<nowledge of such breach. 

·The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure Is reasonably .necessary lo 
·provide services under Exhibit A or the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a 
:request for disclosure on the basis that II is required l:>y law, without f1rst notifying 
·covered Entiiy so that Covered Entity has an opportunity lo object to the disclosure and 
-to seek ~ppropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business .. -,~::t;,1 Erlllbl1 I 

Hedh lnsutallCO Portability Atl 
811$lnt» Assocl,1~ Agreemenl 

Pf QO 2 cl6 
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Exhlbl11 • ·Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all 
remedies. 

e. If the Covered Entity notiries the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed lo 
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security 
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate 
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of 
such additional re,trictions end shall abide by a~y additional security safeguards; 

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate. 

a. ·The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately 
•after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use ~r disclosure of protected 
health information no, pro11ided for by the Agreement tncluding breaches of unsecured 
!protected health infonnation and/or any security incident that may ha11e an impact on the 
•protected health information of the Covered Entity.' 

b. °The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes 
taware of any of the above situations . . The risk assessment shall include, but not be 
'limite'd to: · 

o The nature and extent or the protected health inrormation involved. Including the 
types of identiriers and the likelihood of re-identifiC.:1tion; 

o The ·unaulhorized person used the protected ~eallh information or 10 whom the 
disclosure was made: 

o 'Nhether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed 
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been· 

mitig~ted. 

·The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the 
'breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment In writing lo the 
·covered Entity. 

c. 'the Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and 
·Breach Notification Rule. 

d. Business Associate shall make available ~II of its Internal policies and procedures. books 
'.and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or 
,received by Jhe Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for 
.purposes of deterr:nining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privai;y and 
.Security Rule. 

e. Business Associate shell require all or its business associates thal receive, use or have 
·access ,·o PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing lo adhere to lhe same . 
. restriclions and conditions on the use and disclosure or PHI contained herein, including . 
the duty lo retum or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I) . Th·e Covered -Entity 
shall be considered a direct third party be"nericiary or the Contractor's business associate 
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI 

l/2014 Ertibill Vendorlnlt~b~ 
He,hh tn.svranc.e Port1bl!ty Acl 

6wna1 ~:~la~~ ~reemenl Dile I o/e,/ 1 ') 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 68998552-CCAE-4A68-BAD1-86FBD1FC60A7 

OocuSign Envelope ID: 6E96D43B-8«3-45AS-9169-46BA4451249B 

OocuSign envelope 10: ◄ F662E5A-B563-4EEl-81A~E91ABS02C2CO 

Now Hampshire Dep•rtment of Heatth and Human Sorvlc:O;S 

Exhibit I 

·pursuant to this Agreement, with rights .or enrorcement and indemnification from such 
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard 
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement ror the purpose or use and disclosure or 
protected health Information. 

r. Wilhin five (5) business days of receipt or a written request from Covered Entity, 
'Busif'.less Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all 
records. books, agreements. policies and procedures relating to the use and aisclosure 
,or PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine 
:Business Assoclate's compliance wllh the terms of the Agreement. 

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, 
.Business Associate shall provide acce~ to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the 
;Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the 
;requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. 

h. ,Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written Iequest from Covered E,:itity for an 
. ·-!amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record 

,Sel, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for 
:amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fµtfiil its 
,obligations under 45 ~FR See1lon 164.526. 

i. :Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI iind information related lo 
.such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an 
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHJ in accordance with 45 CFR Section 
164.528. 

j. ;Within ten (10) busines~ days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a 
1request for an accounting of disclosures or PHI. Business Associate shall make available 
,lo Covered Entity such inrormalion as Covered Entity may require lo fulfill its obligations 
110 provide an accounting of disclosure~ with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR 
.Section 164.528. / 

k. 'In the event any individu·a1 requests access lo, amendment of. or accounting-of PHI 
directly from lhe· Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) 
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the 
:,esponsibility or responding to forwarded requests .. However, if forwarding the 
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business 
Associate to violate HIPAA and the 'Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate 
shall inslead respond to the individual's request as reqJ,Jired by such law and nolify 
·covered Entity or such response as soon as praclicable. 

I. Within ten (10) business days or termination or the Agreement, for any reason, the 
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI 
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the 
,Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If retur:n or 
;destruction is not feasible. or the disposilion or the PHI has be~n othetwise agreed to in 
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue lo extend the protections or the 
(Agreement , to such PHI and limil further uses and disclosures of such PHI to !hose 
.p'ur~oses that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Bu~ines~ 

312014 Erlllbl! I Vcndot IN!lals . 
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Exhibit I • Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, reQuires thal the 
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associa!e shall certity to 
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed .. 

('I . Obllgatlons.of Covered Entity 

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its 
Notice of Privacy Practices provided 10 individuals In accordance with 45 CFR Section 
164.520, to the e,:tent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate·s 
use or disclosure or PHI. 

b. Covered Entity shall promptty notify Business Associate of eny changes in. or revocation 
or permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or 
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45. CFR Section 
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508. 

c. Covered entity sh~II promptly notify Business Associate or any restrictions on the use or 
disclosure or PHI ttlat Covered En.tity has agreed lo in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, 
lo the ew1ent that.such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of 

.PHI. 

(5) Termination for Cause 

In addition _lo Paragraph 10 of l~e standard terms.and conditions (P-37) of this 
·Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered 
Entity's knowledge or a breach by Business Associate or the Business Associate 
Agreement set forth herein es Exhibit I. The Covere<f Entity may either immediately 
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the 
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity 
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Cove"red Entity shall report the 
violation to the Secretary. 

(6) Miscellaneous 

a. Definitions and Regulalorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein. 
shall have the same meaning as those terms in·the Privacy and Security Rule, amended 
; from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to 
.a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as i,:i effect or es 
amended. 

b. Amendment Covered Entity and Business Associate agree lo take such action as is 
necessary to am!!nd the Agreement, from time 10 time as is necessary for Covered 
Entity to comply wiJh the changes in the requirements of HIPM, the Privacy and 
Security Rule, and applicable federal and slate law. 

c. · Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges !hat it has no ownership rights 
wilh respect•~ the PHI provided by or created on behalf or Covered Entity. 

d. lnterpretaJion. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved 
10 permit Covered __ Entity to comply with HIPM, the Ptivacy and Security Rulet. . 

3/2014 E.xhlb ll I Vcrdo, lnltlals 
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Exhibit I • 
e. Segregation. II any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any 

person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not artecl other ten:ns or 
condilions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the 
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable. · 

f. :Suryjyal. Provisions In this Exhibil I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or 
destruction or PHI, ei1ensions or the protections or the Agreement in section (3) 1, the 
defense and.indemnification provisions of section (3) e end Paragraph 13 of the 
;standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination o,r the Agreement. 

. IN Wl~NESS 1/v'HEREOF', the parties h~reto have duly executed this Exhibit I. 

Department of Health and Human Servi~s 

The St~te . 

c--;-:~-~ 
Signature of A thorized Representative 

l<~~ ,<..- c:; Br; 
Name or orized Representative 

u✓~~~ 
Title of Authorized Representative 

l o/"d., / 1'1 
Date ( . Dale r. • 

Emlbt I 
Hullh lnsutance PO/Ublllty ACI 
Busltleu Auodalo Agrcemcnl 

P.J0t e ore 
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CEBT!F!CAJIQN Rl;GABOJNG THE FEOERA!- FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY ANO TRANSPARENCY 
ACT lffATAI CQMPLIAHCE 

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Ac.I (FFATA) requires prime aw:ardecs of lndividual 
Federal grants equal to or greater than S25,000 and awarded on orafter October 1, 2010, lo repor1 on 
data related to executive compensation and associated ·r.rst-tier ,vb-grants ol S25,000 or more. If the 
initial award is below $2~.000 but subsequent grant modil'lc.ltions .resun In a total award equal to or over 
$25,000, the award Is iub)ec.l lo the FFATA re~ing requirements, as or the dale of the award. 
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 17P (Repor1in9 Subaward and Execvtive Compensation lnrormation), the 

Department of Heallh and Human SeMccs (OHHS) must report lhe following Information for any 
subaward or contract award aubject to the FFATA reporting requirements_: 
1. Name of enUly 
2. Amount or award 
3. Funding agency 
4. NAICS code for conlracls / CFOA program number ro, grants 
5. Program souru 
6. Award title descrlptlve ofthc purpose of the tunding action 
7. Loµ tion of the enllty 
8. Principle place of performance 
9. Unique ldentiller of the entity (DUNS#) 
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives ii: 

10. i. More than 80% or annual gross revenyes are from the Federal government, and those 
, revenues ore greater than S25M annually and 

10.2. Compensation lnforma!ion Is not already available through reporting to the SEC. 

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by lhe end of the month, plu's 30 days, In which 
the award or award amendment Is made. 
The Vendor idcnlified in Section 1.3 ol the General Provisions agrees to comply v.ith the provisions of 
The Fe~eral Funding Accqunlability and TrMsparency Act .Public Law 109-282 .and Public Law I 10-252, 
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subi!Wilrd and Execvtive Compensation Information), and further agrees 
10 have 'the Contraclof's represent.l ive, as Identified In Sections 1 .11 and 1.12 of !he-General Provisions 
exea.rtc the following Certification: 
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as ouUined above to the NH Department 
or Health and Human SeMces and to comply with a!I applicable provisions or the Federal Financial 
ACGOuntabi6ty and Transparency Act. 

CU,OtO(S/1 I011l 

' 

Vendor Name: 

A/L-----

Ellhlbh J - Celli!lailon Reo111Slng 1ho Fedcl'll Fundir,g 
AC(OUl'l l•blilly And T111rup1rcncy Act (FFATA) C()mplonc.o 
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As the Vendor idcnlificd in Set1ion 1.3 or lhe General Provisions, I certify lhat lhe responses 10 the 
below listed quution5 are true and accurate. 

1. The:ouNS number for your enlily is : g ~9 X: 3la (oq & 
2. In your business or organization's preceaing completed fiscal year, did your business or organization 

receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal conlracts. subeontrects, 
loans, grants. sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in .annual 
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans. grants, subgrants, and/or 
cooperative agreements? 

/ NO . ___ YES 

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here 
• I 

If the a"nswc, lo #2 above is YES, please answer the following: 

3. Does the public have acccn to information about the e-0rnpensation or the executives In your 
business o< organiiatlon through periodic reports filed under section 1 J(a) or 15(d) or the Securities 
Exchange Acl of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of lhc Internal Revenue Code of 
1986? 

___ NO ___ YES 

If tl'le ans'NCr lo #3 above Is YES, stop here 

II the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following: 

4. Thc·n.imcs .ind compenl.llion of the five most highly compensated ol'facers In your b\Jslnes:s or 
organization are as follows: 

Name: 

N~mc: 

Name: 

Name: 

Name : 

CU09CSl11011> 

Amount: 

Amount: 

Amounl: 

Amount 

Amount: 

EllNbll J - Cclllfleltlol'I Rt911'dlng Ille Federal FundlOQ 
Acccunlabilily ANJ T11rupnncy Ad (FF.\TA) Comp!Jnc.e 
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r;>HHS Information Security Requirements 

A. Definitions 

· The· following terms may be renected and have the described meaning in ihis document: 

1. ·e,each" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure. 
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access. or any similar term referring to 
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than 
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally iqentifiable 
information. whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health 
Information. • Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term ·Breach" in section 
164.402 of Till9 45, Code of Federal Regulations. 

2. ·computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning ·c:omputer Security 
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security lncid_ent 

. Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department 
of Commerce. · 

3. "Confidential Information" er "Confidential Data· means all confidential information 
disclosed by one party lo the other such as all medical, health; financial. public 
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance 
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and 
Personally Identifiable Information. 

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or ma.naged by 
. the State or NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and 

Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted 
services - of which collection , disdosure, protection, and disposition is governed by 
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes. but is not .limited to 
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (Pl), Personal Financial 
Information (PFI), Fed~ral Tax Information {FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), 
Payment Gard Industry (PCI). and or other sensitive and confidential information. 

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor. contractor's employee, 
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives 
OHHS data .or derivative data in accordance y.,ith the terms of this Contract. 

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and lhe 
regulations promulgated thereunder. 

6. "lncidenr means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy, 
which includes attempts (eilher failed or successful) to gain unaulhorized access to a 
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service. the unauthorized use of 
a system for the proces·sing or storage of data: and changes to system hardware, 
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or 
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement. loss 
or misplace~ent of hardcopy documents, . and misrouting of physi~al or electronic; 

V5. las\ upd1te 1QIOQ/1a · 8clllblt K 
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OHHS Information Se~urity Requirements· • 
mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk 9f unauthorized 
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction. 

7. "Open \Mreless Networ1<· means any netwon< or segment of a network that is 
not designated by the State or New Hampshire's Department of Information 
Technology or delegate as .a protected network (designed, tested, and 
approved, by means or the State, to transmit) will be considered an open 
netwon< and not adequately secure for·the transmission of unencrypted Pl, PFI, 
PHI or confidential DHHS data. 

: 8. "Personal Information· (or "Pl') means information wtiich can be used to distinguish 
or trace an individual's identity. such as their name, social security number, personal 
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C: 19, biometric records, etc., 
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked 
or linkable to a specific individual,. such as date an~ place of birth, mother's maiden 
name. etc. 

9. "Privacy Ruie~ srall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, pror11ulgated under HIPAA by the United 
States Department of Health and Human Services. 

10. "Protected Health lnfonnation· (0< 'PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the 
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 4S C.F.R. § 
160.103. . 

11 . ·security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic 
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments 
thereto, · · 

12. ·unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is 
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information 
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is 
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by 
the American National Standards Institute .. 

I .. RESPONSIBILITIES OF OHHS AND THE CO~TRACTOR 

A; Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information. 

'1 . The Contractor must not use. disclose. maintain or transmit Confidential Information 
except as ,easonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor, 
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not 
use, disclose. maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would consiih,.1te a violation 
of the Privacy and Security Rule. · 

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a 

Eldlt>II X 
OHHS lnlonnallon 
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OHHS Information Security Requirement~ • 
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a 
subpoena, etc .• wilhout first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to 
consent or object to the disclosure. 

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor !hat DHHS has agreed to. be bound by additional 
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI 
pursuant to the Privacy and Security -Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such 
additional (estrlclions · and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional 
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards. . . . 

4. · The Contractor agrees that OHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End 
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract . 

. 5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for 
any other purposes that are not ·indicated in this Conttact. 

6. Th·e Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the auth0<ized representatives 
or DHHS for the purpose or inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this 
Contract. · 

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DAT A 

, _. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing 
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the· applications have 
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in. cyber security and· that said · 
application's ei;,cryption·capabilities e0sure secure transmission via the internet. 

2.' ComputerDisks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may no! use computer disks 
or portable storage devices , such as a thumb drive, as a method or transmit1ing DHHS 

' data. 

3.' Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if 
1 

email is encrypted and being sent lo an? being received by email ~ddresses of 
1 persons authorized to receive sucll information . 

r . 

4. Encrypled Web Site. II End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential 
Data, the s~cure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be 
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site . 

. 5. File Hos.ting Services. also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file 
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud St_orage, to transmit 
Confidential Data. 

6. Ground Mail Seivic!). End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground 
mail within lhe continental U.S. and when sent lo a named individual. 

7.i Laptops and POA. If End User is employing portabie devices to transmit 
Confidential Data said devices musl be encrypted and password-protected. 

8.' Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open 

' 
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.OHHS Information Security Requirements 

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when 
remotely transmitting via an open wireless netw~rk. 

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication lo 
access or transmit Confidential Data , a virtual private network (VPN) must be 

· installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or Japlop from which information will be 
· · transmitted or accessed. 

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol ($FTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If 

End User 'is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will 
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclo.sure of 
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will 
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted.every 24 
hours). 

H. Wireless Devices. If E11d User is transmitt ing Confidential Data ·via wireless devlces, all 
. data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of inf0<mation. 

Ill. ·RETENTION ANO DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS 

T~e Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration or this 
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data arid any 
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless. otherwise required by law or permitted 
u~der this Contract. To this end. u:ie parties must:· 

A. Retention 

1. The Contracto·r agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in 
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside or tn.e United 
Stales. This physical location requ irement shall also apply in the implementation of 
cloud computing; cloud service or cloud storage capabilities. and includes backup 
data and Disaster Recovery locations. 

2. The Contractor. agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in 
place to delecl potential security events that can impact State or NH syste~s 
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided system~. 

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End 
Users In support of protecting Department confidential info~mation. 

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and f)ard copies of Confidential Data 
in a secure location and identified in sect.ion IV. A.2 

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud mus! be in a 
FedRAMP/8/TECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and 
regulation_s ,e9arding the privacy ·and security. All servers and devices must h·ave 
currently-supported and hardened operating systems. the latest anti-viral, a.nti• 
hacker, anti-spam. anti-sp~are. and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a 
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DHHS Information Security Requirements • 
3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and ·access controls to 

contractor systems that collect. transmit. or store Department confidential information 
where applicable. 

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to 
· detect potential security events that can Impact State or NH systems and/or 

Department confidential infonnation tor· contractor provided systems. 

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End 
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information. 

6. If the Contractor will be sub-co.ntracting any core functions of the engagement 
supporting the services for State of New Hampshi"re. the Contractor will maintain a 
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security 
e,cpectations. and monitoring cofT)pliance to security requirements that at a minimum 
match those for 1he Contractor. induding breach notification requiremenls.. · 

7. The Contractor will work with the Department fo sign and comply_ with all applicable 
·Stale of New Hampshire and Department _system access and authorization policies 
and procedures.- systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of 
obtaining ·and maintaining access to any Oepartmen1 system(s}. Agreements will be 
completed and signed by the Contractor and. any applicable sub-conttactors prior to 
system access being avthorized. 

8. If the Department determines .the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 
CFR 160.103·, the Contractor will e,cecvte a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement 
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the 
agreement. 

9. The Contractor will won< with the Department at its request to complete a System 
Management Survey. The 'purpose of the survey is lo enable the Department and 
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may 
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed 
annually, or an alternate time frame -at the Departments discretion with agreement by 
the Contractor. or the Department may request the survey be completed when the 
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes. 

10. The Contractor will not store , knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire 
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless 
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office 
leadership mem~r within the Department. 

11 . Data Security Breach Liability. In the evenl of any security breach Contractor shall 
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to 
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. 
The State shall recover from lhe Contractor all costs _of response and recovery from 
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O~HS lnfonnation Security Requirements 

wtl~le, must have aggressive intr\Jsion-delection and firewall protection. 

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's 
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting 
infrastructure. · 

B. Disposition 

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its 
sub-contractor systems). the Contractor will maintain a document~ process for 
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will 
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the 

. Contractor or any subcontractors as a pan of ongoing, emergency, and· or disaster 
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of 
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program 
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media 
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying tl)e· media (for example, 
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines 
for Media Sanitization, National Institute or Star,,.dards and Technology, U. S. 
Department of Commerce. Jhe Contractor will document and certify in writing at 
time or the data destruction. and will provide.written certification 10 the Department 
upon request. The written certification will include all deiails necessa,y to 
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable. 
regulato,y and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly 
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction. 

2. Unless .otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of . the termination of this 
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a 
secure method such as shredding. 

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this 
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential D.ata 
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wipi_ng. 

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY 

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the OHHS Data received under this Contract, and any 
derivative data or files. as follows: 

1. The Contra_ctor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department 
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery 
of contracted services. 

2. The Contractor will mainta in policies and procedures to protect Department 
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from 
creation. transformation, use, slorage and secure destruction) regardless of the 
media used to store the data (i.e .. tape, disk, paper, etc.). 
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OHHS Information Security Requirements • 
the breach, including but not limiled to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and 
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to · 
the breach. 

. . 
12. Contractor must. comply with all applicable statutes and regulations· regarding the 

privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in : all other respects 
· maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PH! at a level and scope that is not less 
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies. including, 
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a); OHHS 
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §Sb), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 
C._F .R. Parts 160 and _ 164) that govern protection~ for individually identifiable health 
information and as applicable under State law. 

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and 
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential. Oa.ta and to 
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and 
scope of security that is not less than the levei and scope of security r~uirements 
established by the State of. New Hampshire, _Department of Information T~c.hnotogy. 
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at ht1ps://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm 
for the Department of Information Technology policies. guidelines, standards, and 
procurement information relating to vendors. 

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident 
response process. The Contractor WIii notify the •State's Privacy Officer and the 
State's Security. Officer of any security breach immediately; at the email addresses 
provided in Section VI. This indudes a confidential inform_ation breach, computer. 
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New 
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network. 

15. Contractor must restrict · access to the Confidential Data obtained under this 
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such OHHS Data to 
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract. 

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users: 

a . comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above. 
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS 
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure. 

b. safeguard this information al all times. 

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, Pl,'°' 
PFI are encrypted and password-protected. 

d. send emails containing Confidential Information .only if encrypted and being 
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized 19 
receive such information. 
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law. 

f. · Confident~! Information received under this Contract and individually 
identifiable data derived from OHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is 
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons 
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, 
biometric identifiers, etc.). 

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data. including any 
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases. 
such data mus! be encrypted at all times when in transit, at res"t. 0< when 
stored on portable media as requiredcin section IV above. · 

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and 
disclosed using appropriate safeguards. as deWmined by a risk-based 
assessment of the circumstances involved. 

i. understand that their user cr~entials (use, name and password) must not be 
shared with anyone. End Us.ers will keep their credential information secure. 

·This applies to etedentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through 
a third party application. 

Contra~or is responsible for oversight and compliance of !heir End Users. DHHS 
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this 
Contract. including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, 
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data 

. is disposed ol in accordance with this Contract. 

V. LOSS REPORTING 

.' The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and. Security Officer of any 
. Security Incidents and Breaches immediately. al the email addresses provided in 

Section VI. 

The Contractor mus·1 further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in 
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach _Notification 

. procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and 
notwithstanding. Cont_ractpr's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures. 
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will: 

1. Identify Incidents: 

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents; 

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37; 
I 

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine !he risk le'l(el of. Incidents 
and determine risk-based responses lo Incidents: and 
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5. 'Determine whether Breach notification is reQuired, and, if so, identify appropriate 
. Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different 

options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigati9n 
measures. · 

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl mu~t be addressed and reported, as 
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20. 

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT 

A OHHS Privacy Officer: 

OHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs. nh . gov 

:e. DHHS Security Officer: 

DH HSI nformationSecurityOffice@d.hhs. nh.g ov 
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